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AWARDS & RECOGNITION

RIENESR

Major awards won by the Group in the Financial Year 2016/2017:

SER 2016/2017 YR FREESHNE R EIA -

HKR INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
BBRXEREEERAF

"10 YEARS PLUS CARING COMPANY" LOGO
105 PLUST B SR R BRI IAR5E

Organiser = #i&

The Hong Kong Council of Social Service

BB ERBHS

SILVER AWARD FOR VOLUNTEER SERVICE
I TEZFFRAR

Organiser = J#ig

Social Welfare Department

HEEANE

CAPITAL & CAPITAL WEEKLY THE OUTSTANDING

DEVELOPER AWARDS 2016

BB R A 22016

— URBAN DESIGN & MASTER PLANNING AWARD
W RABRRR B KR

— GREEN DEVELOPMENT AWARD
RRECBRASRE

Organisers E J#iE

CAPITAL and CAPITAL Weekly magazines

EAREg  EXER

SOCIAL CAPITAL BUILDER LOGO AWARD
HEEAHHEEE

Organiser = i #ig

Community Investment and Inclusion Fund of
Labour and Welfare Bureau
EIRBIRHEREXZES

ECO-BRAND AWARDS 2016
RRMIEKEE2016
Organiser F P48
East Week magazine

RET

INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY AWARDS

THE ASIA PACIFIC AWARDS 2016

— HIGHLY COMMENDED INTERIOR DESIGN
SHOW HOME CHINA

Organiser = ¥ #4E

International Property Media

AUBERGE DISCOVERY BAY HONG KONG
ERRMREEE

2016 GUEST REVIEW AWARDS
Organiser = it #4%
Booking.com

2015/16 FAMILY-FRIENDLY EMPLOYERS AWARD

SCHEME

201516 F ERER EE T KRBT

— FAMILY-FRIENDLY EMPLOYER
FERERE

— SPECIAL MENTION
15 RIERT

— AWARDS FOR BREASTFEEDING SUPPORT
FEEASEIN- L

Organisers = #i#t&

Home Affairs Bureau and Family Council

REEHBRE  REZES

SOCIAL CAPITAL BUILDER LOGO AWARD
HEERH HFHR

Organiser = J 18

Community Investment and Inclusion Fund of
Labour and Welfare Bureau
ZIRENRTERERAZES

GOOD MPF EMPLOYER 2015-16
2015-16F EE S FEE

Organiser i #i&

Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Authority

BHMAEEHEEER

GOOD MPF EMPLOYER 2015-16
2015-16FEREFEE

Organiser = ¥ #4E

Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Authority

BHEMABETEEER

2GETHER
8=

CAPITAL & CAPITAL WEEKLY THE OUTSTANDING

DEVELOPER AWARDS 2016

BAREEHBRBAR2016

— SEAVIEW LANDMARK BUILDING AWARD
BRIEFTFER AR

Organisers i1

CAPITAL and CAPITAL Weekly magazines

B  BEAER

HKR International Limited Annual Report

2016 MOST LIKED WEDDING MESSAGE AWARD

2016F 2 ELKERE

— WEDDING CATEGORY — MOST LIKED ROMANTIC
VENUE
IERHER — ZELKERB S5t

Organiser i #4&

Wedding Message magazine

FEBEMR

“CARING COMPANY” LOGO

[ RREIE IS

Organiser i #4%

The Hong Kong Council of Social Service
EEMEREHE

PARTNER EMPLOYER AWARD 2016/17

[ XA R 1z=7rat£12016/17

- B EETR

Organiser = i #4%

The Hong Kong General Chamber of Small
and Medium Business

RPN EEES



15™ HONG KONG OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY & HEALTH

AWARD
FIEETBHER R RERE

— SAFETY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM AWARD — OTHER

INDUSTRIES — MERIT

ZEEEHERE - AtTHEAR -ER

#®
Organiser £ J#iE
Occupational Safety and Health Council
BEZRRER

2016 HONG KONG AWARDS FOR ENVIRONMENT

EXCELLENCE

2016EBIRIEE M AR

— PROPERTY MANAGEMENT (RESIDENTIAL) —
CERTIFICATE OF MERIT
YMEEE(Ix) -BERE

Organiser i #4E

Environmental Campaign Committee

BEEDERS

FOODEVER WASTENEVER AWARDS

EEERARE

— FOODEVER AWARD — DIAMOND CLASS
BRERR - EBAR

Organiser = J##iE

Hong Kong Women Professionals and

Entrepreneurs Association

BRRIBHREXASHS

DISCOVERY BAY RECREATION CLUB
R RS

THE SUKHOTHAI BANGKOK

CERTIFICATE OF EXCELLENCE 2016

“CARING COMPANY” LOGO Organiser i
[ERRBIE ISR TripAdvisor
Organiser i #i&
The Hong Kong Council of Social Service STAR AWARD WINNERS — 4 STAR RATED HOTELS
BERLSREEHS Organiser E &
Forbes Travel Guide
ARINA CLUB OUTSTANDING GUEST REVIEW SCORE 4.6 OUT OF 5
Organiser = it
Hotels.com
5 GOLD ANCHORS AWARD
Organiser E3#48 HOLIDAYCHECK 2016 SCORE 5.3 OUT OF 6

The Yacht Harbour Association

Organiser E #i#tE
HolidayCheck

HEALTH & CARE GROUP LIMITED

BEREEEESR AT 2016 GUEST REVIEW AWARDS
Organiser E &
“CARING COMPANY” LOGO Booking.com
[ERREAIE IZE
Organiser E P NOW TRAVEL ASIA AWARDS 2016
The Hong Kong Council of Social Service ~ASIA’S TO'\’ DESIGN HOTELS
ERLEREHS Organiser R

NOW Travel Asia magazine

T, T

STAR AWARD WINNERS — 4 STAR RATED SPAS
Organiser = it

Forbes Travel Guide

THAILAND TATLER BEST RESTAURANTS 2017
Organiser E &
Thailand Tatler magazine

TRUSTED BRAND 2016 AND 2017

— GOLD AWARD IN THE AMBULATORY/
MULTI-SPECIALTY CLINIC CATEGORY

Organiser i #i8

Reader's Digest magazine

TOP 30 IN TOP TABLES 2017 BANGKOK
Organiser it #tE
BK Magazine

EREEAREEERA g8 3



ABOUT HKR INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
BREEBEEFEFEEBR QA

OUR VISION, MISSION & VALUES
EMAWESR - EoNEESR

VISION &=

To be the pioneer of innovative living space
MEALTE BlEEZERE

N"SS|0N Tﬁﬁ—ﬁ We strive to creatg a healthy,lstyllish angl distinctive living experience through
teamwork and passionate pursuit of innovation and excellence
BB - AT RSE - ST BEAXN  BHEEEERER
VALUES Tgfﬁé@ﬁ PIONEER RESPECT N INNOVATIQN
Break new grounds Value the individual and Think outside the box
_— PRIZDE HEBR 3 —~+ cherish our environment - REATAE)
BAEL
INTEGRITY DEVOTION EXCELLENCE
Uphold high ethical Be committed and Consistency in the pursuit
standards passionate -I— of our quality standards
BFl(E M 3 IERESE
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COMPANY HISTORY

=3 =
/L\EJER

In 1977, the family of Dr CHA Chi Ming, the late founder and
chairman of the Group, acquired the equity interest of Hong
Kong Resort Company Limited (‘Hong Kong Resort”) which is the
registered owner and developer of Discovery Bay on Lantau Island.
The shares of Hong Kong Resort and the other Group company
were once listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) in 1987 and in 1988 and 1989 respectively.
During the years 1988 and 1989, the Group underwent a series
of reorganisation and scheme of arrangement and formed HKR
International Limited (“HKRI” or the “Company”) (Stock Code:
00480) in May 1989 as its new listed holding company carrying out
principally real estate development and other related businesses.

Today, HKRI has diversified interests in real estate development
and investment, property management, luxury hotels and serviced
apartments, healthcare services and other investments in Hong
Kong, mainland China and Asia.

SEERAPBAREIFEESERB L 2REKERN
1977 AR RERKNE LB ENES
BEBRAG([EAEE]) 2 RAES - &
% BEAFHEEENS —RAFINEG -
D RIR1987 1988 E 1989 F E BB AR H
FrAER AR ([HAFT]) £ - /£1988% 1989
FHM  £EETT ERZEAR MR
£ - 19895 A EA K &SR & E
BRAB([EBEZERRE |k AR2F]])(’H
5% 1 00480) - WK AEE 2 EZERA
B BEETREFEAMEREMMARER -

FEEMEBRARERE - PEAM LTI
EZTUCES  BRUEERNLRE  WEE
2 REREEMRBAEE  BERERE R
HiiREIRA o

BERAXEREEERAA FH



SIGNATURE PROJECTS
EREMWELIEE

HONG KONG & &
DISCOVERY BAY 51 =&

Approx. Total GFA #EHEmEELN

1,006,000m?

Located on Lantau Island, Discovery Bay is the
Group's flagship project comprising garden
houses, low-, mid- and high-rise developments, a
27-hole golf course, a marina, two recreation clubs,
a manmade beach, a resort hotel, two shopping
malls and a number of international schools.

MAINLAND CHINA A ] Ay 3
— SHANGHAI L&

HKRI TAIKOO HUI 5 3 X 2 B

Approx. Total GFA
HIREEELD

322,000m?

NARBILWHSEREENEREES  BEREE Located in Jing’an District, Shanghai,
BIE KB SEYNE 27ESEAIRE - FE / HKRI Taikoo Hui is a world-class
g MEGH  AEDE  EREE  mEBYE mixed-use development comprising

S REEERER o two premium Grade-A office towers,

two boutique hotels and a serviced

apartment building and a lifestyle
HONG KONG &8 shopping mall.

AUBERGE DISCOVERY BAY HONG KONG
A DY

No. of Rooms EBEH  Approx. Total GFA ZEHEEEL

325 26,000m?

Auberge Discovery Bay Hong Kong, the resort hotel
on the waterfront of Yi Pak Bay, comprises 325
rooms and suites and a 16-metre tall picture-perfect
White Chapel ideal for wedding.

UREBHZEMNEENLEZHR
RFEERRER  BRMEESER
FPLE - MRB@BEEN—EBEE
XOBR—ERSEYH O

MAINLAND CHINA A B (A3t
— JIAXING = 2

CITY ONE & /& S £ {42 &

Approx. Total GFA #IZEEEL

Z
MAINLAND CHINA FR B () itz 63,000m
- HANGZHOU ﬁ’J‘N (plus approx. 30,000m? basement carpark)

(5=H#I30,000F 75 K EFE)

Oasis One ?}#ﬂ%ﬁ@ City One is the first ever residential

Approx. Total GFA #ZHEEEL el epveleipeel [0y &l I [Ketg-
based developer in Jiaxing City,

BRBSEEEMR =B - E30H/ERA325H
EENER MLHE16XE  LEXSMNBEAR
B RETEBNRES -

57,500/772 Zhejiang Province. Located at the
Oasis One is a low-density residential project centre of the international business
with a total GFA of approximately 61,600 square district, it comprises seven 18-storey
metres in Zhejiang Hangzhou Future Sci-Tech City. apartment blocks, one nine-storey
Around 400 units, including low-rise apartments duplex-on-duplex apartment block
and villas, will be provided. and 20 garden houses.
BEREEBENENTIAMARRRE Y - BEEE BEEEEHARESTIEAZETEE
HEEHN61,600F T KNEREXTEEE - BRMEK RABERREEHENEEEER
400fEMEE N E R BIZEEN - / REBEEERL - ZBEHBLEIE18
BekE - —EABSNERERXY
¥ R20EETEEBIZAM o
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: — Mainland China = Bl pyits i
Sl T \ N
"\ 1&

Hong Kong &%

"

;,k

Thailand %

v

THAILAND Z:E]
— BANGKOK E2&

THE SUKHOTHAI RESIDENCES

Approx. Total GFA #iZHEEEL

81,000m?

Located next to The Sukhothai Bangkok on South Sathorn
Road, The Sukhothai Residences is a 41-storey ultra-luxury
condominium tower comprising a total of 196 residential
units.

The Sukhothai Residences fi 7 South Sathorn Road £ #
The Sukhothai Bangkok i » R —EES41E - Hi#
196EBENHNBRZEAEXNFTEKRE °

THAILAND =[]
— BANGKOK 24

THE SUKHOTHAI BANGKOK

No. of Rooms EE(H Approx. Total GFA ZEHEEEL

210 40,400m?

The Sukhothai Bangkok is a world-renowned and award-
winning hotel in Central Bangkok, highly regarded by
international travellers for its unparalleled services and
facilities.

R EBATH LK The Sukhothai BangkokiB /&t HAE
BREY  HEFHRERRIEFEZRRREHRS -

JAPAN B 7
— TOKYO 5%

PROUD ROPPONGI

Approx. Total Floor Area #AETEX

5,000m?

Situated in Roppongi, one of Tokyo’s most sought-after
addresses, the project is only steps away from the hubs
of business, culture and entertainment like Roppongi Hills
and Tokyo Midtown. The low-density luxurious residential
apartments are scheduled for completion in 2017.

ZHEURRASSEHINME 2 ——AAKE » NAEAKEH
WREFRPHEFE  EMBLEPLNEERR o KEHEK
REEBHETTNR2017FER ©

ERBLEREBARAT 2016/2017 £ 7



HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR
FEARERE

MAY B A - 2016

The Group launched sales of Proud
Roppongi, a premium residential project at
Roppongi 4-chome in Tokyo.
EEHEVAREARAET BNSKEE
I8 B Proud Roppongi °

AUGUST /\ B - 2016

HKRI Taikoo Hui obtained the occupation permit for the
shopping mall and HKRI Centre One.
WERNTENBY P ORE BB ZER O — BEES AR -

SEPTEMBER LR - 2016

The Group acquired an inpatient healthcare
facility in Manila, Philippines.
EERFREFCHB AR RIBRIKE

OCTOBER T A -2016

The Group launched 2GETHER, a residential
development project in Tuen Mun.
SEEMNAEMANESEELEERE °

8 HKR International Limited Annual Report 2016/2017



NOVEMBER +—H - 2016

The Group was awarded tenders for two government
sites in Tai Po in a joint venture with Hysan Development
Company Limited at the consideration of around
HK$3,400 million.
EEEFHEAEAR D BT REMIELR AHHBUT
T RERIE3,4008EE T -

DECEMBER +—=H - 2016

The Exchange’s mall reopened under the name of
Heping Joy City — Tianjin.
RERESBSHNIRERREMFAEHERFE
Discovery Bay has won the “Urban Design & Master Planning
Award” and “Green Development Award” for seven consecutive
years and 2GETHER received the “Seaview Landmark Building
Award” at CAPITAL and CAPITAL WEEKLY The Outstanding
Developer Awards.

IS BEE T FREREHBRBAREEH TR RARREKR
RRFECBERMARIE - EFAESESRBEFEEARE -

FEBRUARY — A - 2017

e The Group acquired Veneo Minami-Azabu, an en-bloc
residential apartment building in Minato, Tokyo.
SEEA —RIURERE X EE KR EVeneo Minami-
Azabu °

e Discovery Bay improvement works commenced.
TMSEE{TRERER -

MARCH = A -2017

e A pre-sale of first-batch units of Oasis One
was launched.
BREEBEAEMENETEE -

e An occupation permit for HKRI Centre Two of
HKRI Taikoo Hui was granted.

B R ER B EZE RO = EES ARAR o

ERBLEREBARAT 2016/2017 £ 9



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

ERE®RE
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| am delighted to share with you the 2016/2017 (the “year”) Annual
Report in respect of HKR International Limited (“HKRI” or the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”).

The Group’s turnover from continuing operations for the financial
year ended 31 March 2017 was HK$2,234.1 million, representing
a decrease of 15.6% against last year's HK$2,647.9 million. Profit
attributable to shareholders of the Company for the year was
HK$823.9 million, compared with HK$783.9 million in 2015/2016.
Earnings per share for continuing and discontinued operations
was HK61.0 cents, compared with HK58.1 cents last year. As at
31 March 2017, the net asset value attributable to shareholders of
the Company stood at HK$16,385.8 million (HK$12.1 per share),
compared with HK$16,056.3 million (HK$11.9 per share) last year.

The Board of Directors has recommended a final dividend of HK7 cents
per share for the year ended 31 March 2017 (2016: Nil) to the
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on 30 August 2017.

Overall Group performance was stable in 2016, despite a general
downturn in economic growth in Hong Kong during the year under
review.

The property market in Hong Kong rebounded during the second
quarter of 2016, boosted by rising property prices in mainland
China and a continuing desire for offshore investment.

In mainland China, economic growth dropped slightly from the
previous year, falling to 6.7%. The country’s property sales and
land prices hit a record high in 2016, and the PRC Government
responded with cooling measures late in the year, aiming to sustain
healthy property market growth.

Across Asia as a whole, economic growth remained steady.
The World Bank predicts two years of continuing resilience
throughout the region, nonetheless, the organisation also believes
risks abound, and that financial and fiscal vulnerabilities must be
addressed.

AAMRARREEZEEEXBEREEEAR A A
(BBEEBER K[ AAF]) REWNERF
(RBIEE1)2016/2017FE([FE DOFE

HE e

HZE2017F3ASTHILEH TR  SEFEL
BEK BEBA2241EEAET BEF
2,647 9B BAE TRV 15.6% c KRFE RN A
M FE(R 5 F A2823.9B & /& T 2015/2016
FERAT839EEABT - HELERERL
ey GREFA61.081 - ZF84
581781l - 20176 3A318 » NARIIREE
1EBEFER16,385.80 &8 T(FI12.178
JT) » =F 81 4516,056.3F & B T (FK11.9
BIT) °

BEESEZMMN2017FE8 A0 ZHIA A A
REMZREETREEZ2017F3ASTHIEFE
2 ARERR BER 7L (20164 ¢« ) o

REBFR - BEEBEMEELRHE - 8
EE2016FEBERNMHIBE -

e o B P (SR S AR R A0 E 500
A B - EBWETIHE NN 20165
E-FHEH -

RABEAM  EEEBRKEST% BREF
MITRE - BIRH R HE K ER2016% &
FEs#E > Bk hBERARFRL A ERE
i EERBMRMSIRELE

DNREEEFRERE - RIFERIRITE
Al BEZMNRRARKMFRGFEGE -
B ZABTRBRANFENDRER - L%
AEFERBRYEB MBI RERE

BERAXEREEERAA FH



CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
EE®RE

Discovery Bay

SUSTAINED DEVELOPMENT

Throughout the course of the year, the Group progressed with
many of its projects, including residential developments, shopping
malls and office buildings. Additionally, renovation and conversion
works were carried out, enhancing and changing different
properties.

In Hong Kong’s Discovery Bay, the six remaining Positano units
were sold. The government is handling our application to construct
additional residential developments, representing an important
expansion of the Group’s flagship resort-style project.

Projects in Hong Kong, and elsewhere, are making good progress.
Sales for 2GETHER, a residential development project in Tuen
Mun, commenced in October 2016 and enjoyed satisfactory
results despite keen competition. The La Cresta luxury residential
development received pre-sale consent approval in December 2016
and should be finished by the end of this year. The Kap Pin Long
project in Sai Kung is now completed. The Group also won tenders
for two government sites in Tai Po at the consideration of around
HK$3,400 million during the year; the sites will be developed into
luxurious low-density residential developments through a 40:60
joint venture with Hysan Development Company Limited. In
addition, refurbishment works for our commercial property in Tsuen
Wan, CDW Building, are scheduled for completion in 2017.

In Shanghai, HKRI Taikoo Hui, an integrated mixed-use
development that is also the Group’s flagship project in mainland
China, received occupation permits at the end of August 2016 and
in March 2017. HKRI Centre One is now home to a large number of
multinational and key domestic tenants, and its shopping mall has
been welcoming visitors since May 2017. Sales of apartments and
villas in the Group’s residential projects in mainland China, including
Qasis One and City One, have gone very well.

17 HKR International Limited Annual Report 2016/2017

HKRI Taikoo Hui # 3 X B

EI:—J' =1

FRN - EEZEEEHNGER  EPEERE
ERRIEE - BYPORBQE o 1N ZIE
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MR —F -
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WHTER2016F 12 A ML TEEEIEREE -
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T SEERBEFANURENS 4008 EET
BB A RIBOBT LM - SEFEFIE
BEBRARGIEREZEAAEEERE
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The Sukhothai Bang

In Japan, we are teaming up with a local partner on a premium
residential project, Proud Roppongi, and nearly all of its units have
been sold. In addition, we have four other investment properties in
Tokyo, all of which enjoy high occupancy rates. Other investment
properties in Asia continued generating stable rental income for the
Group.

Our hospitality operations, Auberge Discovery Bay Hong Kong and
The Sukhothai Bangkok, experienced improved occupancy rates
and received multiple accolades for outstanding services.

OUTLOOK

Changes in the local and global economy, as well as international
political developments, make the future hard to predict. As we enter
our 40 year in the property market, we know there will be difficult
times ahead, but with the Group’s healthy performance, talented
colleagues and the opening of HKRI Taikoo Hui in Shanghai, which
is expected to generate solid rental income, we feel positive about
the long-term outlook.

APPRECIATION

Notwithstanding the challenges throughout the year, the Group
performed well, due in great part to the Board of Directors, who |
would like to thank for all they do. Their wisdom and support is our
most valuable resource and paired with the dedication, hard work
and ingenuity of our management and staff, provides everything
needed for success.

CHA Mou Sing Payson
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 June 2017

Dasis One & /& E ¥ 8 &

RER  BMEEZHAERHERSHET
18 B Proud Roppongi @ %8 B K85 B 4L
BEH o b RPN R AMMIERE Y
FESHEAR - UREMNNEMIEENERSE
AEETREBTHNHESUWA -

WSS E - BAGSE RS & The Sukhothai
BangkokM) AT R EFTEkE - EBERBEE
JERRES o

R

AR 2 IREE B2 S - 0 L BERBUA %
& (EARREELATRR - SFERBIVEFHED
BREAF  EARKEEE D RE - B
BRESERENEBGRR - EBFNET UK
PEEZENEEREREABHIIBENES
WA HPERENRIBFEBREE -

L]

BERESARBEE SENELEE
O OEEREENE - AASHNESSH
LS - EEeNEE R RERMNEEEN
EE NLRMEEERS B TRARE 8
NYHBREESE - 8 R R -
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IMIANAGING DIRECTOR’S

OPERATIONS REVIEW
2 I A AT 2 K O] R

Mr CHA Mou Zing Victor

Deputy Chairman & Managing Director

BEERESALE

B TE



Group performance was healthy throughout the year. However,
global economic and political developments presented serious
challenges due to the impact of Brexit and the American
presidential election, after which the federal funds rate was
increased to a range of 0.50% to 0.75% in December 2016.
Nevertheless, mortgage rates in Hong Kong remained at historically
low levels.

During the year, mainland China’s economy grew at a modest
pace. In spite of that, tier 1 and 2 cities across the country saw
continuing property price growth, while lower tier cities faced
the pressure to mitigate oversupply. In October 2016, the PRC
Government began imposing cooling and regulating measures to
control the real estate bubble, slowing the pace of property price
hikes to maintain a healthy and sustainable market growth.

In Hong Kong, economy growth moderated to 1.9% in 2016
and the residential property market consolidated early in the
year. Prices rebounded during the second quarter due to rising
property prices in mainland cities, concerns over a weakening
RMB and the growing trend to diversify wealth through offshore
investment. Towards the end of the year, the HKSAR Government
raised ad valorem stamp duty to a flat rate of 15%, with specified
exemptions to curb speculator demand. As a result, the average
number of secondary market transactions fell by roughly 30% in the
subsequent two months, and primary market transactions declined
in December.

Despite the challenging environment during the year, our financial
strength allowed the Group to continue looking for investment
opportunities across Asia. We were awarded tenders for two new
plots of land in Hong Kong and continued to generate revenue from
existing projects while completing new ones and scouting for future
opportunities. In addition, we enhanced our presence in mainland
China, Thailand and Japan, while our healthcare business also
grew.

SE2FRABERE - Al - SEBHERER
RGBT E - 2IRBUA R ERERIIERL
B o ERRAANEE  BAESFERERARN
2016F 123 EFAEN F0.50%E0.75% T
B BBEBRERDENRE LKA -

FR - BAFEAMEISRBENE B2
Bl— MM ERFE LR EMm
BIDAEREAEGTE N - PEIBUTE2016F10
AREEAEEEUIERIET AR - I E
ERMTE  #REEEATFENTISEER

2016%F ' BEALBERSHNEET1.9% &
EMETHBURFIGE—TER  ARAM
PEBR LR  HARBERENESE - LWEE
BEERBRRESKRVENBSE EASHA
= MEEERE-FTEEHMETF - FK A
BIEREENT K  BEBRBTIESEED
ERME15%  ABKERESR - Hit - =
FUEMSHFHIR L EREEEMREAR TELY
30%  M—FWEMBFHIRZETMN128
EFTEE »

EEFAREEK  BRENTBENERM
BUESMERFBESIRERS - HMES
BREMEHR T - BRIRAEBEETRK
@ BPITBEATEAFIER - AT EREARR
MBEREE - I RFE—TBRRPER
i - FE R BARNER - MARFINBEEREE
BIEREER -
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’S OPERATIONS REVIEW
EERREXRKOE

DB Plaza i = E 5

Discovery Bay il = &

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT

Property development and investment continue to be the Group’s
core business sectors. At every turn, we adhere to high standards
of professionalism and quality, allowing us to create both value and
revenue. A carefully-managed and diverse portfolio of investment
properties in Hong Kong, mainland China and other parts of Asia
provides steady sales and rental income.

Hong Kong
Discovery Bay

The six remaining units at Positano were sold during the year. This
generated proceeds of around HK$176 million and total sales
proceeds for the entire phase exceeded HK$2,600 million.

To further enhance facilities for residents, our subsidiary, Hong
Kong Resort Company Limited, is upgrading the Discovery Bay
bus terminus and the DB Plaza retail podium. Construction has
commenced and is scheduled for completion in 2019. Meanwhile,
the government is processing our application for permission to
build new residential developments in Discovery Bay.

The Group holds a 50% interest in the Discovery Bay development.
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La Cresta, Sha Tin

La Cresta, a 50:50 joint venture development between the Group
and Nan Fung Development Limited, consists of three high-end
residential towers and a number of villas with a total gross floor
area (“GFA”) of approximately 12,500 square metres. The project
obtained pre-sale consent approval in December 2016 and is
expected to be completed by the end of 2017.

2GETHER, Tuen Mun

The residential development project 2GETHER comprises a tower
of premium apartments and a retail podium with a total GFA of
approximately 12,300 square metres. The project was launched in
October 2016, and over 78% of the units were sold as at 31 March
2017. It is scheduled for completion at the end of 2017.

The Group owns a 75% interest in the development.
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Kap Pin Long Project FF 32 BAIE B

MANAGING DIRECTOR’S OPERATIONS REVIEW
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Kap Pin Long Project, Sai Kung

The Kap Pin Long project, which comprises a luxurious house and
garden with a total GFA of approximately 350 square metres, was
completed in the second half of 2016.

Tai Po Town Lots Nos. 223 and 229

In November 2016, the Group was awarded tenders for two
government sites in Tai Po at the consideration of close to
HK$3,400 million. The land will be developed into a luxurious low-
density residential development. It is scheduled to complete in
2021.

The project is a joint venture development between the Group and
Hysan Development Company Limited. The Group owns a 40%
interest in the development.

DB Plaza and DB North Plaza, Discovery Bay

As at 31 March 2017, DB Plaza and DB North Plaza continued to
generate steady rental income and achieved respective occupancy
rates of 95% and 93%.

The Group holds a 50% interest in both DB Plaza and DB North
Plaza.
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DB North Plaza Tai

CDW Building, Tsuen Wan

Phase 1 of refurbishment works for CDW Building, which comprises
812, a seven-storey retail podium, and office space on floors 10
to 17, was completed during the year. The response has been
encouraging and nearly 90% of the enhanced floor area is under
lease. The refurbishment and handover of the Phase 2 premises
are expected to be completed in the first half of 2017.

West Gate Tower, Cheung Sha Wan

During the year, West Gate Tower achieved an average occupancy
rate of 95%, generating stable rental income for the Group.

Tuen Mun Central Square Public Car Park, Tuen Mun

The 325 parking spaces in Tuen Mun Central Square continued to
generate satisfactory rental income.
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HKRI Taikoo Hui B3 X

MANAGING DIRECTOR’S OPERATIONS REVIEW
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Mainland China
HKRI Taikoo Hui, Shanghai

HKRI Taikoo Hui is one of Shanghai’s most prestigious and
sought-after commercial properties. The complex has a total
GFA of approximately 322,000 square metres, including two
premium Grade A office towers (HKRI Centres One and Two), two
boutique hotels and a serviced apartment building, and a high-
end shopping mall with extensive parking facilities. The project met
a key milestone when it received the occupation permit for Phase
1, which includes the shopping mall and HKRI Centre One, in late
August 2016. On 1 March 2017, the occupation permit for Phase 2,
which covers HKRI Centre Two, was granted.

Multinational and key domestic tenants started to move into
HKRI Centre One since late 2016. By the end of March 2017, the
occupancy rate reached 66%, and the commitment rate reached
75%. At the same time, tenants began taking possession of their
respective spaces in HKRI Centre Two from April 2017, which
recorded a pre-commitment rate of more than 50%.

The shopping mall, which has a commitment rate exceeding 90%,
held a soft opening celebration in early May 2017.

The Group holds a 50% interest in HKRI Taikoo Hui.
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Oasis One &8 F %18 E

Riviera BE IR

City One, Jiaxing City, Zhejiang Province

City One comprises 577 apartment units and 20 villas with a total
GFA of approximately 83,000 square metres. As at 31 March 2017,
98% of units were sold.

Riviera One, Jiaxing City, Zhejiang Province

With a total GFA of approximately 102,000 square metres, Riviera
One is a prime residential project adjacent to City One in Jiaxing
City. Site construction works commenced in July 2016, after the
statutory submission stage of the approval process was completed.
This luxurious project will provide approximately 700 low-rise
and high-rise apartment units. A pre-sale of first-batch units is
scheduled to take place in the third quarter of 2017.

Oasis One, Hangzhou City, Zhejiang Province

Situated in Zhejiang Hangzhou Future Sci-Tech City, Oasis One is
a low-density residential project with a total GFA of approximately
61,600 square metres. Around 400 units, including low-rise
apartments and villas, will be provided. Construction works began
in May 2016, following the completion of the statutory submission
stage of the approval process. A pre-sale of first-batch units kick-
started in March 2017, and over 70% of the launched units were
sold by the end of the month.

P RTE S B

BRERMREGHREHTTEABEN R
20 R E - WIZE EARAI /383,000°F 7K °
BZE201743A31H - 98% B EEH

T BETE AR EIBE

BB EEIZREQERMMEL102,000F 5
X BREMA—EEEFEEE H BHBE
BEEMAE - HE B RNIRRATEFNE
HEPEER - WH20164F7 ARIAEN T - THE &K
BBRENTOREEBRREREFEEN -
BB BN 201 7TEE=FFEITHEE -

T B MM N ESELBE

BB FEERBBE L BTN ARREIE - A
BIBEE B 61,600 F 5 KNEREEEE
B - BIREO400EEKELAE MFIEEN - H
BEETARREEEFNEMNREE  LER
2016F5 AMMKEN T - BHLERIER201743
RETEE  HESAK  BI70%HESHEME
B -

EEREEREEARAT 200200 &8 )]



MANAGING DIRECTOR’S OPERATIONS REVIEW

EERREXRKOE

The Exchange EE E35

The Exchange, Tianjin

The Group owns 15% of The Exchange, an investment property
in Tianjin with a total GFA of over 152,000 square metres. During
the year, the complex’s two office towers and Hotel Nikko Tianjin
maintained occupancy rates of 93% and 66% respectively, and
continued to generate stable rental income. The Exchange’s mall
reopened in December 2016 under the name of Heping Joy City —
Tianjin, with an occupancy rate exceeding 85%. At present, it is a
popular destination for young shoppers.

Elite House, Shanghai

This 30-storey residential building is located in Shanghai’s
Changning District, close to Zhongshan Park. It comprises 120
units and has a total GFA of approximately 21,700 square metres.
The property achieved an occupancy rate of nearly 90% during the
year, and the rental income remained stable. In the second half of
2017, it will be further upgraded and prepared for a strata title sale.

Thailand
The Sukhothai Residences, Bangkok

This luxury condominium tower, located on Sathorn Road, is a
leader in Bangkok’s high-end residential market. Over 95% of its
196 units have been sold and handed over.

77 HKR International Limited Annual Report 2015/2017

The Sukhothai Residences

REREES
EERESAEENKEFBIS%ERNIRE
Y QRIETE A& 152,000 5 K o [
FA - MERIERREBMBIE DRI
BRI AEER  FELEEE
ERETHHES A  REESHESTHE
R2016F 12 A LAKRER F KA 2 % E 5 FH
¥ HAXRHBIASS%  FAXFEEEENT
EﬁEo

B ILMIE
FILgHIL A —EESOENTFERE @ &
EREEBRER - MAEFRILAER - BEERA
120fE N - BIEEMEIEL21,700F K o IR
CEFTA - ZWEMNHHAERFTI% - el
ANERTBTE - ZWEBFR2017F T ¥ FiE—
BHENE  WEPBHE -

=

£ A The Sukhothai Residences

It SN T KB AL TSR 2 A Sathorn Road -
EESHEEMSEEBLMA - HE R
1961EEN » EPBBIS%E EH BT -



Rama 3 Road Proje

Wireless Road Project, Bangkok

The Group’s freehold land on Bangkok’s Wireless Road covers a
site area of approximately 12,600 square metres. Master planning
is currently underway, and the Group holds a 49% interest in this
project.

Rama 3 Road Project, Yannawa District, Bangkok

The project is located at Rama 3 Road by the Chaophraya River
in the Bang Phongphang Subdistrict, which is part of Bangkok’s
Yannawa District, and will provide around 1,500 residential units.
The design of the development is currently in progress and
construction will start in 2018.

Japan
Proud Roppongi, Tokyo

The Group is working with Nomura Real Estate Development Co.,
Ltd. to develop Proud Roppongi, a premium residential project at
Roppongi 4-chome in Tokyo. Construction of the main building is
underway and completion is expected by the end of 2017. A sale of
the project was launched in May 2016 and 91% of the units were
sold as at 31 March 2017.

The Group holds a 51% interest in the project.

Niseko Project, Hokkaido

The Group holds residential plots at Niseko, close to the Niseko
Annupuri ski area in Hokkaido. The plots have a total site area of
approximately 60,000 square metres and serve as a land bank.

Proud Roppongi
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Souei Park Haraj
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Discovery Bay Golf Club 16 =& SR AR

Investment Properties in Tokyo

In February 2017, the Group acquired a new investment property,
Veneo Minami-Azabu, an en-bloc residential apartment building in
Minato with four units. The property achieved an occupancy rate of
100% as at 31 March 2017. Also, three other properties owned by
the Group in Tokyo: Horizon Place Akasaka, a high-rise residential
block; Graphio Nishi-Shinjuku, a centrally-located office building;
and Souei Park Harajuku, an en-bloc residential apartment building
in Shibuya, achieved respective occupancy rates of 92%, 100%
and 92%.

SERVICES PROVIDED

Discovery Bay Golf Club, Discovery Bay Marina Club, Discovery
Bay Recreation Club and Club Siena are currently undergoing
various upgrades to provide members and guests with enhanced
facilities and services. Nonetheless, they showed satisfactory
results during the year.

The Group’s subsidiaries operate various transportation services in
Discovery Bay, including ferry, land transport and tunnel. Patronage
of ferry services decreased during the year, especially after the
closure of the Discovery Bay bus terminus in late February 2017.
However, use of the external bus service rose steadily, and tunnel
throughput remained stable. Still, shortage in staff and rising labour
costs pose considerable challenges to these services.
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The Sukhothai Bangkok

Auberge Discovery Bay Hong Kong &

The Group’s property management service companies in Discovery
Bay, and elsewhere in Hong Kong, continued smooth operations
during the year.

The Group holds a 50% interest in these Discovery Bay service
providers.

HOSPITALITY
Hong Kong
Auberge Discovery Bay Hong Kong

Visitor arrivals had been sluggish in 2016, yet the figures started to
pick up in 2017. Auberge Discovery Bay Hong Kong maintained
an average occupancy rate of 78% throughout the year. The hotel
also received several honours from the travel and leisure industry,
including the “Most Liked Romantic Venue” award from Wedding
Message magazine.

The Group holds a 50% interest in Auberge Discovery Bay Hong
Kong.

Thailand
The Sukhothai Bangkok

The average occupancy rate of The Sukhothai Bangkok for the year
was 62%, and the hotel was named one of the “Asia’s Top Design
Hotels” by NOW Travel Asia magazine in 2016. In addition, its
popular ltalian eatery, La Scala, was named one of the “Top Tables
in Bangkok” by BK Magazine in March 2017.
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HEALTHCARE

GenRx Holdings Limited (“GenRx”), the Group’s wholly-owned
subsidiary, operates a comprehensive healthcare service network. It
comprises a cancer centre, diabetic and cardiovascular centres, an
imaging facility, dental clinics, Chinese medicine outlets and multi-
specialty outpatient centres in Hong Kong, Macau and Manila.

During the year, business performance in the Hong Kong and
Macau markets continued to show improvement as a result of
enhanced operational efficiency. In the Philippines, Healthway
Medical, the brand name that GenRx operates under, won the
2017 “Gold Award — Trusted Brand in the Ambulatory/Multi-
Specialty Clinic Category” from Reader’s Digest magazine. This
marked the fifth consecutive year it has received this honour.
Healthway Medical also acquired an inpatient healthcare facility in
September 2016, marking an important step in its quest to fully
develop its quality ambulatory and multi-specialty healthcare service
delivery.

With the exception of dental clinics as well as diabetic and
cardiovascular centres which involve third-party interests of 43%
and 20% respectively, businesses under the GenRx umbrella are
wholly-owned by the Group.
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INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

The Group has invested in the latest information technology to
improve operational efficiency. A new archival system was acquired
to preserve important historical records.

In the Philippines, a new human resources information system
provides enhanced services to employees and enables integration
with clinic operation systems. In addition, a new Radiology
Information System (RIS-PACS) has been implemented, thereby
reducing turnaround time for imaging services while improving
workflow through machine integration.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (“CSR”)

HKRI remains undeterred in our CSR journey despite the
challenging global economic climate and local property market in
2016. We continued our commitment to incorporating sustainability
principles into our business operations and issued our second
standalone Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”)
Report during the year. The report provides a full account of our
ESG-related initiatives, policies and performance in Hong Kong
throughout the financial year. Stakeholders who are interested in
HKRI's social and environmental performance may refer to our

online £SG Bepor.
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Community Support

HKRI prioritises sustainability in all of our CSR endeavours and
attaches great importance to improving the lives of children and the
elderly. In March 2017, The Hong Kong Council of Social Service
recognised our contributions with the “10 Years Plus Caring
Company” logo.

During the year, the HKRI Care & Share corporate volunteer team
partnered with various NGOs to organise volunteer activities, and
we also funded community events under the Discovery Bay’s
Love.Together@DB programme. In December 2016, our volunteer
team won the “Silver Award for Volunteer Service” from the Social
Welfare Department of Hong Kong.

HKRI’s passion for art and culture led to several initiatives during
the year, including a pop art silk-screen printing workshop for
underprivileged children and a stool-making programme for our
colleagues. In February and March 2017, we supported the 45t
Hong Kong Arts Festival and sponsored a performance by Vasily
Petrenko and the Oslo Philharmonic.
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Environmental Policies and Performance

Sustainability is a core guiding principle of our business operations.
Most of our properties under development are awarded provisional
BEAM Plus certification and our contractors are encouraged to
implement a waste management plan by recycling and reusing inert
materials. In addition, the Group strongly supports the establishment
of recycling collection facilities at our commercial and residential
properties. Through these efforts and the efficient use of resources,
the Group actively manages and minimises the generation of
emissions and waste from our business activities.

To avoid environmental contamination and protect human health,
our healthcare operation strictly implements and enforces protocols
for handling clinical waste in accordance with the Waste Disposal
Ordinance (Cap. 354).
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Human Resources

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had a total of 2,440 employees
in Hong Kong and overseas. We maintain our focus on providing a
supportive work environment and enhancing human capital through
the attraction of new talent, as well as employee retention and
development.

The Group offers a broad range of staff training and development
opportunities through the HKRI Employees Learning & Development
Faculty, which was established in May 2016. It allows the Group to
provide colleagues with valuable learning opportunities, improving
employee satisfaction while driving personal growth and enhancing
our overall performance.

To promote HKRI's employer branding and nurture new talent, the
Group launched our first summer internship programme in June
2016. The ten-week initiative attracted 15 students from local
universities and tertiary institutes, and all participants enjoyed a
combination of educational activities and work experience.
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Customers

The Group takes pride in providing quality services and ensuring
customer satisfaction. In our property management operation,
various communication channels allow our residents in Discovery
Bay to give feedback and suggestions. Our healthcare division
operates in accordance with established guidelines for general
nursing and treatment to maintain consistency and standards.

When upgrading the Discovery Bay bus terminus and shopping
arcade, we enhanced our communication channels to provide
regular updates to the stakeholders before and after the closure of
the bus terminus.

Suppliers

The Group enjoys a strong, collaborative and trusting partnership
with our broad network of suppliers and contractors. Environmental
criteria are taken into consideration during our procurement
process. We also encourage our suppliers and contractors to
enhance their green practices, minimise environmental impact
arising from projects and exercise sound governance of supply
chain management. The Group also upholds high ethical standards
and fair competition practices throughout the supplier selection
process. Monitoring and management controls are in place to
detect and prevent bribery, fraud and other forms of malpractice
during the procurement and tendering processes.

Compliance with Relevant Laws and Regulations Significantly
Impacting Business

During the year under review, there were no recorded cases of
non-compliance with relevant standards, laws and regulations
regarding occupational health and safety, the environment and data
privacy.
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Discovery Bay 1=

OUTLOOK

As we celebrate the Group’s 40t anniversary in the property field,
we are optimistic about the future, but yet there are still many
uncertainties and challenges. These include global economic and
political developments, as well as trends and changes in different
markets where the Group operates. Nevertheless, demand is
expected to rise and we will move ahead with our projects.

HKRI will continue to maintain balanced income across different
business operations, particularly property sales and rental revenue.
Over the years, we have strategically diversified our portfolio and
land banks across Asia to mitigate risk. We will continue in this vein,
focusing on countries with fewer relevant restrictions, allowing for
more flexibility.

Our property interests are subject to various risks, including
evolving demand, increased competition and the impact brought
by changes in the Chinese and global economies. Changes in
the HKSAR Government, cooling measures and additional new
housing units will also have an effect, as will shifts in land supply
and an influx of new developers from mainland China and Hong
Kong. The PRC Government’s cautious attitude towards outbound
investments is also likely to have a significant impact. However,
policies are in place to help counteract these issues and steady
economic development is predicted over the long term.
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Oasis One FEEXEE

In 2017, HKRI will debut various new projects in Hong Kong
and mainland China, including residential and commercial
developments. We will also build on our skills and abilities, leverage
our past experiences to achieve future success and search for new
ways to enhance efficiency and increase the value of our properties.
By unleashing our creativity and thinking out of the box, we hope to
achieve more.

Finally, | would like to thank our Board of Directors for their advice
and guidance throughout the year. In addition, | must extend my
gratitude to our staff, customers and business partners; without
their unwavering dedication and encouragement, we could not
succeed. The support of our shareholders is also proved to be
incredibly valuable and is deeply appreciated.

CHA Mou Zing Victor
Deputy Chairman & Managing Director

Hong Kong, 21 June 2017
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BoARD OF DIRECTORS
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Mr CHA Mou Sing Payson

BB L

Chairman

xfE Mr CHA Mou Zing Victor
BB EE
Deputy Chairman & Managing Director
BIEERESRLE

Mr CHUNG Sam Tin Abraham The Honourable

SN e pivted Ronald Joseph ARCULLI
Executive Director BEEEELE
HITES Mr TANG Moon Wah Non-executive Director
BmE L FEHITES
Executive Director
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
EECEE

CHAIRMAN = f&

Mr CHA Mou Sing Payson s, pssc (ons), aged 74, was appointed Executive Director and the Chairman
in 1989 and 2007 respectively. He is also the Chairman of the Nomination Committee and a director of some
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr CHA has over 45 years extensive experience in property development and
investment. He is the chairman and non-executive director (“NED”) of Hanison Construction Holdings Limited
(“Hanison”), executive chairman of Mingly Corporation (“Mingly”), independent non-executive director (“INED”)
of each of New World Development Company Limited (“NWD”), Eagle Asset Management (CP) Limited being
manager of Champion Real Estate Investment Trust (“CREIT”) and Hongkong International Theme Parks Limited.
He was also appointed as the INED of Munsun Capital Group Limited (“Munsun”) (formerly known as China
Precious Metal Resources Holdings Co., Ltd.) on 3 October 2016 and subsequently resigned on 23 December
2016. Hanison, NWD, CREIT and Munsun are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Mr CHA is a member of One Country Two Systems Research Institute Limited, governing board
member of China-United States Exchange Foundation, board member of the Real Estate Developers Association
of Hong Kong, the chairman of Qiu Shi Science & Technologies Foundation (“Qiu Shi Foundation”), trustee of Sang
Ma Trust Fund (“Sang Ma”) and honorary trustee of Oregon State University Foundation. He is a sibling to Ms
Madeline WONG, Mr Victor CHA and Mr Johnson CHA. Mr CHA is also a director of CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited
(“CCM Trust”) and LBJ Regents Limited (“LBJ Regents”), both are substantial shareholders of the Company within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance and together whose interests in the Company
represent the substantial interests of the Cha Family in the Company.
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DEPUTY CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR Bl X EHES 4 KE

Mr CHA Mou Zing Victor z4 wsa, aged 67, was appointed Executive Director, the Managing
Director and the Deputy Chairman in 1989, 2001 and 2007 respectively. He is a member of the Remuneration
Committee and director of some subsidiaries of the Company. Mr CHA is responsible for the overall and day-
to-day management of the Group. He has over 35 years extensive experience in real estate development and
textile manufacturing. Mr CHA is an INED of SOHO China Limited, alternate INED of NWD, both companies are
listed on the Stock Exchange, and NED of Mingly. He is the chairman of each of the Hong Kong-Japan Business
Co-operation Committee of Hong Kong Trade Development Council and Hong Kong Arts Festival Society Limited.
Mr CHA is also a member of the board of trustees of The Better Hong Kong Foundation (“BHKF”) and trustee of
Sang Ma. He is a sibling to Ms Madeline WONG, Mr Payson CHA and Mr Johnson CHA.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS #17& %=

Mr CHUNG Sam Tin Abraham rcps, aged 71, was appointed Executive Director in 1994 and is also
a director of some subsidiaries of the Company. He has been serving in the Group since 1978 and is now the
head of finance and group operations overseeing the Group’s finance, accounting, tax, insurance, information
technology functions, all operating units in Discovery Bay and hospitality operation. Mr CHUNG is a certified public
accountant, fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and associate
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. He has over 40 years extensive experience in
financial management and property development in Hong Kong.
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Mr TANG Moon Wah sa jarch studies), Barcn, aged 63, was appointed Executive Director in December 2004
and is also a director of some subsidiaries of the Company. He has been serving in the Group since 1985 and is
now the head of group projects responsible for project management of real estate development in Hong Kong,
the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) and Asia-Pacific and for oversight of master planning, conceptual and
major designs and technical advice on acquisitions. Mr TANG has over 38 years extensive experience in property
development. He is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Architects and has been the Authorised Person
and Registered Architect since 1982 and 1991 respectively.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
EECZERE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS 3E#{17& =

The Honourable Ronald Joseph ARCULLI sy, cvo, ass, ose Jp, aged 78, joined the Board in
1989 and was re-designated as Non-executive Director in June 2005. He is a senior partner of King & Wood
Mallesons. Mr ARCULLI is an INED of Hang Lung Properties Limited, NED of Sino Hotels (Holdings) Limited, Sino
Land Company Limited, Tsim Sha Tsui Properties Limited, HK Electric Investments Manager Limited (as trustee-
manager of HK Electric Investments) and HK Electric Investments Limited. He retired as an INED of SCMP Group
Limited (renamed as Armada Holdings Limited on 5 April 2016 and subsequently as Great Wall Pan Asia Holdings
Limited on 8 December 2016) in June 2014. He also ceased as a NED of each of Power Assets Holdings Limited
and Hutchison Harbour Ring Limited (renamed as China Oceanwide Holdings Limited on 29 December 2014) in
January and December 2014 respectively. Save for HK Electric Investments Manager Limited, all the aforesaid
companies are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr ARCULLI also holds directorships in other public and private
companies in Hong Kong and overseas. He is now the chairman of FWD Group, an honorary fellow of Hong Kong
Securities and Investment Institute and vice patron and former directors committee member of The Community
Chest of Hong Kong. Mr ARCULLI is also a board member and the vice-chairman of the board of The West
Kowloon Cultural District Authority and chairs its executive committee and development committee.

EEE LY can ovo es o8 Jp 785 - R1989EMAR AR EE S « TR200546 A BEAINITE
E-HASMEMELFNEFEBA EFBAFABRBEGRARZEE  YAEMEE(EE)EARRD
A EMEBEBERAR AP HBEEEBARAT  BEENREEEABRAR(BEENRESTA K
B)RBEBENREBRARIZIENE - HHR2014F6 A REMEFRHREEFR AR (R2016F4A5HKE A
TR AR AR - BEER2016F 12 ASHR B ARBIREERER AR BE 2B o K15 BIR20145 1
AR1I2ABAEREEEGRARRIMLEEARAR (R2014F12 8208 KB AT CIERER AR IERE Y
B RBBEENREERAABRAFIN 0 LM RABIRBR LT - EEBELENTREBREINEMIATR R
FAARREAEE - FEATHEEIE  BEBLMR BB LELEREEREFBAREZRAERERNA
EEZEEZLE  c BEEBAANTAANEEEREERKNERAER  YAHTHEZEESNEREZEE Y
EE e

Mr CHA Mou Daid Johnson ss, uss, aged 65, joined the Board in 1989 and was re-designated as
Non-executive Director in December 2004. He is also a director of some subsidiaries of the Company. Mr CHA has
nearly 40 years extensive experience in venture capital and investment management and currently a director of C.M.
Capital Advisors (HK) Limited. He is a NED of Hanison, Mingly and China International Capital Corporation Limited
(“CICCL”). Hanison and CICCL are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr CHA is also an INED of Shanghai Commercial
Bank Limited and director of a number of other companies in Hong Kong and overseas including LBJ Regents. He
is active in non-profit making organisations including Qiu Shi Foundation and Moral Education Concern Group and is
also a member of the finance committee and of the council of the Hong Kong University of Science & Technology.
Mr CHA is a sibling to Ms Madeline WONG, Mr Payson CHA and Mr Victor CHA.
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Ms WONG CHA May Lung Madeline, aged 77, joined the Board in 1989 and was re-designated as
Non-executive Director in December 2004. She is also a director of some subsidiaries of the Company. Ms WONG
is the deputy chairman of Mingly and also a director or NED of a number of public and private companies in Hong
Kong and overseas, including CCM Trust and LBJ Regents. She retired as a NED of Hon Kwok Land Investment
Company, Limited and Chinney Investments, Limited in August 2014 and August 2015 respectively, both are listed
on the Stock Exchange. Ms WONG is the chairwoman and a trustee of Sang Ma. She is a sibling to Mr Payson
CHA, Mr Victor CHA and Mr Johnson CHA.
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Dr CHENG Kar Shun Henry css, 4, vsa 084 (Hons), LLD (Hons), aged 70, joined the Board in 1989 and
was re-designated as Independent Non-executive Director in 1993. He is also the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Dr CHENG is the chairman and executive director of NWD, Chow Tai Fook Jewellery
Group Limited, NWS Holdings Limited and International Entertainment Corporation, chairman and NED of New
World Department Store China Limited, Newton Resources Ltd and FSE Engineering Holdings Limited, NED
of SUM Holdings Limited and INED of Hang Seng Bank Limited. He ceased as a NED of Lifestyle International
Holdings Limited in May 2015. All the aforesaid companies are listed on the Stock Exchange. Dr CHENG was also
the chairman and managing director of New World China Land Limited, a listed company in Hong Kong until its
delisting on 4 August 2016 and is a director of a number of private companies in Hong Kong and overseas. He is
the chairman of the advisory council of BHKF, non-official member of Commission on Poverty and member of the
Twelfth National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of the PRC. Dr CHENG was
awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star by the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region in 2001.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
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Mr CHEUNG Wing Lam Linus sssc, sp, aged 69, joined the Board in January 2006 and was
re-designated as Independent Non-executive Director on 26 March 2012. He is also a member of both the Audit
Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr CHEUNG is an INED of China Unicom (Hong Kong)
Limited which is listed on the Stock Exchange and the board of directors of Sotheby’s which is listed on the New
York Stock Exchange. He was the chief executive of Hong Kong Telecommunications Limited (later “Cable &
Wireless HKT Limited” (“Cable”)) from 1994 to 2000, deputy chairman of PCCW Limited (following a merger with
Cable) from August 2000 to February 2004 and INED of Taikang Life Insurance Co. Ltd. from 2005 to 2011.

SR IK TR T s, up + 695% © K2006FE1 AMAKAREES « 201243 526 BT ABIIENITE
o FMARRRBZEZECRFWEEEKE - RELABRBIF LT zPEBARKEE(FBE)RNEAR
NAIZBERRANELR G EMHB L 2 ESTEKE - REMN1994F Z2000F AR EAT A BMER
ANAEI(E1% % Bl Cable & Wireless HKT Limited |(T BB BT ) ) 2 1TEARE - 7200058 A £2004 42 A HAfE
TEMERBRAR(EEBEMAEHER) ZEIEFEENR2005FEZ201 1 FHMETRREASREBBRMHER QA
BE B -

Ms HO Pak Ching Loretta rci (eties), aged 70, was re-designated as Independent Non-executive
Director with effect from 10 April 2010. Prior to her re-designation, she was appointed as Executive Director in
1994 and re-designated as Non-executive Director on 10 April 2008 upon her retirement from all executive roles
in the Group. Ms HO is also a member of both the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company.
She is a retired member of the Chartered Institute of Housing Asian Pacific Branch and has over 45 years extensive
experience in property development, property investment and management.
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Mr TANG Kwai Chang rcca, rera, aged 64, was appointed Independent Non-executive Director in
September 2014. He is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee and member of Nomination Committee of
the Company. Mr TANG was a partner of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) with extensive experience in
auditing and audit risk management, the vice chairman of Deloitte China and board member of Deloitte Global
when he retired in May 2013. He is currently an INED of Bank of Communications (Hong Kong) Limited, Baosteel
Resources Company Limited and Baosteel Resources International Company Limited (subsidiaries of China
Baowu Steel Group Corporation Limited) and Foxconn Interconnect Technology Limited (a subsidiary of Hon Hai
Precision Industry Company Limited). Mr TANG is a fellow member of both the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the HKICPA. He is also currently a court member of the Hong Kong Baptist University and
member of the disciplinary panel of the HKICPA.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ESEEHRE

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of HKR International Limited
(the “Company”) announces the audited final results of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
are set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements on
pages 195 to 211.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

Results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2017 are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 86.

The Board has recommended the declaration of a final dividend
of HK7 cents per share for the year ended 31 March 2017 (2016:
Nil) to the shareholders whose names appear on the registers of
members of the Company on 30 August 2017. The proposed final
dividend will be paid on 13 September 2017 following approval at
2017 annual general meeting of the Company to be held on 23
August 2017 (“2017 AGM”). The final dividend represents the total
dividend payable by the Company for the year ended 31 March
2017 (2016: an interim dividend by distribution in specie of all
shares held in Hanison Construction Holdings Limited (“Hanison”)
paid in November 2015 represented the total dividend paid by the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2016).

CLOSURE OF REGISTERS

The main and branch registers of members of the Company will
be closed from 18 to 23 August 2017 (both days inclusive) and on
29 and 30 August 2017 for the 2017 AGM and the final dividend
respectively. During the periods, no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the 2017
AGM, and entitled for the final dividend for the year ended 31
March 2017, all properly completed transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged for registration
with the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 17 August and 28 August 2017
respectively. The notice of the 2017 AGM will be published on
the websites of the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and despatched to the
shareholders of the Company in due course.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRE

BUSINESS REVIEW

Review of the Group’s business and analysis of the Group’s
performance using financial key performance indicators during the
year, a description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Group and an indication of the likely future development of
the Group’s business are provided in the sections of this annual
report headed “Chairman’s Statement” (on pages 10 to 13),
“Managing Director’s Operations Review” (on pages 14 to 33),
“Financial Highlights” (on page 74), “Financial Review” (on pages
75 to 77), “Five-year Financial Summary” (on page 216) and in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements. For review of the
development, performance or position of the Group’s business,
the Group’s environmental policies and performance, compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the Group and understanding of the Group’s key relationships
with its employees, customers and suppliers and others that have a
significant impact on the Group, please see sections of this annual
report headed “Managing Director’s Operations Review” (on pages
14 to 33), “Directors’ Report” (on pages 41 to 55) and “Corporate
Governance Report” (on pages 56 to 73) and the fovironmental,
Social and Governance Reporf of the Company which is published

online at the same time of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 31
to the consolidated financial statements on page 174.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year ended 31 March 2017 and at
the date of this annual report were and are those set out on pages
34 and 35.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association (the
“Articles”) and the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
and Corporate Governance Report as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”), The Honourable Ronald ARCULLI, Mr Linus
CHEUNG, Mr TANG Kwai Chang and Mr TANG Moon Wah will
retire by rotation at the 2017 AGM. All the retiring Directors, being
eligible, have offered themselves for re-election at the 2017 AGM.
Other remaining Directors will continue in office.
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None of the Directors offering themselves for re-election at the
2017 AGM has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation) and all Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the AGMs of the Company
in accordance with the Articles. The rotation clause sets up a
mechanism to ensure that all Directors shall retire at least once
every three years.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors (“INEDs”) of the
Company has confirmed his/her independence pursuant to rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all INEDs
of the Company meet the independence guidelines set out in the
Listing Rules and are independent accordingly.

Assisted by heads of functional units, the Executive Directors
(“EDs”) of the Company have the responsibility for the business
and operations of the Group. EDs of the Company are part of
the Company’s senior management. Biographical details of the
Directors are set out on pages 36 to 40. Details of the Directors’
emoluments are also provided under note 12 to the consolidated
financial statements on pages 144 to 146.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY AND DIRECTORS
AND OFFICERS LIABILITY INSURANCE

The Articles provides that every Director is entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses
or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in carrying out
their duties or otherwise in relation thereto. Directors and Officers
Liability Insurance Policy is in place to protect the Directors against
potential costs and liabilities arising from claims brought against the
Directors.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2017, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and their respective associates in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”)) as recorded in the register required to
be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules and adopted by
the Company were as follows:
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THE COMPANY VNN
a) Long positions in shares of HK$0.25 each Q) RNEREE.2LE TN ZIFE
Number of ordinary shares
LERYE
Approximate
percentage
of issued
Personal Family Corporate Other share capital
Name of director Capacity interests interests interests interests {HERITRA
EZ2E af AR KR L Hnigs g ZBAE
Payson CHA Beneficial owner, interests of a 3,113,113 - 16,867,074 618,895,3872 638,875,574 47.31
EE controlled corporation and
beneficiary of discretionary
tusts
EaBAA FHATERR
WiBEEXAA
Victor CHA Beneficial owner and beneficiary 1,140,253 - - 629,498,383 630,638,636 46.70
BN of discretionary trusts
EREAARBBELIXEA
Johnson CHA Beneficiary of discretionary trusts - - - 628,200,8852 628,200,885 46.52
e HEELXEA
Madeline WONG Founder and/or beneficiary of - - - 627,487,463% 627,487,463 4647
TExE discretionary trusts
WBETELAREZEA
Ronald ARCULLI Beneﬁciary of a trust 241,472 - - - 241,472 0.02
BE EEXEA
Abraham CHUNG Beneﬁcia\ owner 315,084 - - - 315,084 0.02
EDH EExe
Loretta HO Beneﬁcia\ owner 85,600 - - - 85,600 0.01
s EEXEA
TANG Moon Wah Beneﬁcia\ owner 135,200 - - - 135,200 0.01
g EEXEA

' The shares were held by Accomplished Investments Limited, a corporation 100% owned by Mr Payson CHA.
T RERA TR S 2 E A 2 A FAccomplished Investments Limited# & ©

2 The shares belonged to certain but not identical discretionary trusts of which CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited (“CCM Trust”) and LBJ Regents
Limited (“LBJ Regents”) were the corporate trustees and the relevant Directors were among the members of the classes of discretionary
beneficiaries.

2 ZERMDBNE T RRBIEEENAESBABCCM Trust (Cayman) Limited ([ CCM Trust|) & LBJ Regents Limited([ LBJ Regents |) 2 5B %
RAREMEBEEERHBXSEA -

3 577,842,756 shares belonged to certain but not identical discretionary trusts of which CCM Trust and LBJ Regents were the corporate
trustees and the Director was among the members of the classes of discretionary beneficiaries.
¢ 577,842,756 1% BHE T T RMIEET R ESE ACCM Trust XLBJ Regents Z/EBEIZ L AR B MR EEBREIEZHA °

4 The Director was, under two separate discretionary trusts of which CCM Trust and LBJ Regents were the corporate trustees, the founder and
member of the classes of discretionary beneficiaries thereof. Such trusts were deemed to be interested in 49,644,707 shares in aggregate.

4 ZEBERBFARCCM TrustRLBJ Regents ZEBZ AP 2 METRBEEENAZAREFHREZRA - ZEEXRRREFE
#£49,644, 707 RAR1D 2 #E %
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b) Share options

Directors have been granted share options of the Company,
details of which are set out in the paragraph headed “Share Option
Scheme” below.

Save as disclosed above and for certain Directors holding
non-beneficial interests in the share capital of some of the
subsidiaries of the Company as the nominee shareholders, as at 31
March 2017, none of the Directors or their respective associates
had any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any associated corporations
(within the meaning of the SFO) as recorded in the register required
to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code contained in the Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted its share option scheme, namely 2011
Scheme and the listing status of the shares issued (if any) under
this scheme was granted by the Stock Exchange. Particulars of the
2011 Scheme as required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules
are set out below:

A) PURPOSE

To provide the participants who have been granted options to
subscribe for ordinary shares in the Company with the opportunity
to acquire proprietary interests in the Company and to encourage
the participants to work towards enhancing the value of the
Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole.

B) PARTICIPANTS

All Directors, full-time employees and any consultants (employed
on a contract basis) of the Company, its subsidiaries and/or
its associated companies are eligible to participate in the 2011
Scheme.

C) MAXIMUM NUMBER OF SHARES AVAILABLE FOR ISSUE

A maximum number of 135,027,436 shares of the Company may
be issued upon exercise of all options granted or to be granted
under the 2011 Scheme.
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D) MAXIMUM ENTITLEMENT OF EACH PARTICIPANT

The total number of shares of the Company issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted and to be granted to
each participant (including both exercised and unexercised options)
under the 2011 Scheme or any other share option scheme (if
any) adopted by the Company in any 12-month period must not
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue unless otherwise
approved by the shareholders of the Company.

Where any grant of options to a substantial shareholder or an INED
of the Company, or any of their respective associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules), would result in the shares of the Company issued
and to be issued upon exercise of all options already granted and
to be granted to such person in any 12-month period up to and
including the date of the grant:

— representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue; and

— having an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the
shares of the Company as stated in the daily quotations sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant in excess of
HK$5.0 million,

such grant of options shall be subject to prior approval of the
shareholders of the Company who are not connected persons of
the Company as defined in the Listing Rules.

E) PERIOD WITHIN WHICH THE SHARES MUST BE TAKEN UP
UNDER AN OPTION
An option must be exercised within 10 years from the date on

which it is granted or such shorter period as the Board (or the
relevant committee thereof) may specify at the time of grant.

F) MINIMUM PERIOD AND REQUIREMENT, IF ANY, FOR
WHICH AN OPTION MUST BE HELD BEFORE IT CAN BE
EXERCISED

At the time of the grant of an option, the Board (or the relevant

committee thereof) must specify the minimum period(s), if any, for
which an option must be held before it can be exercised.
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G) PERIOD OPEN FOR ACCEPTANCE OF AN OPTION AND
AMOUNT PAYABLE UPON ACCEPTANCE

The offer of the grant of an option (of which the date of grant must
be a business day of the Stock Exchange) must be accepted
within 14 days from the date on which the offer letter is delivered
to the participant and a consideration of HK$1 must be paid upon
acceptance.

H) BASIS OF DETERMINING THE SUBSCRIPTION PRICE OF
AN OPTION

The subscription price of an option shall be no less than the higher
of:

— the closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the
daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date
of grant;

— the average closing price of the shares of the Company as
stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
for the five business days of the Stock Exchange immediately
preceding the date of grant; and

— the nominal value of a share of the Company on the date of
grant.

) REMAINING LIFE

The 2011 Scheme has a life of 10 years and will expire on 7
September 2021 unless otherwise terminated in accordance with
the terms of the 2011 Scheme.

DETAILS OF OPTIONS GRANTED AND AVAILABLE FOR
GRANT

The total number of shares in the Company available for grant of
options under the 2011 Scheme is 135,027,436 shares which
represents 10% of the issued share capital of the Company at the
date of this annual report (i.e. 21 June 2017). On 28 February 2017,
the Company granted share options to the Directors to subscribe
for a total of 15,600,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.25 each in the
share capital of the Company under the 2011 Scheme which
represents approximately 1.2% of the issued share capital of the
Company at the date of grant. No option was exercised, cancelled
or lapsed in accordance with the terms of the 2011 Scheme during
the financial year ended 31 March 2017. Details of the movement
of share options during the year and the outstanding share options
as at 31 March 2017 under the 2011 Scheme were as follows:
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Name of
participant
SEENE

Payson CHA
shE

Victor CHA
B

Abraham CHUNG
ﬁ/b H

T/-\NG+Moon Wah
Hinz

Madeline WONG
TExE

Johnson CHA
Eiie

Ronald ARCULLI
EHRE

Henry CHENG
gxm

Loretta Ho

s

Linus CHEUNG
KR

TANG Kwai Chang
3/

BEY

Total 8t

Date of
grant

REAM

28 February 2017
201727280

28 February 2017
2017427280

28 February 2017
201727280

28 February 2017
2017427280

28 February 2017
201727280

28 February 2017
2017427280

28 February 2017
201727280

28 February 2017
2017427280

28 February 2017
201727280

28 February 2017
2017427280

28 February 2017
201727280

Exercise Closing
price price
pershare  per share®
(HKS) (ﬂK$)
SRIEE SREHE
(B7) (B7)
4.23 4.22

4.23 4.22

4.23 4.22

4.23 4.22

4.23 4.22

4.23 4.22

4.23 4.22

4.23 4.22

4.23 4.22

4.23 4.22

4.23 4.22

Exercise period
T

28 February 2017 to
217 February 2027
201752A28H%E

2027462 278

28 February 2017 to
27 February 2027
2017827288 E

2027%F2A27H

28 February 2017 to
217 February 2027
201752A28BE

2027462 278

28 February 2017 to
27 February 2027
2017527286 E

2027%F2A27H

28 February 2017 to
217 February 2027
201752A28HE

2027462 278

28 February 2017 to
27 February 2027
2017827288 E

202752 /278

28 February 2017 to
217 February 2027
201752A28HE

2027462 278

28 February 2017 to
27 February 2027
2017827288 E

2027%F2A27H

28 February 2017 to
217 February 2027
201752A28HE

202742 278

28 February 2017 to
27 February 2027
2017527288 E

2027%F2 /278

28 February 2017 to
217 February 2027
201752A28BE

2027462 278

Number of share options
RABESE

Balance
Balance as at
asat Granted Exercised 31 March
1 April 2016 during during 2017
20165 the year the year R20175E
4A1RES FRRH ERfTE  3A31BER
- 2,900,000 - 2,900,000
- 2,900,000 - 2,900,000
- 2,000,000 - 2,000,000
- 2,000,000 - 2,000,000
- 1,100,000 - 1,100,000
- 1,100,000 - 1,100,000
- 1,100,000 - 1,100,000
- 1,100,000 - 1,100,000
- 700,000 - 700,000
- 500,000 - 500,000
- 200,000 - 200,000
- 15,600,000 - 15,600,000

5 Being the closing price of the Company’s share immediately before the date on which the share options were granted.

S AARERFLBRN RS BRI B KRTHE -
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Details of the value of the share options granted during the financial
year ended 31 March 2017 and the accounting policy adopted
for the share options are set out in note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements on pages 174 to 176.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the heading “Share Option Scheme”
above, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year, the interests of the Directors in businesses which
competed or were likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the businesses of the Group as required to be disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules are as follows:

a) The Honourable Ronald ARCULLI is an INED of Hang Lung
Properties Limited (“HLP”) and also NED of Sino Hotels (Holdings)
Limited (“SHH”), Sino Land Company Limited (“SLC”) and Tsim Sha
Tsui Properties Limited (“TSTP”). The businesses of HLP, SHH, SLC
and TSTP involve at least some of property investment, property
development, property management and hotel management and
ownership. HLP, SHH, SLC and TSTP are all listed on the Stock
Exchange.

b) Mr Payson CHA is the chairman and NED of Hanison and INED
of New World Development Company Limited (“NWD”), Eagle Asset
Management (CP) Limited (“EAM”) being manager of Champion
Real Estate Investment Trust (“CREIT”) and Hongkong International
Theme Parks Limited (“HITP”) being owner and operator of Hong
Kong Disneyland resorts. The businesses of Hanison, NWD, EAM,
CREIT and HITP involve at least some of property investment,
property development, property management, healthcare services
and hotel management and ownership. Hanison, NWD and CREIT
are all listed on the Stock Exchange.
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c) Mr Victor CHA is an INED of SOHO China Limited (“SOHO”) and
alternate INED of NWD. The businesses of SOHO and NWD involve
at least some of property investment, property development,
property management and hotel management and ownership.
SOHO and NWD are both listed on the Stock Exchange.

d) Mr Johnson CHA is a NED of Hanison whose group’s
businesses consist of property investment, property development,
property management and healthcare services. Hanison is listed on
the Stock Exchange.

Save for the INEDs of the Company and save as disclosed above,
none of the Directors was interested in any business apart from
the Group’s businesses which competed or was likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group during
the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2017, the following persons (other than the
Directors) had interests or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in the Company’s shares of HK$0.25 each

Name of shareholder Capacity

IRRERE 54

CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited Corporate trustee
EEFFEA

LBJ Regents Limited Corporate trustee

EEXFEA

Invesco Asset Management
Limited

Investment manager/advisor of
various accounts

REKIE/ % AR < B
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Approximate

percentage

of issued

Number of share capital
ordinary shares HEETRAZ
EZBERHE BHABE D
560,153,9056 41.48
91,894,8017 6.81
121,479,1998 8.99



6 560,153,905 shares were held by CCM Trust as corporate trustee of certain but not identical discretionary trusts of which members of the

classes of discretionary beneficiaries comprise the late Dr CHA Chi Ming’s issue.

6 560,153,905A% A% 17 ThEHCCM TrustbUEBEZFEA F D AE TTIRAMEETHE - MZSENEZRAR

FEENEERBLZ&RM -

791,894,801 shares were held by LBJ Regents as corporate trustee of certain but not identical discretionary trusts of which members of the

classes of discretionary beneficiaries comprise the late Dr CHA Chi Ming’s issue.

791,894,801 %A% 1D JhHLBJ RegentsLUEBZEA F N AE TTRBIBELRE @ MRSHESR

ABREEHREFRBL 2K

8 121,479,199 shares were disclosed on the website of the Stock Exchange as being held by Invesco Asset Management Limited as investment

manager and/or advisor of various accounts.

8 121,479,1990% B 19 TH HA B 22 AT ) 48 Uk 4% 78 /& R Invesco Asset Management Limited{E B B AIE /s Z AR F 2 RS -

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, no other interests
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO.

DEBT SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2017, principal amount of unlisted notes issued by
the Company which due 2020 amounted to HK$798.0 million in
aggregate. Details of the debt securities are disclosed in note 28 to
the consolidated financial statements on page 172.

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions as disclosed under paragraphs
(@) and (b) of note 44 to the consolidated financial statements on
pages 211 to 213 constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions under the Listing Rules but are exempt
from shareholders’ approval and disclosure and other requirements
under Chapter 14A.76 of the Listing Rules. Save for the aforesaid
transactions, the other related party transactions shown in note
44 to the consolidated financial statements do not constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions under
the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS,
TRANSACTIONS AND ARRANGEMENTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed above, no contract, transactions or
arrangements of significance to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director or controlling
shareholder had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRE

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS
UNDER RULE 13.21 OF CHAPTER 13 OF THE
LISTING RULES

In accordance with the continuing obligation set out in rule 13.21 of
Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules, the following are the details of the
loan agreement with covenants relating to specific performance on
the controlling shareholders of the Company as at 31 March 2017
pursuant to rule 13.18 thereof. There existed no reporting obligation
by the Company under rules 13.17 and 13.19 of the Listing Rules.

The Company is the borrower of a loan agreement entered into on
8 September 2015 (the “Loan Agreement”) for a transferable term
loan and revolving credit facility in an aggregate principal amount of
HK$8.0 billion with final maturity date falling five years from the date
of the Loan Agreement.

Under the Loan Agreement, among others, an event of default
is triggered when the existing individual shareholder of the
Company (together with his associate(s)) holding the single largest
shareholding (direct or indirect) in the Company on the date of
the Loan Agreement ceases to be the Company’s single largest
beneficial shareholder at any time during the term of the Loan
Agreement.

As at the date of the Loan Agreement, Mr Payson CHA, the
Chairman of the Company, who personally and together with
his associates including a controlled corporation and certain
companies acting as corporate trustees of certain discretionary
family trusts of which Mr Payson CHA (to his knowledge) was
among the discretionary beneficiaries, held direct and indirect
an aggregate interest in 638,875,574 shares in the Company,
representing approximately 47.31% of the issued share capital
of the Company and he was treated as the individual beneficial
shareholder holding the single largest shareholding in the Company
under the Loan Agreement.

As at the date of this report, the shareholding in the Company held

by Mr Payson CHA remains unchanged and he is still treated as the
single largest individual beneficial shareholder of the Company.
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS
UNDER RULE 13.22 OF CHAPTER 13 OF THE
LISTING RULES

In accordance with the requirements of rule 13.22 of Chapter
13 of the Listing Rules, the following were the details of financial
assistances and guarantees given for facilities granted to affiliated
companies of the Company as at 31 March 2017 pursuant to rule
13.16 thereof.

a) The Group advanced to Tung Chung Station Development
Company Limited (“TCSDCL”) an aggregate amount of HK$587.3
million. TCSDCL is engaged in the development of Tung Chung
Station Package Il Project in Lantau Island, Hong Kong in which the
Group has 31% interest. The last phase of the development was
completed in 2009 and all properties were sold out in 2013. The
advances were provided by the Group in the form of shareholder’s
loans in proportion to its shareholding interest in TCSDCL, for the
purpose of funding the working capital requirements of TCSDCL.
The advances are unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no
fixed terms of repayment.

b) The Group advanced to Dazhongli Properties Limited
and its subsidiaries (“Dazhongli group”) an aggregate amount
of HK$4,865.3 million. Dazhongli group is engaged in the
development of certain properties in Jing’an District, Shanghai, the
People’s Republic of China in which the Group has 50% interest.
The advances were provided by the Group in the form of equity
and loans in proportion to its shareholding interest therein, for the
purpose of financing the development expenditure of Dazhongli
group. The advances are unsecured, non-interest bearing and have
no fixed terms of repayment.

c) The Group also advanced to several affiliated companies an
aggregate amount of HK$2,706.0 million. The Group has interests
ranging from 31% to 50% in these affiliated companies.

The aggregate amount of advances provided to and guarantees
given for these affiliated companies by the Group amounted to
HK$8,158.6 million representing 27.5% of the consolidated total
assets of the Group of HK$29,630.6 million as at 31 March 2017.

The financial information of these affiliated companies as at 31
March 2017 are set out in notes 18 and 19 to the consolidated
financial statements on pages 155 to 161.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRE

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract for the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of any business of the Company was entered
into or existed during the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate turnover attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers was less than 30% of the total value of the Group’s
turnover.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers were less than 30% of the total value of the Group’s
purchases.

None of the Directors, any of their associates, or shareholders of
the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in
the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to approximately HK$1.0 million (2016: approximately
HK$1.0 million).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
although there is no restriction against such rights under the laws
of the Cayman Islands.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to information available to the Company, the percentage
of the Company’s shares which are in the hands of the public
exceeds 25% of the Company’s total number of issued shares.
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REVIEW OF THE ANNUAL REPORT BY AUDIT
COMMITTEE

The Group’s annual report for the year ended 31 March 2017 has
been reviewed by the Audit Committee of the Company established
in compliance with rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the relevant
provisions of the CG Code.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

A resolution will be proposed at the 2017 AGM of the Company to
re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, being eligible and offering
themselves for re-appointment as the Independent Auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board
REES®E

CHA Mou Sing Payson
Chairman
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Hong Kong, 21 June 2017
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TERERBE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES AND
FUNCTIONS

The Company is committed to good corporate governance which it
believes is core to the success of its business and operations.

The corporate governance functions are undertaken by the Board
of Directors (the “Board”) as prescribed by code provision D.3.1
of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
(the “Listing Rules”) which are included in the Board’s terms of
reference.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company fully complied
with the code provisions of the CG Code save for a deviation of E.1.2
(Chairman of the Board'’s attendance of the annual general meeting
(“AGM”)). Details and reasons for the deviation are set out in below
paragraph headed “Attendances of General Meetings, Board and
Board Committee Meetings”.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board comprises eleven Directors of which four are Executive
Directors (“EDs”) and seven are Non-executive Directors (“NEDs”)
of whom four and hence, with more than one-third of the Board,
are Independent Non-executive Directors (“INEDs”). Each Director
possesses skills and experience appropriate to the business of
the Group and the particulars of Directors are duly set out in the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors” on pages 36 to
40 of 2016/2017 Annual Report.

Save for Mr Payson CHA, Mr Victor CHA, Mr Johnson CHA and Ms

Madeline WONG who are siblings, all other Directors have no family
relationship with each other.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The Board has the responsibility for strategic leadership, control
and providing guidance to Management to ensure the Company’s
objectives are achieved.

Upon appointment to the Board, every Director is given
comprehensive and formal induction documentation of the business
operation of the Group and information for his/her understanding
and awareness of his/her responsibilities as Director under the
Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory and statutory requirements
together, if required, with brief meetings with senior executives and
department heads of the Group.

Each Director ensures that he/she can give sufficient time and
attention to the affairs of the Group and has informed the Company
in a timely manner for any change, the number and nature of offices
held in public companies or organisations and other significant
commitments. Details of Directors’ other appointments are shown
in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors” on pages
36 to 40 of 2016/2017 Annual Report.

A list of the Directors, their roles and functions and, in particular,
whether they are INEDs is maintained on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange and is updated as and when
required.

BOARD PROCEDURES

The dates of the regular Board meetings in a particular year are
scheduled ahead to give all Directors adequate time to plan
their schedules to attend meetings. There are four regular Board
meetings in a year which are held on a quarterly basis and ad hoc
Board meetings will also be held as and when required. For the
year ended 31 March 2017, four Board meetings were held and
attendance records of the Board meetings held during the year
are set out in below paragraph headed “Attendances of General
Meetings, Board and Board Committee Meetings”.

At least 14 days formal notice would be given before each regular
Board meeting and reasonable advance notice would also be given
for other Board meetings. All Directors are consulted as to whether
they wish to include any matters in the agenda and the Chairman
of the Board would review and approve the agenda before the
agenda for each Board meeting is issued.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Agendas and accompanying Board papers are sent to all Directors/
Board Committees members at least three days (or such other
period as agreed) before meetings. With the assistance of the EDs,
the Chairman of the Board seeks to ensure that all Directors are
properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings and receive
adequate documents and information about the Group in a timely
manner. The Chairman of the Board, or in his absence, the Deputy
Chairman and Managing Director, leads meetings and ensures
that all key and appropriate issues are discussed by the Directors
in a timely manner. Directors are provided sufficient time for
discussion on issues in the meetings and encouraged to express
their viewpoints to the Board’s affairs and voice their concerns, if
any. The Chairman directs discussion in the meetings in reaching a
consensus and consolidates discussion with conclusions. Minutes
of Board/Board Committees meetings record matters considered
and decisions reached. Draft and final signed minutes of Board/
Board Committees meetings are sent to all Directors for their
comment and records respectively.

The Chairman of the Board meets at least once annually with the
NEDs (including INEDs) without the presence of EDs. In March
2017, the Chairman of the Board met the NEDs without the
presence of EDs and five out of seven NEDs (including INEDs)
attended the meeting.

Where necessary, INEDs meet privately to discuss matters which
are their specific responsibilities. During the year, no such meeting
was required to be held.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The CG Code requires that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separated and not be performed by the
same individual to ensure there is a clear division of responsibilities
between the Board and the executives who run the business.

The roles of Chairman, Deputy Chairman and Managing Director of
the Company have been taken up by two different individuals who
are brothers. Mr Payson CHA is the Chairman and Mr Victor CHA
is the Deputy Chairman and Managing Director of the Company.
Their respective roles and responsibilities are clearly separated and
set out in writing.
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The Chairman is mainly responsible for setting the Company’s
direction in consultation with the Board and for the marco
oversight of the management. With the support of the Company
Secretary, the Chairman also takes primary responsibility to
establish good corporate governance practices and procedures
of the Company. The Managing Director, with the support of EDs
(who in charge of different businesses and functional divisions in
accordance with their respective areas of expertise) is responsible
for strategic planning of different business functions and day-to-day
management and operation of the Group.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (INCLUDING INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS)

NEDs of the Company were appointed with a specific term of three
years which is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election of
Directors under the Articles of Associations of the Company (the
“Articles”). Details of the mechanism are set out in below paragraph
headed “Appointments, Re-election and Removal”.

The roles and responsibilities of NEDs are clearly set out in writing.
NEDs are not involved in the day-to-day management of the
Group’s businesses but participate in Board/Board Committee
meetings where they bring independent views and judgment on
issues of strategy, policy, performance, accountability, resources,
key appointments and standards of conduct.

INEDs, in particular, will oversee the management and the Company
implementing the rules, procedures and plans established and help
ensure that the interests of the shareholders as a whole are taken
into account by the Board. Each of the INEDs has provided to the
Company an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to
rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considers that all
of them continue to be independent with reference to the terms of
guidelines set out in the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules.

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL

The Articles stipulate that at each AGM, one-third of the Directors
for the time being, or if their number is not three or a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-third, shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years and
any Director appointed by the Directors shall hold office only until
the next following general meeting of the Company (in the case
of filing a casual vacancy) or until the next following AGM (in the
case of a new appointment to the Board) and be eligible to offer
for re-election. Re-election of each eligible Director is subject to be
approved by shareholders at the general meeting of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Directors are provided with continuous updates on latest changes
or material development in laws, the Listing Rules, corporate
governance practices relating to the duties and responsibilities
of Directors and are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development seminars to update their knowledge for
discharging directors’ responsibilities.

During the year, Directors have participated in the following various
continuous professional development activities in order to develop
and refresh their skills and knowledge. Each Director has provided
his/her training record to the Company with particulars set out as
follows:

Name of Director EEnE
Payson CHA EE
Victor CHA B
Abraham CHUNG $E /0 H
TANG Moon Wah Bl mE
Ronald ARCULLI BEE
Johnson CHA =
Madeline WONG TEXERE
Henry CHENG B 4
Linus CHEUNG oK K 7R
Loretta HO (EREI=]
TANG Kwai Chang HEE

Notes:
A. Reading materials/articles in relation to director responsibilities and updates
on the statutory and regulatory requirements.

B. Attending seminars/workshops/forums/conferences in relation to director
development, updates on the statutory and regulatory requirements, and

developments on financial, commercial, legal and economic environments.

C. Speaking topic(s) in relation to leadership development.

G()  HKR International Limited Annual Report 2016/2017

BEERBERER

EETHESEREFTRELRBE A - £
MR BEERABRZEHETHERRR
ZEHER - RENMEZB2EFEEXER
iatg  NEFRERTESBREZANH -

RER BEFEL2ETATRZHEEXER
APABRRSEFEKERAE - SEFER
ANFRHEEEIRE - FEHIWMT

Type of training(s)
FEFIER

A

A B
A B
A

A B, C
A B
A

A

A B
A

A B

B -
A BIEABEFEE - U BOAD R BH AR
X -
B. HRAMEERRE EOIRAMZEH - AR
%EE OREREERARRE TR/

2
/g o

C. BERMBAERNBRIEBETIES -



DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board has delegated and set out levels of authority and
expressed terms of reference for the Board Committees
and reserves the rights to oversee and decide all other non-
delegated matters, in particular, major acquisitions or disposals
and connected transactions. The Board also delegates certain
management and administration functions to the management
as it considers appropriate from time to time, with directions as
to the powers of management including circumstances where
management shall report to and obtain prior approval from the
Board.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has set up the Remuneration Committee, Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee and other committees, namely
Finance Committee, Investment/Divestment Committee, Buy-back,
Reissue and Transfer of Shares Committee and Inside Information
Committee. The Board will from time to time review the terms of
references or relevant policies of such Committees. The Board
may also on need basis set up special committees with clear terms
of reference to deal with specific transactions or matters of the
Company.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee of the Company was established
on 26 March 2012 and its terms of reference follow closely the
requirements of the CG Code. The full text of the terms of reference
of the Nomination Committee is available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee require, inter
alia, that the Nomination Committee comprises no less than three
members with a majority of INEDs and the Chairman must be either
an INED or the Chairman of the Board. The Nomination Committee
currently comprises three members, namely Mr Payson CHA, the
Chairman of the Board, Ms Loretta HO and Mr TANG Kwai Chang.
The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr Payson CHA.
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The principal role and function of the Nomination Committee is to
identify and recommend to the Board suitably qualified persons
to become members of the Board, to review the structure, size
and composition of the Board on a regular basis and to maintain a
policy concerning diversity of Board members (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) and consider the measurable objectives, if required,
for recommending to the Board for adoption. The Nomination
Committee is entitled to seek independent professional advice,
at the Company’s expenses, if it considers necessary in order to
perform its duties.

The Board Diversity Policy was adopted by the Board in March
20183. Pursuant to the policy, the Nomination Committee will
review, discuss and agree annually all measurable objectives in
accordance with the structure, size and composition of the Board
for achieving diversity on the Board and recommend them, if any, to
the Board for adoption. The Nomination Committee also monitors
the progress and its policy implementation for annual reporting in
the corporate governance report. Selection of candidates will be
based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of services.
The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that
the selected candidates will bring to the Board. The policy will be
reviewed by the Nomination Committee on annual basis and when
required to ensure effectiveness.

During the year, the Nomination Committee held a meeting in
March 2017 and (a) reviewed the retirement of Directors and will
recommend to the Board the re-election of Mr TANG Moon Wah,
The Honourable Ronald ARCULLI, Mr Linus CHEUNG, Mr TANG
Kwai Chang at the forthcoming AGM of the Company to be held in
August 2017; (b) reviewed, assessed and considered all INEDs are
independent; (c) reviewed, assessed and considered the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Board Diversity Policy; and (d) reviewed
the structure, size and composition of the Board during the year of
2016/2017 and considered that the current diversity of the Board
appropriate and it was not necessary to set out any measurable
objectives for enhancing the diversity of the Board for the year of
2017/2018. The attendance record of the Nomination Committee
meeting held during the year is set out in below paragraph headed
“Attendances of General Meetings, Board and Board Committee
Meetings”.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee of the Company was established
on 2 December 2004 and its terms of reference follow closely the
requirements of the CG Code. The full text of the terms of reference
of the Remuneration Committee is available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee require,
inter alia, that the Remuneration Committee comprises no less
than three members with a majority of INEDs. The Remuneration
Committee currently comprises three members, namely Dr Henry
CHENG, Mr Linus CHEUNG and Mr Victor CHA with Dr Henry
CHENG acts as the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The principal role and function of the Remuneration Committee is
to exercise the powers of the Board to review and determine the
remuneration packages of individual EDs and senior management,
if any, including salaries, bonuses, benefits in kind, share options
and other plans. Such factors as remuneration paid for comparable
positions, time commitment and responsibilities of the EDs and
senior management as well as the Company’s remuneration policy
will be considered. The Remuneration Committee is entitled to seek
independent professional advice, at the Company’s expenses, if it
considers necessary in order to perform its duties.

During the year, no Remuneration Committee meeting was held
but the Remuneration Committee reviewed and approved (a)
2016/2017 salary increment proposal for the EDs and senior
management; (b) 2016/2017 bonus proposal for the EDs; and (c)
proposal on the grant of share options to Directors by means of
circulation or written resolution. The records of circulated electronic
communication and written resolution of the Remuneration
Committee during the year are duly set out in below paragraph
headed “Attendances of General Meetings, Board and Board
Committee Meetings”.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company was established on 17 July
1998 and its terms of reference follow closely the requirements of
the CG Code. The full text of the terms of reference of the Audit
Committee is available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee require, inter
alia, that the Audit Committee comprises not less than three
members who are NEDs and a majority of them must be INEDs
of the Company. The Audit Committee currently comprises three
members, namely Mr TANG Kwai Chang, Mr Linus CHEUNG
and Ms Loretta HO with Mr TANG Kwai Chang leading the Audit
Committee as the Chairman.

The principal role and function of the Audit Committee is to assist
the Board in meeting its responsibilities for ensuring an effective
system of risk management and internal controls and compliance,
and in meeting its external financial reporting objectives. The Audit
Committee is entitled to seek independent professional advice,
at the Company’s expenses, if it considers necessary in order to
perform its duties.

During the year, five Audit Committee meetings were held, of
which two meetings were held with senior management and the
Independent Auditor and has (a) considered the Independent
Auditor’s projected audit and non-audit services fees; (b) reviewed
the independence of the Independent Auditor, the nature and
scope of the audit and recommended the re-appointment of Messrs
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) as the Independent Auditor
of the Company; and (c) reviewed and discussed the internal
controls, the interim and final financial statements together with
the management’s findings and responses and the Independent
Auditor’s reviews and reports for the Board’s approval. Three other
Audit Committee meetings were also held in April, September
and October 2016 to (a) discussion of risk management plan for
the Company; (b) assess risk management and internal control
systems of healthcare operations after a site visit to healthcare
facilities at Central; and (c) met with management and Deloitte, as
consultant, in respect of risk management control system. More
details about the newly set up risk management control system are
set out in below paragraph headed “Risk Management and Internal
Controls”.

The attendance records of the Audit Committee meetings held

during the year are set out in below paragraph headed “Attendances
of General Meetings, Board and Board Committee Meetings”.
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ATTENDANCES OF GENERAL MEETINGS,
BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS

Directors’ attendances in the general meetings and the meetings
of the Board, Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee held during the year are set out below:

Audit
Board Committee

meeting meeting

Name of Director EEged
Payson CHA® B 4/4
Victor CHA# EiHak 4/4
Abraham CHUNG ELH 4/4
TANG Moon Wah HmE 4/4
Ronald ARCULLI EfE 4/4
Johnson CHA e 4/4
Madeline WONG TEZE 4/4
Henry CHENG# HR4p 1/4
Linus CHEUNG** Rk 4/4
Loretta HO*® g 4/4
TANG Kwai Chang*® KEgzge 4/4
Notes:

* members of Audit Committee

#  members of Remuneration Committee
@  members of Nomination Committee

— not applicable

Due to the other business engagements, Mr Payson CHA, the
Chairman of the Board and Chairman of the Nomination Committee
of the Company could not attend the AGM of the Company held on
24 August 2016. However, Mr Victor CHA, the Deputy Chairman
of the Board and Managing Director of the Company, who is also
a member of the Remuneration Committee took the chair of that
meeting and Mr TANG Kwai Chang, who is the Chairman of the
Audit Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee,
all other EDs of the Company and the representative of the
Company’s Independent Auditor, Deloitte, were present to answer
question from shareholders.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge they are responsible for the preparation
of accounts for financial year which is required to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group, its
results and the cash flows for the Group. For preparation of the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2017, the Directors selected appropriate accounting policies and
applied them consistently, made judgments and estimations that
are prudent and reasonable, and prepared accounts on a going
concern basis. The statement of the Company’s Independent
Auditor about their reporting responsibilities on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2017 is contained in the Independent Auditor’s report of 2016/2017
Annual Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board has an overall responsibility on maintaining sound and
effective systems of risk management and internal controls, which
include financial, operational and compliance controls.

The main features of the risk management and internal control
systems are to provide a clear governance structure, policies and
procedures, as well as reporting mechanism to facilitate the Group
to manage its risks across business operations. Key procedures
are being established and implemented to ensure there are
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control
systems which includes (a) setting core values and beliefs which
form the basis of the Group’s overall risk philosophy and appetite;
(b) having an organisational structure in place with defined lines
of responsibility and delegation of authority which hold individuals
accountable for their risk management and internal control
responsibilities and provides necessary information flow for risk
analysis and management decision-making on an on-going basis;
(c) imposing budgetary and management accounting controls to
efficiently allocate resources and providing timely financial and
operational performance indicators to manage business activities
and risks; and (d) ensuring effective financial reporting control to
record complete, accurate and timely accounting and management
information.
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The Board has delegated to the Audit Committee responsibility
for providing oversight in respect of risk management and
internal control activities. The Audit Committee discusses the risk
management and internal control systems with management for
the year under review to ensure that management has performed
its duty to have an effective risk management and internal control
systems. Discussion covers areas, inter alia, the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programs
and budget (collectively “Resources”) of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting functions. The Audit Committee also
separately consults with Internal Audit Department in respect of
Resources of the Company’s internal audit function.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has established a risk management framework
and governance structure which consists of the Board, the Audit
Committee and risk management steering group to facilitate a
systematic approach to the management of risks within the Group.

The Company has also formulated and adopted Risk Management
Policy in providing direction in identifying, evaluating and managing
significant risks. At least on an annual basis, the risk management
steering group identifies risks that would adversely affect the
achievement of the Group’s objectives, and assesses and
prioritises the identified risks according to a set of standard criteria.
Risk mitigation plans and risk owners are then established for
those risks considered to be significant. The identified risks which
are considered to be significant to the Group and the relevant
mitigation plans for the year under review have been presented and
accepted by the Audit Committee in April 2017.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Company has an Internal Audit Department which is
responsible for performing independent reviews on the effectiveness
of the Group’s systems of internal controls and risk management
and reports audit findings to the Audit Committee and the Board
regularly.

During the year, the Internal Audit Department carried out reviews
on the (a) operation of Sales and Marketing Department; (b)
operation of Insurance Department; (c) operation of HKRI Taikoo
Hui; (d) voting mechanism of annual general meeting; (e) operation
of Wells Estate Services Limited and Wells Property Management
Limited; (f) operation of traditional Chinese medicine clinic; (g)
operation aspect of tunnel in Discovery Bay; (h) risk management
framework and its execution status and (i) other business units with
audit follow-up. With the implementation of follow-up measures
after the reviews, the effectiveness in areas with irregularities
gradually improves. Findings on the reviews and the relevant
recommendations had been presented to and accepted by the
Audit Committee in November 2016 and June 2017. The Company
has adopted an Internal Audit Charter in 2008 to formulate
the processes and procedures of internal audit function for
strengthening of the control framework.

Apart from the above, during the year, the Audit Committee made
site visit(s) to healthcare Central clinic in September 2016 and met
with the head of healthcare operation. After the site visit, the Audit
Committee reviewed the internal risk and control systems in respect
of healthcare operations and considered that which are generally in
place in the area of reviewed.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss. The Board,
through the works of the Audit Committee, risk management
steering group and the Internal Audit Department, has conducted
an annual review on the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2017 and considers that the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems for the year was effective and adequate.

68  HKR International Limited Annual Report 2016/2017

AR B 12

ARRRAERNBEZI - AEF LR RE
B EENREREE RS2 M - WiEHHHE
EZAEHERABREEGRESSER -

RER - RBBZIBPIEH(QEERTIHE
EBEHPZEE b)REBPFIZEE  (o)HEZE
AEEZZE  (REBFAS ZERE#S]
EEIEMERBER AR REBYEETIER
RAGIZEE: (NPEZEE: (92
BRIl 2 EE (N AR E IR 2RI R HE TR ¢
R () E A B TSI 2 AR BRI 1T IRAT - BB
W BREITZRERE  TERZETRNE
N o i el R AR E R 2016F 11
AK2017TF6AREZLZES 2 MU EER -
RABR2008F EFHMANEFTEE - U
FTNEBEZ N AL B TE A2 7 LA DN R BE PR 224 -

fr LA E N RER - BEREZBEER2016
FORBRPREFRIEDIETEMESR
WEREFREFFIEEETER  NEBER
% BRZESRNBHEBRRIEES AR
R MEEERLG YR REEARC EERA
el 2 BIEAEE o

Rl EIR RN EE R T EE R MIEEGRR
RREBEKERzRER  BEMRELERK
ERAMBRIEHEEMIFBERE - EFE
BREVEZES  BREEEE/ ERARE
ZEPIN TIE - HEEREE201743/31H
LEFE 2 [\ B B 38 T )RR BE 1R B4R 2 PR ARG T T
FER  YRBEEAFEZRREERA
MEEARBEINITE



HANDLING OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group complies with requirements of Securities and Futures
Ordinance ("SFQO") and the Listing Rules. A Disclosure of Inside
Information Policy has established by the Company to set out the
procedures on reporting the likely inside information to ensure that
potential price sensitive or inside information of the Group can
be promptly identified, assessed and escalated for disseminating
to the public. The Company discloses inside information to the
public as soon as reasonably practicable unless the information
falls within any of the “Safe Harbours” as provided in the SFO.
Before the information is fully disclosed to the public, the Company
ensures the information is kept strictly confidential. If the Company
believes that the necessary degree of confidentiality cannot be
maintained or that confidentiality may have been breached, the
Company would immediately disclose the information to the public.
The Company is committed to ensure that information contained in
announcements are not false or misleading as to a material fact, or
false or misleading through the omission of a material fact in view of
presenting information in a clear and balanced way, which requires
equal disclosure of both positive and negative facts.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG)
REPORTING GUIDE

The Group has complied with the ESG Reporting Guide of the
Stock Exchange and has released its standalone ESG Repar for
the year ended 31 March 2017 online at the same time with the
publication of this Annual Report, which captures in detail the
Group’s ESG-related initiatives, policies and performance in Hong
Kong throughout the financial year.
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http://www.hkri.com.hk/icms2/File/HKRI/ESG%20Report/HKRI%202016_17_ESG_C.pdf
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http://www.hkri.com.hk/icms2/File/HKRI/ESG%20Report/HKRI%202016_17_ESG_E.pdf
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration (save for directors’ fees which are subject
to shareholders’ approval at general meeting) is determined
with reference to prevailing market situation, their respective
duties and responsibilities and the Group’s remuneration policy.
Under the terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee,
the Remuneration Committee should make recommendation to
the Board on the remuneration policy and it has the delegated
responsibilities to determine the remuneration of the EDs. The
EDs are entitled to salary, contribution to retirement schemes
and discretionary bonus which are subject to the ED’s and the
Company’s performance.

In general, the Managing Director, who is a member of the
Remuneration Committee, is involved in recommending proposals
on the remuneration of other EDs for due consideration and
approval by the Remuneration Committee. However, he
abstains from voting when his remuneration is considered by the
Remuneration Committee. His remuneration is recommended
by the Chairman of the Board and reviewed and determined by
the Remuneration Committee. No Director will participate in the
discussion and review of his own remuneration.

The NEDs are entitled to a director’s fee for their service which
was determined by the Board, pursuant to the authority given
by the shareholders at general meeting from time to time, with
reference to their duties and responsibilities in the Company and
the prevailing market situation. Currently, a sum of HK$100,000 per
annum being the basic fee for acting as a NED, additional fee of
HK$100,000 per annum will be paid to each member, who is NED,
of each of Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
of the Company and additional fee of HK$150,000 per annum will
be paid to each member, who is NED, of Audit Committee of the
Company. An additional fee of HK$50,000 will also be paid to each
INED having a seat in any independent board committee which is
required to be set up from time to time under the Listing Rules.

Remuneration details of the Directors (on individual name basis)
for the year ended 31 March 2017 are disclosed in note 12 to
the consolidated financial statements on pages 144 to 146 of
2016/2017 annual report.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Deloitte is the Independent Auditor of the Company. The
remuneration for audit services provided by Deloitte to the Group
for the year under review amounted to approximately HK$8.3
million. In addition to the audit fee, the Company had appointed
Deloitte for the interim results review and the other non-audit
services including tax compliance and advisory, remuneration of
which amounted to approximately HK$2.7 million for the year under
review.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules (including amendments as effected from time to
time) as its own code of conduct to regulate securities transactions
by Directors (the “Model Code”). All Directors have confirmed,
following specific enquiry by the Company, that they have complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the
year from 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017 (both days inclusive).
The Model Code has been extended to and has become equally
applicable to dealings in the securities of the Company by members
of senior management and relevant employees.

COMPANY SECRETARY

In March 2017, Ms YEE Chooi Mee Josephine resigned and Ms
LEUNG Wai Fan was appointed as the Company Secretary of the
Company. Ms LEUNG is an associate member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators and an employee of the Company,
with day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to article 72 of the Articles, EGMs shall also be convened
on the written requisition of any two shareholders of the Company
representing not less than 5% of the issued share capital of the
Company at the time of requisition. Shareholders wishing to do so
must serve a duly executed written requisition to the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong at 23/F, China Merchants
Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong
Kong (the “Principal Place of Business”) specifying the object(s) of
the meeting. If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date
of deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting,
such shareholders may convene the general meeting in the same
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meeting(s) may be
convened by the Directors, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by those shareholders as a result of the failure of the Directors to
convene the general meeting shall be reimbursed to them by the
Company.

In addition, any shareholder acting on his own or together with
other persons whose shareholding interests in the Company in
aggregate representing not less than 5% of the issued share
capital of the Company (other than the person to be proposed)
may nominate a person to stand for election as Director at
general meeting in accordance with article 120 of the Articles.
Any shareholder wishing to do so must serve (a) a written notice
of intention to propose such person for election as Director; (b) a
notice executed by that person of his willingness to be elected;
and (c) the information of that person as required to be disclosed
under rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules to the Principal Place of
Business between the period commencing from the date after the
dispatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election and end on (and exclude) the date that is seven days prior
to the date of such general meeting. The Company shall issue an
announcement and/or a supplementary circular, if applicable, to
inform the shareholders the biographical details of the candidate
proposed if a valid notice to propose a person to stand for election
as Director is received.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND
COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company is committed to promoting and maintaining effective
communication with the shareholders and other stakeholders.
A shareholders communication policy has been adopted by the
Board which set out the Company’s policy for maintaining an on-
going dialogue with shareholders and investment community.
The policy is subject to regular review by the Board to ensure its
effectiveness. The Company’s AGM, for which at least 20 clear
business days’ prior notice is given, is one of the principal channels
of communication with its shareholders. Shareholders have the
opportunity to communicate face to face with the Directors if
they have any questions on the Company’s performance and
operations. In addition to the AGM, extensive information on
the Company’s activities in respect of its financial, business and
operations is provided by way of announcements, annual and
interim reports and circulars which are sent to shareholders and/
or are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

Shareholders may also send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board by addressing them to the Company Secretary of the
Company whose contact details are available on the Company’s
website at www.hkri.com. The Company Secretary is responsible
for forwarding communications relating to matters within the
Board’s direct responsibilities to the Board and communications
relating to ordinary business matters, such as suggestions, inquiries
and customers complaints, to the relevant executive officers of the
Company under the direction of the Chairman of the Board and/or
Managing Director of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company is
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
No change was made to the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year ended 31 March 2017.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
M=

For the year ended 31 March HZ3HA3IBLEE
Results E4
Turnover of continuing operations SIS E TS BT 2,234.1 2,647.9
Profit attributable to owners of the RRRHER NEG R

Company 823.9 783.9
Basic earnings per share for continuing 8K E RO KR IEKE XK 2

and discontinued operations (HK cents) &% ELAZ F| (L) 61.0 58.1
At 31 March MA3H31H
Financial Position R #E AR R
Total assets BERE 29,630.6 27,766.9
Total liabilities BEBE 10,877.0 9,507.4
Equity attributable to owners NATHER AEIL RS

of the Company 16,385.8 16,056.3
Net asset value per share (HK$) SREEFEGET) 12.1 11.9
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SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS

As at 31 March 2017, the shareholders’ funds of the Group
increased by HK$329.5 million to HK$16,385.8 million (2016:
HK$16,056.3 million). The gross profit margin of continuing
operations for the Group for the year was 30.8% (2016: 32.5%).

MAJOR INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Two plots of government site in Tai Po for the total sum of land
premium of HK$3,393.0 million was awarded in November 2016.
The sites are jointly developed by Hysan Development Company
Limited and the Group. The Group’s share of land premium is
HK$1,357.2 million.

In May 2016, the Group paid the remaining balance of HK$131.3
million to complete the acquisition of the land use right of a parcel
of land in Jiaxing City, Zhejiang Province.

The Group entered into a sales and purchase agreement to
purchase 10 plots of land in Bangkok, Thailand in December 2015
and an initial deposit of HK$181.2 million was paid upon signing of
the agreement. The acquisition was completed when the remaining
balance of HK$444.7 million was paid in March 2017.

During the year, the Group acquired a residential building in Japan
at a consideration of HK$88.9 million.

MAJOR OPERATING ACTIVITIES

During the year, sales proceeds from disposal of certain
development properties in Hong Kong, Thailand, mainland China
and Japan amounted to HK$459.0 million, HK$182.5 million,
HK$391.2 million and HK$46.1 million respectively.

FINANCIAL LIQUIDITY

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had total cash and securities
investment of HK$2,792.1 million (2016: HK$5,019.9 million) whilst
total bank borrowings, bonds and other loans were HK$7,793.9
million (2016: HK$6,966.1 million).
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GEARING

The Group’s gearing ratio was 32.0% (2016: 14.0%) as calculated
by the Group’s consolidated net borrowings to the shareholders’
funds as at 31 March 2017.

BANKING FACILITIES AND OTHER LOANS

The Group closely monitors its liquidity requirements and arranges
financing for its development projects and operations as and when
appropriate.

As at 31 March 2017, the unutilised credit facilities were
approximately HK$6,417.3 million (2016: HK$7,260.5 million).

The maturity profile of bank borrowings, bonds and other loans
were 20.1% (2016: 5.0%) falling within one year, 3.5% (2016:
10.8%) falling between one and two years and 76.4% (2016:
84.2%) falling between two and five years as at 31 March 2017.

TREASURY POLICY

The Group has centralised treasury functions and adopted a
conservative approach for its treasury management. With majority
of assets and liabilities denominated in HK dollars and US dollars,
the Group has limited exposure to foreign currencies. To manage
foreign currency exposure in certain overseas investments, the
Group maintains naturally hedged positions and will make any
swap/future arrangements as appropriate. The Group’s banking
facilities are principally on floating rate basis and interest rate
swaps will be employed to manage interest rate risk for its short to
medium-term borrowings when appropriate and necessary.

It is the policy of the Group to restrict the use of financial derivatives
for speculative purpose.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2017, certain bank loans of the Group were
secured by certain investment properties and properties held
for sale at the total carrying value of HK$997.2 million (2016:
HK$1,036.2 million).
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had contingent liabilities relating to a corporate
guarantee on the Group’s proportionate share to the extent of
HK$1283.2 million (2016: HK$132.0 million) as at 31 March 2017
given to a bank in respect of a banking facility granted to an
investee company. The Group’s interest in such investee company is
classified under other non-current assets.

A subsidiary of the Company provided guarantees amounting to
HK$44.5 million (2016: HK$142.2 million) as at 31 March 2017 in
respect of mortgage facilities granted to purchasers of the Group’s
properties.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have other significant
contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2017.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

18 M % BLEN R

Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HKR INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
FREREREERRAT

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
HKR International Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 86 to 215,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 March 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matter

RREETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

B ETNAEERRETEE

Valuation of investment properties

REYRA141E

We identified the valuation of investment properties as
a key audit matter due to the significant unobservable
inputs and significant judgements associated with
determining the fair value.

As disclosed in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group’s investment property portfolio
comprised industrial, commercial and residential
properties located in Hong Kong, mainland China,
Thailand and Japan and was stated at fair value of
HK$8,688.3 million, accounting for approximately 29%
of the Group’s total assets as at 31 March 2017 with a
change in fair value of HK$623.3 million recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year
then ended.

All of the Group’s investment properties were measured
using the fair value model based on valuation conducted
by independent firms of professional valuers (the
“Valuers”). As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements, in determining the fair values of the
Group’s investment properties, the Valuers applied a
market value basis which involves, inter-alia, significant
unobservable inputs and significant judgements,
representing appropriate market rent, capitalisation rates
and adjusted market prices that have taken into account
of property-specific adjustments including location and
timing of referenced transactions.
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Our procedures in relation to the valuation of investment
properties included:

e Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the Valuers;

e Obtaining an understanding from the Valuers about the
valuation techniques, the performance of the property
markets, significant assumptions adopted, critical
judgmental areas, key inputs and data used in the
valuations;

e Evaluating the reasonableness of significant
unobservable inputs by comparing the market rent
estimated by Valuers against available market data or
rental of existing lease, benchmarking capitalisation rate
against available market data and comparing adjusted
market prices with comparable market transactions for
comparable properties in similar location and condition
on a sample basis; and

e Assessing the integrity of information provided by the
management to the Valuers by comparing details of
rentals on a sample basis to the respective underlying
existing lease agreements.
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Key audit matter

BREETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EANETFNAEERRETEE

Interest in a significant joint venture

R—FEASER AN #ER

We identified the Group’s interest in a significant joint
venture, Dazhongli Properties Limited (“Dazhongli”),
as a key audit matter due to the significance of this
investment to the Group’s consolidated financial
statements as a whole and the involvement of
judgements in the valuation of investment properties
of Dazhongli, which could in turn significantly affect the
amount of interests in joint ventures accounted for using
the equity method as at 31 March 2017 and share of
results of joint ventures for the year ended.

Dazhongli and its wholly owned subsidiaries were
engaged in the development of investment properties
and hotel properties in the Jing’an District of Shanghai
in the People’s Republic of China. As disclosed in note
19 to the consolidated financial statements, the carrying
amount of interest in Dazhongli accounted for using the
equity method and investment properties of Dazhongli
as at 31 March 2017, change in fair value of investment
properties of Dazhongli and the Group’s share of result
from Dazhongli for the year ended 31 March 2017 were
HK$1,653.8 million, HK$20,541.4 million, HK$1,068.1
million and HK$277.9 million, respectively.
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Our procedures in relation to the interest in Dazhongli
included:

e Obtaining an understanding of Dazhongli by reading its
financial information and discussing with its management
and component audit team about the financial performance,
significant events occurred during the year and the
key areas of judgement made in preparing its financial
information to identify and assess the risks that are
significant to the audit of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements;

e Evaluating the sufficiency and appropriateness of
audit evidence obtained from work performed by the
component audit team of Dazhongli by reviewing its audit
documentation and discussing the results of its work with
the component audit team; and
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Key audit matter

RREETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

B ETNAEERRETEE

All of the Dazhongli’s investment properties were
measured using the fair value model based on valuation
conducted by an independent firm of professional
valuers (the “Valuer”). As disclosed in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements, in determining the
fair values of Dazhongli’s investment properties, the
Valuer applied a market value basis which involves,
inter-alia, significant unobservable inputs and significant
judgements, representing appropriate rentals,
capitalisation rates, estimated construction costs to be
incurred and developer’s profit of Dazhongli’s investment
properties under construction.
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¢ \Working with the component audit team of Dazhongli to
carry out the following procedures:

(1) Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the Valuer;

(2) Obtaining an understanding from the Valuer about
the valuation techniques, the performance of the
property markets, significant assumptions adopted,
critical judgmental areas, key inputs and data used in the
valuations;

(8) Evaluating the reasonableness of significant
unobservable inputs used in the valuation by comparing
capitalisation rates and market rent against available
market data on a sample basis;

(4) Assessing the integrity of information provided by the
management to the Valuer by comparing details of rentals
on a sample basis to the respective underlying existing
lease agreements; and

(5) Assessing the appropriateness of estimated
construction costs to be incurred by comparing capital
expenditure incurred to date against the construction
plan approved by the management and evaluating
the reasonableness of developer’s profit used in the
valuation.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BY 2R E

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Wong Lam Ching.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
=g BERS ST
Certified Public Accountants

SR @A

Hong Kong, 21 June 2017
20176 21 HRNES
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
LEBmER

For the year ended 31 March 2017 &, Z=2017F3A31H It FE

Continuing operations BERSEER
Turnover EER 5 2,234.1 2,647.9
Cost of sales SHE KR (1,546.4) (1,787.7)
Gross profit EF 687.7 860.2
Other income EH g A 6 124.2 142.7
Administrative expenses THHAX (430.1) (407.0)
Other gains and losses E e & EsiE 7 10.5 (25.1)
Change in fair value WEMFE QN THEZE)

of investment properties

Realised gains on disposals HERZEERNE - 1.4

Unrealised gains REWUES 623.3 518.9
Finance costs Bi5E A 8 (191.7) (168.3)
Share of results of associates PaR Sk /NI (0.2) (2.4)
Share of results of joint ventures DIhEEREIEE 260.6 159.0
Profit before taxation B 551 A e 9 1,084.3 1,079.4
Taxation fiiE 10 (95.8) (126.0)
Profit for the year BB ETS

from continuing operations RFE i F 988.5 953.4
Discontinued operations BRIEEEETE
Profit for the year B P EETE

from discontinued operations KE s F 11 = 189.3
Profit for the year AN 0 ) 988.5 1,142.7
Profit for the year attributable R BEE AFEL

to owners of the Company AF [ i F

For continuing operations K EFELEER 5 823.9 698.0

For discontinued operations REBRIHEEETR = 85.9
Profit for the year attributable VNN SN el

to owners of the Company INE i A 823.9 783.9
Profit for the year attributable JEIE R S PR (G

to non-controlling interests RF[Z v F

For continuing operations REFELEER 164.6 255.4

For discontinued operations RE B IEE TS = 103.4
Profit for the year attributable SRR R IR

to non-controlling interests RFE i F 164.6 358.8
For continuing and BEESERCAL

discontinued operations KEEBRMS
Earnings per share kAT 14

Basic (HK cents) EARGEM) 61.0 58.1

Diluted (HK cents) 58 GB1L) 61.0 N/A &
For continuing operations MFELCEEEMS
Earnings per share BRAER 14

Basic (HK cents) EARGEW) 61.0 51.7

Diluted (HK cents) #ECEN) 61.0 N/A &
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SERaRkEMEZEKER

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #{Z20174F3A31HILFE

Profit for the year F [ F) 988.5 1,142.7
Other comprehensive (expense) income:  H 4 2 E (BZ ) Yz
Items that may be subsequently B @EH 7 HE
reclassified to profit or loss B HE
Exchange differences arising RBINGERBIEEZ
from foreign joint ventures PE 3 =% (379.9) (304.1)
Exchange differences arising from MEEMIRINETSESE
translation of other foreign operations ZIER =5 (126.0) (146.1)
Release of exchange reserve upon BHNBE L N B IR AN
deregistration/disposal of a foreign M /8~ Bl RSE R/
associate and foreign subsidiaries H SRR TE H - (4.1)
Available-for-sale financial assets: AEHEERERE
Fair value changes during the year FRAFEE 0.4 2.1)
Reclassified to profit or loss HENENMDEEER
upon disposal (2.2) 0.4)
Deferred tax arising from NEEEHEE
fair value changes EERIIR (0.3) 0.6
(508.0) (456.2)
Items that will not be reclassified BT EE D EL B
to profit or loss EHH
Revaluation gain on property, Y -~ BB &G
plant and equipment upon HEEIREYER
transfer to investment properties EXRl e - 21.7
Share of asset revaluation DIEEERE L
reserve of a joint venture BESHEFE = 0.2
- 21.9
Other comprehensive expense AFEEEMEAEMAY
for the year (net of tax) (fNpr#HIEIE) (508.0) (434.3)
Total comprehensive income for the year ZNGE & 2 FE 54258 480.5 708.4
Total comprehensive income TH AR EREERE
attributable to:
Owners of the Company KRBEARA A 315.9 342.0
Non-controlling interests FEfE IR = 164.6 366.4
480.5 708.4

EEEEEMENERAT 20162017 £8  §]



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
B MR R 3R

At 31 March 2017 201743 A31H

Non-current assets EMEBEE
Investment properties WEYZE 15 8,688.3 7,654.7
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE NERE 16 2,181.9 2,085.4
Prepaid lease payments JEARERK 17 - 0.1
Interests in associates L/ - ey 18 - -
Interests in joint ventures HENR S 19 8,364.2 7,299.8
Held-to-maturity investments EERHERIRE 20 107.6 146.2
Available-for-sale financial assets AP ESREE 20 87.9 08.8
Other assets HihBE 21 144.3 136.5
Deferred tax assets BEFIREE 27 3.1 3.1
19,577.3 17,424.6
Current assets B E
Inventories FE 22 47.6 49.9
Properties held for sale BlEhEymE 1,161.9 1,557.6
Properties held for/under FERE 2 ER/
development for sale Ry 23 4,755.5 3,111.5
Trade receivables FEURE 2 BR 5K 24 32.7 40.0
Deposits, prepayments e BNZmEE
and other financial assets EEmBEE 25(a) 609.1 629.7
Amounts due from associates JFE Wk Bt 45 N B FR IR 18, 25(b) 8.1 19.0
Loan to a joint venture ERTEERT 25(c) 665.3 -
Amounts due from joint ventures IR & & A R)FRIE 25(c) 166.6 1455
Taxation recoverable AR I8 9.9 14.2
Held-to-maturity investments BEIEHEE 20 48.3 56.9
Bank balances and cash RITREBR LIRS 25(a), 35 2,548.3 4,718.0
10,053.3 10,342.3
Current liabilities VE NN
Trade payables, provision and B E SRR
accrued charges BERETER 26 879.6 911.5
Deposits received and Blize &
other financial liabilities HitemBE 30 800.8 231.9
Taxation payable FETRIE 75.9 79.6
Bank and other loans due within —FERERE
one year RITREMER 28 1,564.4 351.2
Other liabilities due within —FRE
one year Hib&E 29 0.7 05
3,321.4 1,574.7
Net current assets REEEFE 6,731.9 8,767.6
Total assets less current liabilities BMEERRBARE 26,309.2 26,192.2
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Non-current liabilities

FRBHEE

Bank and other loans due after — 1B F|E 7
one year RITREMER 28 6,229.5 6,614.9
Other liabilities due after —FiEBH
one year EmatE 29 1,051.6 1,062.0
Deferred tax liabilities BELEFIBEAE 27 274.5 255.8
7,555.6 7,932.7
18,753.6 18,259.5
Capital and reserves BRI
Share capital AR 31 337.5 3375
Reserves G 16,048.3 15,718.8
Equity attributable to VAN/NSIEZS DN
owners of the Company JE{L = 16,385.8 16,056.3
Non-controlling interests FEVEE 2,367.8 2,203.2
18,753.6 18,259.5

The consolidated financial statements on pages 86 to 215 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21
June 2017 and are signed on its behalf by:

CHA Mou Zing Victor
Deputy Chairman & Managing Director
=395
BIFEFE FAHE

FCOEEF 215 EMTEGL AV BBRRECKES
SH2017F6 21 Bt EREETEE Wl T
TEEREREE

CHUNG Sam Tin Abraham
Executive Director
&0l
HITEE

saExEmERsRAT 2016207 5  §0



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mERERBBWRE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 &, Z=2017F3A31H It FE

Attributable to Non-controling interests

Ivestment Share of
property Asset Investment Captal netassets  opfions
Share  Accumulated  reveluation Share  revaluation revaluation  Exchange  redemption (labittes) o reserve of
captal leSeve  premm  reseve  resene  resene  resene  Subdotal subsiclares asubsidary  Sub-ota

At 1 Aprl 2015 RS54 375 99787 3604 15379 28 7 1186 31 16727 30402 57 30049 197626

Proft for the year KEEEH - 1839 - - - - - - 1839 388 - 368 11427
Ectenge dferences 554427
ashgfomfoen ~ E47

[oit ventures ENZE - - - - - - ) LG ) ) -
Bichange dferences  AER {0

g from EhEL,

randtionof other B EE

foreign operations - - - - - - (13 - (1B 08 - 0§ [1461)
Rekassofexchange  SESBAATR

TeSerVe Upon SINELT

deregistraton/ bRl

dsposalofa HERER

fregnassocete  EEE

and foreign

suirs - . A R

Farvaschangeson - M HESBER

aalbelorsde  ZATEED

fnancil asses - - - - . 1) - - 1) - - - 20
Rechssfiedtoproftor FEFELESE

lssupondlsposel ~~ BEREH

ofavalebledorsle  HEZER

fnancil asses - - - - - 04 - - 04 - - - 04
Defered tax arsing from TR HESFHEE

firvduechanges  ATEEHF

onadlabklo-  EfZER

sefrancilassets 7B - - - - - 06 - - 06 - i - 08
Reveluatonganon 1% - B Rt

property, plant LN

and equipment EY

Upon fransfer Bftha

o Investment

properties - - - - 133 - - - 183 84 - 84 247
Share of asset Pl

malaionresenve  BEEHERE

of ajoint venture - - - - 02 - - - 02 - - - 02
Totalcomprehensie ~ AEERENE

ncomeforter 28 -y - S5 (19 (9 S0 % SR T
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Trnsferto vestment ERAEEATHE

Share
captal

Accumulated
profts

Investment
property
reveluation
16SeIe

Attrbutable to e Company

BEAER

Investment
revaluation
T6Sere

Asset
Share  revaluation
premium - reserve

Exchange
feserve

Capital
redemption
fesene

Non-controling interests

Share
options
reserve of
asubsidiary

Sharg of
et assets
(labittes)

Sub-total

I
HKS!
ik

propery ThiEs

revalation hEnz

resenve reling EItGRE

o unrealised net

fair value gain

durngthe year - (40 7140 - - - i . . i i i i
Tranfer from EREERLTE

investment Thaes

propery EBRENE

realaionesenve B[R

relating to net fair

value gain realised

dling the year - my My - - - - - - - i i i
Seresissuedunder  EHEA R

sapopinschene  HiEHEET

of asubsiday Vi) - [ - - - - - - kg 138 LU B
Disposal of subsiciaries HEHBAT

Noee) (k) . ot -/ - N -
Didendspad  EERE - My - - - - - - M- ) - M
Diidendspadto  EAFEARRE

non-controling fRE

shargholders - - - - - B B B - [ - %y (g
Diidendbyway — WENAENE

of dstbution RAZHA

in specie of AiRE

subsidaries (Hit13)

MNote 13) - @14 - - - - - - o4y (9812 e (9858 (18999
Transfer upon WENATNE

dstbution DAk ER

in specie of

subsidares - 1904 (1809 -0 - - - - - . - .
A3 March 2016 H2016F38318 3375 93029 40912 15379 158 298 3.1 31 160663 22032 - 2082 182995
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2201743 A31 B L FE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KAARRARS
Investment
property Share  Asset Investment Capital Non-
Share  Accumulated revaluation ~ Share  options revaluation revaluation Exchange redemption controlling
Capital profits ~ reserve premium  reserve  reseve  reseve  reseve  reseve  Sub-total interests
RENE R EE & a F2k
i ZiRA  BfiRE RORE SERE EMRE EGEE EXRE  HERE it B&
HKS'M HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM
AE#T AEEn FEET FEAT FEBT RERT BEMT BERT REAT REEn  REAn
(note 2 (notel)
(Kita) (Hfith)
At 1 April 2016 R06E4A1A 3315 93029 40972 19319 - 158 28 1324 31 160863 22032 18,2595
Proft forthe year RER AT - 8239 - = = = = = - 889 o6 9885
Bichange difeences arsing 242D FES 2
fomforeign jont ventures~ [EZ R = - - - - - - (39 - 39 - 39
Bichange dfferences aising REE B EREL
fomtanstionofotter ~~ E¥EE
forelgn operafions - - - - - - - (1260) - (1260) - (1260
Fair value changes on avelable- T HESREEY
orsdefancalassels  ATEEE - - - - - - 04 - - 04 - 04
Reoassfied opoftorloss — HETHHESRER
upon disposal of avalale- ~ HEFEEER
for-sale financial assets - - - - - - (2 - - (2 - (2
Deferred tax arsing REESEER
fomfairvale changes~ AT(ERE
on avaleble-for-sle FELZEENE
financial assets - - - - - - (03 - - (03) - (03
Total comprehengieincome. ZEF2ENFAE
for the year - 8239 - - - - @24 (5059 - 3159 1646 4805
Transterto ivestment property EAAXERATES
revaiation resenerelang  EERGRANE
founredised netfarvae  EfEE
galn during the year - (64 9464 - - - - - - - - -
Reoogniion of equity-setfed ~ EAMEREENRA
Saebescdpamens  BEEZAH
(Note 37 (T2) - - - - 136 - - - - 13 - 136
At 31 March 2017 R0TEIASIE 3315 91804 50436 15379 136 158 a1 262 31 163858 23678 187536

Notes:

(@ Investment property revaluation reserve represents the Group's accumulated
post-tax unrealised net fair value gain on the investment properties of the
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates recognised in profit or loss, and then
transferred from accumulated profits to investment property revaluation reserve.
Upon disposal of the relevant investment property, the relevant unrealised net fair
value gain will be transferred to accumulated profits.

(b) Capital redemption reserve is the amount equivalent to the nominal value
of the shares cancelled upon repurchase of the Company's shares which
was transferred from accumulated profits. The reserve may be applied by the
Company in paying up its unissued shares to be allotted to members of the
Company as fully paid bonus shares in accordance with the articles of association
of the Company and the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #{Z20174F3A31 HILFE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES EEXWK
Profit for the year NG YTl 988.5 1,142.7
Adjusting items, net FHEIEE FEE (a) (512.9) (355.3)
Operating cash flows before REFABEE®
movements in working capital £ g
RERTRE 475.6 787.4
Decrease in inventories FERLD 2.3 4.0
Decrease in properties held for sale FEHEMERL 521.3 79.5
Increase in properties held for/under BIERE 2 BR/
development for sale R YEIR I (1,856.3) (1,203.2)
Decrease in trade receivables FEW R 2 BR TR 6.5 367.5
Decrease in amounts receivable JEE A T2
on contract work IR D - 48.8
Increase in progress payments receivable & U [E 3 IE 15 N - (102.7)
Increase in retention money receivable AR &l 5 3 0 - (51.3)
Decrease (increase) in deposits, e EARER
prepayments and other financial assets Hib &R EE
A () 20.6 (461.1)
(Increase) decrease in mortgage FEWUIZ 8 9 R K
instalment receivables (38 pn) (2.8) 7.6
Increase in amounts due JEW & &R A
from joint ventures IR AN (21.1) (24.6)
Decrease in trade payables, FERNE SRR
provision and accrued charges Rt N rERT
BRBL (31.9) (36.1)
Increase in amounts payable JENEHTE
on contract work TRIRIE HN - 144.4
Increase (decrease) in deposits Bl e R H A
received and other financial liabilities THMARE
G d) 568.9 (93.6)
Cash used in operations LEMARS (316.9) (533.4)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BENEBNER (57.8) (200.3)
Overseas tax paid BAEINEIIR (14.8) (11.2)
NET CASH USED IN EEXWTA
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REFE (389.5) (744.9)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
MERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 Z=2017F3A31H L F/E

INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZH
Interest received A E 58.5 70.8
Redemption of held-to-maturity BOREIESRE

investments 52.0 41.0
Proceeds from disposal of HEME - BE

property, plant and equipment KB 2 TS E0R 20.0 5.3
Proceeds from disposal of HEAHEE SR

available-for-sale financial assets BEZMEHA 14.1 1.0
Repayment of loans by associates B N RIEEEN 10.7 16.1
Loans to joint ventures BERTEERT (1,849.0) 67.1)
Additions of investment properties RNBEREMEE (406.5) (436.9)
Additions of property, plant and equipment RE %

R B K %A (240.0) (126.4)

Additions of held-to-maturity investments RAERFZEIAIRE (8.3) (16.7)
Additions of unlisted membership NEIF L™

debentures ERES (5.0) -
Additions of available-for-sale REMHEE

financial assets THMEE (2.5) (12.1)
Net cash inflows from disposal of HEWBARZ

subsidiaries RERNFE 34(a) - 242.9
Proceeds from disposal of HEREMEY

investment properties PSR - 57.9
Dividend received from an associate EUEEE A RIRE = 19.7
Dividends received from joint ventures BEREERRIRE = 8.6
Net cash outflows on acquisition of BB AR Z

subsidiaries Sk la b 33 - (1,238.4)
Net cash outflows from BRIEEEER 2

discontinued operations BRemFaE 34(b) - (569.4)
NET CASH USED IN REZEA

INVESTING ACTIVITIES BEFH (2,356.0) (2,003.7)
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FINANCING ACTIVITIES

BMEEE

New bank and other loans raised FTIZIRIT
HEMER 1,236.6 6,049.7
Advance from a non-controlling IEERAR R 2 BH
shareholder 15.0 44.4
Proceeds from issue of club debentures ~ B1TEFTESRZ
FriS k18 0.4 0.5
Repayment of bank and other loans BEEFEITK
HaER (403.5) (3,618.1)
Interest paid EfTHE (200.7) (178.7)
Repayment to non-controlling shareholders & % T FF AR AR 3R (25.0) -
Club debentures redeemed ERgMES (0.6) (0.2)
Capital contributed by non-controlling 8~ B FEHE AR
shareholders of a subsidiary R EE = 7.9
Dividends paid 2IRARE - (159.5)
Dividends paid to non-controlling B RIEERARER
shareholders IR LS - (94.5)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM RMEEEE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEFHE 622.2 2,051.5
NET DECREASE IN CASH ReRESEE
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HEZHDEE (2,123.3) (697.1)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FHzRER
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR RE&%EER 4,718.0 5,520.0
EFFECT OF FOREIGN Exge o HE
EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES (46.4) (104.9)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZEER
AT END OF THE YEAR HeEEER 35 2,548.3 4,718.0
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
MERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 Z=2017F3A31H L F/E

Note: ek -
(a) Analysis of adjusting items, net (a) FEEE FHE2ZIM
Taxation bRl 10, 11 95.8 150.0
Finance costs B 7% & 8, 11 191.7 172.0
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BER

equipment REoIE 9, 11 148.4 152.9
Impairment loss reversed BEREESE 7 = (1.0)
Share of results of associates DEBE R RIEE 18 0.2 2.3
Expenses recognised in respect of AR EEURG B

equity-settled share-based payments Bt 2 AR ERALZ 13.6 -
Release of prepaid lease payments FENEERNRE S 9 0.1 0.3
Net allowance for doubtful debts RERE BT 0.5 0.3
Net gains from financial assets SREERTFRE (2.2) (0.4)
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BEREE

plant and equipment 2 (s ) E1E (18.6) 4.0
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries ST B A B2 WS - 0.2)
Share of results of joint ventures DEEERRIREE 19 (260.6) (155.2)
Realised gains on disposal of HEREMERZ

investment properties B85 s - (33.9)
Interest income FEYA (58.5) (70.8)
Unrealised gains on fair value of REMERTEZ

investment properties REH Y= (623.3) (576.2)

(512.9) (355.3)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #{Z20174F3A31HILFE

1. GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability and its shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the Corporate
Information section of the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the development, management and
provision of essential and recreational services for residential
housing and leisure projects in Discovery Bay, Lantau Island, other
property development, property investment, hotel operations and
provision of healthcare services. The Group’s associates and joint
ventures are principally engaged in property development and
property investment.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the functional currency of the Company.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

The Group has applied for the following amendments to HKFRSs

issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants

(“HKICPA").

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2012-2014 cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Investment entities: Applying the
consolidation exception

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for acquisitions

of interests in joint operations
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure initiative
Amendments to HKAS 16

and HKAS 38

Clarification of acceptable methods
of depreciation and amortisation

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Agriculture: Bearer plants

1. &N

ARAARFAERSEMRLZEHRRERE
ERA HROREBBERZMARAR
([BE2ZPT ) BT - RARIEMMERE R T E
BRI U N FRZ AR EHAWE -

ARBREBEERAR  EMBAREEZNE
ERLEBLNAE LGS EZEEBTFTRIK
BIEB YW RERHENFEREERE - Bt
BR - MERE  OBELERHBERRFRER
% REBENRNAERRZIERXBR/Y
XBREMERE -

REMHMRARRARZEEEBTES -

2. BRAMIREEITERY
B EEA

SECERATIABLESHMASRMZEE
MR E LR (BRIA)

BEB SRS AER BB IR A

CCHEN) Bl2012F &
2014F A 2
FEoE

BB ISHRE AR REHEE EA
F10% - BBUBRE A AR Z
HRIE125 R BB DR HMBER
AERIZE 2858 (18FTAN)

BB R AR WA & T
ESREACCHEN) mERTRE

A G AER] WETE
FAFRUERTA)

B ERE165E KL BIETE R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 Z=2017F3A31H L F/E

Except as described below, the application of the above
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial performance and financial positions
for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 1 “DISCLOSURE INITIATIVE”

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 1 for the first
time in the current year. The amendments to HKAS 1 clarify that
an entity’s share of the other comprehensive income of associates
and joint ventures accounted for using the equity method should
be presented separately from those arising from the Group, and
should be separated into the share of items that, in accordance
with other HKFRSs: (a) will not be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss; and (b) will be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss when specific conditions are met. The Group has applied
these amendments retrospectively. The Group’s previous share of
exchange differences of joint ventures resulted from the translation
to Hong Kong dollars, which is the presentation currency of the
relevant joint ventures have been re-presented as the exchange
differences arising from foreign joint ventures.

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs and an interpretation that have been
issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments?

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with
customers (and the related
amendments)’

HKFRS 16 Leases?

HK(IFRIC) — Int 22 Foreign currency transactions and

advance consideration’
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 cycle?

Classification and measurement of
share-based payment transactions’

Applying HKFRS 9 “Financial
instruments” with HKFRS 4
“Insurance contracts™

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4
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Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or contribution of assets between
and HKAS 28 an investor and its associate or joint
venture*

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure initiative®

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of deferred tax assets for
unrealised losses®

Amendments to HKAS 40  Transfers of investment property’

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 or 1
January 2018, as appropriate.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.

HKFRS 9 “FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS”

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities, general hedge
accounting and impairment requirements for financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the Group are
described as follows:

° All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of
HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within
a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and that have
contractual terms that give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”). All other debt investments and
equity investments are measured at their fair values at the end
of subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9,
entities may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 Z=2017F3A31H L F/E

° In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an
incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39 “Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement”. The expected credit loss model
requires an entity to account for expected credit losses and
changes in those expected credit losses at each reporting period to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In other words,
it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred before
credit losses are recognised.

Application of HKFRS 9 in the future may have impact on the
classification and measurement of the Group’s financial assets:
(a) the Group’s available-for-sale financial assets will either
be measured at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) or
FVTOCI depending on further assessment; (b) classification and
measurement of the Group’s held-to-maturity investments and
other financial assets classified as loans and receivables under
HKAS 39 will be subject to further assessment as to whether they
were held within a business model whose objective is to collect
the contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal outstanding. In addition, the expected
credit loss model may result in early provision of credit losses
which are not yet incurred in relation to the Group’s financial assets
measured at amortised cost.

It should be noted that the above assessments were made based
on an analysis of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities
as at 31 March 2017 on the basis of the facts and circumstances
that existed at that date. As facts and circumstances may change
during the period leading up to the initial date of application of
HKFRS 9, which is expected to be 1 April 2018 as the Group
does not intend to early apply the standard, the assessment of the
potential impact is subject to change.

HKFRS 15 “REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH
CUSTOMERS”

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive
model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS
11 “Construction contracts” and the related interpretations when it
becomes effective.
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The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-step approach to
revenue recognition:

° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer
° Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract
° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

° Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the
goods or services underlying the particular performance obligation
is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance
has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued clarifications to HKFRS 15 in relation
to the identification of performance obligations, principal versus
agent considerations, as well as licensing application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
HKFRS 15 in the future may have an impact on the amounts
reported and more disclosures relating to revenue required.
However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of
the effect of HKFRS 15 until the Group performs a detailed review.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 Z=2017F3A31H L F/E

HKFRS 16 “LEASES”

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification
of lease arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors
and lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and the
related interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis of
whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer. Distinctions
of operating leases and finance leases are removed for lessee
accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability have to be recognised for all leases by
lessees, except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions) less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for
any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability is initially
measured at the present value of the lease payments that are
not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted
for interest and lease payments, as well as the impact of lease
modifications, amongst others. For the classification of cash flows,
the Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease payments as
investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands for owned use
and those classified as investment properties while other operating
lease payments are presented as operating cash flows. Upon the
application of HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease liability
will be allocated into a principal and an interest portion which will
be presented as financing cash flows by the Group.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised assets for
prepaid lease payment for leasehold lands where the Group is
a lessee. The application of HKFRS 16 may result in potential
changes in classification of these assets depending on whether the
Group presents right-of-use assets separately or within the same
line item at which the corresponding underlying assets would be
presented if they are owned.
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In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and
continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group as lessee has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$35.5 million as disclosed
in Note 39. A preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease under HKFRS
16, and hence the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability in respect of all these leases unless they
qualify for low value or short-term leases upon the application
of HKFRS 16. In addition, the application of new requirements
may result changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure
as indicated above. However, it is not practicable to provide
a reasonable estimate of the financial effect until the directors
complete a detailed review.

AMENDMENT TO HKAS 7 “DISCLOSURE INITIATIVE’

The amendments require an entity to provide disclosures that
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities
arising from financing activities including both changes arising from
cash flows and non-cash changes. Specifically, the amendments
require the following changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities to be disclosed: (a) changes from financing cash flows;
(b) changes arising from obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries
or other businesses; (c) the effect of changes in foreign exchange
rates; (d) changes in fair values; and (e) other changes.

The amendments apply prospectively to the Group for annual
periods beginning on 1 April 2017. The application of the
amendments will result in additional disclosures on the Group’s
financing activities, specifically reconciliation between the opening
and closing balances in the consolidated statement of financial
position for liabilities arising from financing activities will be provided
on application.

EAMHAGFREERR - BEMBREE
AIZ16RARREBTESFEYNEI7TRAL
HANGHER  TEBRTEEABEES
BRAREHEXHERE -

Bsh - EBUTRE A 6R BB
RO -

M2017F3A31H « WM FE39THE T - &
EEREBAB TR B EHERIER35.5
BEBL - IFHHET  ZETHEFESE
B EREEAFIHR T ZHETE Bt
EEERITAERSHERREREEE LE
JEEE  BIFEEBEBHMEHREERIFE16
SR ZEHEFAKEENETHEE - 1t
SN ERFAERSER LENIRZAE 2
IR EEE - Al - FEZZNFAEHZ
AR BT Er SB G A1T -

B GETEANETIR(ETA) ]
PRt al]

ZEBFIARTERRENESTE  EM5
BREREAFEEARETHMELE AR
28 ERASREELZEPNIFRSE
o ABME  RFEATAREREATER
BRBMELAZBEZY QBMERSRE
EEZEH  O)MEFRREMBARHEAM
EBEGREEZEE  IBEXEFH
TE O HEEZS  ReEMES -

ZEERNEAREREER2017F4 /818
Fiaz FEHRERNER - BEZSEBTA
HEREEREEES 2 AINEE RN E
BEBRGAV SRR REERE E8mhE
£ BYIEBR B EEREE -

EsmEzEnEmaRAE 2016207 £5 | ()3



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 Z=2017F3A31H L F/E

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 40 “TRANSFERS OF INVESTMENT
PROPERTY”

The amendments to HKAS 40 clarify that, to transfer to or from,
investment properties, there must be a change in use. A change in
use would involve (a) an assessment of whether a property meets,
or has ceased to meet, the definition of investment property; and (b)
supporting evidence that a change in use has occurred.

The amendments also re-characterised the list of circumstances as
a non-exhaustive list of examples to allow for other circumstances
to be accounted for as a transfer, as long as that change is
supported by appropriate evidence as follows:

(@ commencement of owner-occupation, or of development
with a view to owner-occupation, for a transfer from investment
property to owner-occupied property;

(b) commencement of development with a view to sale, for a
transfer from investment property to inventories;

(c) end of owner-occupation, for a transfer from owner-occupied
property to investment property; and

(d) inception of an operating lease to another party, for a transfer
from inventories to investment property.

The amendments require the entity to apply retrospectively. The
directors of the Company anticipate that the application of the
amendments may not have significant impact on the Group’s
transfers of investment properties.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of the
other amendments to HKFRSs and the new interpretation will have
no material impact on the results and the financial position of the
Group.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis, except for certain properties and financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment”, leasing transactions
that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS
36 “Impairment of assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset taken into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest
and best use.
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In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access
at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either

directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts

and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control listed above.
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When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of an
investee, it has power over the investee when the voting rights are
sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee unilaterally. The Group considers all relevant facts
and circumstances in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting
rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

° the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to the
size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote holders
or other parties;

° rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

° any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that
the Group has, or does not have, the current ability to direct the
relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made,
including voting patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss from the date the Group
gains control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

HEERREHR ZRERREERZH - B
RERERENETREERENIETRE
TREHR 2 EBELE - KERHREHR
BEESD - EMARERBREHARZEAERR
BRABTERIE SEZEMAHEBEEE
KfBR - B

e HRERBAMKRERMABRBUNEMERERE
BEEENRRREREENDMHIER

o KE EHUREESAEAEMENRF
BRBERZRE

o REHEMEXNLHHERN K

s EMEAKEERBELARRHENE
TEHAEXFNRARNNENEEREBER
(BREAMBRRAGNHROARER)

KERESHE R RIEHI RSB A RS
AR - WK EKTE R RIS AR - BB
meE @ RAFERKESLHEHEQEZ KA
kX mAESEEGEHREAREEREX
EMBARENEERL  SFAGABAER
A o

B LEMEHKREN SRR RER AR A
BANIEER R o M@ EBUHEREE D
HEE HEARNEZEKREAERBRAR
AITEE AR IFE IR o

MEFTE HEBARZMBERERGFELH
B UBERECEABRREKE 2@ BE—
B o

PIAREEKE R ZHARXZHEBNEERNE

ERAE  #m - WA FAXMREREHN
e IR BB

EREEEBREEERAT 2016/2017 1R



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 Z=2017F3A31H L F/E

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary (except for disposal
of subsidiaries by way of distribution in specie by the Company,
where the disposed subsidiaries are ultimately under the control of
the same parties before and after the distribution), a gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (a) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (b) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to owners of the Company
and any non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/permitted
by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in
the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under
HKAS 39 or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.

Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting a business

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities that do
not constitute a business, the Group identifies and recognises
the individual identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
by allocating the purchase price first to the financial assets and
financial liabilities at the respective fair values, the remaining balance
of the purchase price is then allocated to the other individual
identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of their relative fair
values at the date of purchase. Such a transaction does not give
rise to goodwill or bargain purchase gain.
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Distribution of non-cash assets to owners

Upon loss of control of a subsidiary through distribution of shares
in the subsidiary to the shareholders of the Company where the
subsidiary is ultimately controlled by the same parties both before
and after the distribution, the Group (a) derecognises the assets
and liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the date
when control is lost; and (b) measures the distribution and the
liability to distribute at the carrying amount of the net assets to be
distributed.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing
of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates or joint ventures
are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting. The financial statements of associates
and joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes are
prepared using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group
for like transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under
the equity method, an investment in an associate or a joint venture
is initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate or joint venture. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate or a joint venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that
associate or joint venture (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture.
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The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to
the Group’s investment in an associate or a joint venture. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment is tested
for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset
by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and
fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture
of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate or joint venture are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in
the associate or joint venture that are not related to the Group.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amount receivable for goods sold
and services provided in the normal course of business, net of
discounts and the sales related taxes.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured; when it is probable that future economic benefits will
flow to the Group and when specific criteria have been met for
each of the Group’s activities, as described below.

Revenue from sale of properties in the ordinary course of business
is recognised when the respective properties have been completed
and the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the properties.

When a development property is sold in advance of completion,
profit is only recognised when the respective properties have been
completed and the significant risks and rewards of ownership
of the properties have been transferred to the buyer. Deposits
and instalments received from purchasers prior to this stage are
included in current liabilities.
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Revenue from construction contracts, interior and renovation
contracts and building materials installation contracts is recognised
using the percentage of completion method by reference to
the value of work carried out during the year as determined by
quantitative surveyors’ reports.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when the goods are
delivered and title has passed.

Service income is recognised as services are rendered.

Hotel operation income is recognised upon the provision of services
and the utilisation of the hotel facilities by guests.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment has been established.

Interest income from a financial asset excluding financial assets
at FVTPL is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discount estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue from
operating leases is described in the accounting policy for leasing
below.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land (classified
as finance leases), freehold land and buildings held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes. Except for the freehold land which is stated at cost less
impairment loss and is not depreciated, the other property, plant
and equipment (other than construction in progress as described
below) are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment other than construction in progress
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has changed as evidenced by end of
owner-occupation, any difference between the carrying amount
and the fair value of that item at the date of transfer is recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in asset revaluation
reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the
relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to retained
profits.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON TANGIBLE ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss
(if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
Quoted cash-generating unit is considered as one unit of account
in its entirety. In assessing the fair value less costs of disposal
of a quoted cash-generating unit, the Group applies valuation
techniques taking into consideration of factors including the quoted
price, control premium, discounted cash flow method in realising
the underlying assets.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is
allocated to the assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset
is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero.
The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the
unit. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.
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Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined as if no impairment loss had
been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment properties are included in
profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period in
which the item is derecognised.

If there is a transfer from investment property carried at fair value
to owner-occupied property evidenced by the commencement of
owner occupation, the property’s deemed cost for subsequent
accounting shall be its fair value at the date of change in use.
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INVENTORIES

Properties held for/under development for sale

Properties held for/under development for sale are classified
under current assets and are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs relating to the development of the properties
include land cost, construction cost, borrowing costs and other
direct development expenditure. The properties are transferred to
properties held for sale upon completion of construction.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are completed properties and are classified
under current assets. They are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost relating to the development of properties,
comprising prepaid lease payments for lands and development
costs, are included in properties held for/under development for
sale until such time when they are completed. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price less all anticipated costs to
be incurred in marketing and selling.

Others

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make
the sale.

CONSTRUCTION, INTERIOR AND RENOVATION AND
INSTALLATION OF BUILDING MATERIALS CONTRACTS

When the outcome of a construction, interior and renovation or
installation of building materials contract can be estimated reliably,
revenue and costs are recognised by reference to the stage of
completion of the contract activity at the end of the reporting
period, measured by surveys of work performed. Variations in
contract work, claims and incentive payments are included to the
extent that the amount can be measured reliably and its receipt is
considered probable.

a1
FIFRE 2 B R/BRPYE

FIELEZER/BRTVESIBERRDE
B WIRKARAERFEME ZBEED
B> BRAMEERRZKABB IR - HiE
A - BERAREMEZRERMAS - ZEY
ENERRERERELEDE -

FIELEWE

FEREMEIERME  JERBEE - I
AR AT S BFEMRE 2 RIEEFIE - £Y)
XEREEONABRE LN BBANEENRK
BREA - Dt ARELREZBHR/BZRTY
X BEEHERTIKAILL - AT&IRFERMA
EERN 2 56 N 35 & R A RO P B TR K
o

H At

B 5X$T§j}ﬂ%$ﬁ]£a RN mfﬁ@fﬁ)}f
B2t EERAB IR TRAREE SR

AR K M ME DA M R RS

ek

RS - REMBERLREENBENZE
Regw A At - RIRARKA S 2R HmEH
REKBB 2 TRER TIAMER - WiRAMAR
MRAETEAE - 5HITE RERESZE
BENZEREEASEFERATREZBERTA
BE o

EEEEERENERAT 201620788 |15
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When the outcome of a construction, interior and renovation or
installation of building materials contract cannot be estimated
reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the extent of contract
costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable. Contract
costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are
incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total
contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

When contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is shown as
amounts receivable on contract work. For contracts where progress
billings exceed contract costs incurred to date plus recognised
profits less recognised losses, the surplus is shown as amounts
payable on contract work. Amounts received before the related
work is performed are included in the consolidated statement of
financial position, as a liability, as other payables. Amounts billed
for work performed but not yet paid by the customer are included
in the consolidated statement of financial position as progress
payments receivable.

TAXATION

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before taxation’ as reported in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss because of items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group
is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it
is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities and deferred
tax assets for investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the
investment property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale.

Current and deferred taxes are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.

LEASING

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the profit or
loss on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on a straight line basis over the lease
term.
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The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments including the cost of acquiring land held
under operating leases, are recognised as an expense on a straight
line basis over the lease term.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The
aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of
rental expense on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
each element have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear
that both elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum
lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments) are
allocated between the land and the building elements in proportion
to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the inception of the
lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as ‘prepaid lease payments’ in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis, except for those that are
classified and accounted for as investment properties under the
fair value model. When the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and building elements, the entire lease
is generally classified as a finance lease and accounted for as
property, plant and equipment, unless it is clear that both elements
are operating leases, in which case the entire lease is classified as
an operating lease.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 Z=2017F3A31H L F/E

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency
(foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates) at the rates of exchange prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except for exchange
differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to a
foreign operation for which settlement is neither planned nor likely
to occur (therefore forming part of the net investment in a foreign
operation) which are recognised initially in other comprehensive
income and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal
or partial disposal of the Group’s interests. Exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at
fair value are included in profit or loss for the period except for
exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly
in other comprehensive income, in which cases, the exchange
differences are also recognised directly in other comprehensive
income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expense items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of exchange reserve.
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On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint arrangement or an
associate that includes a foreign operation of which the retained
interest becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that foreign operation, limited to
those attributable to owners of the Company in the case of disposal
of a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, are reclassified to
profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation that does not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are re-attributed to non-controlling interests
and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial
disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates or joint arrangements
that do not result in the Group losing significant influence or joint
control), the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 Z=2017F3A31H L F/E

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets include loans and receivables, held-
to-maturity investments and available-for-sale financial assets. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the asset on initial
recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.
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Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade receivables, other assets, other financial assets,
bank balances and cash, amounts due from associates, loan to
a joint venture and amounts due from joint ventures) are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment
of financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate,
except for short-term receivables where the recognition of interest
would be immaterial.

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity dates that
the Group’s management has the positive intention and ability
to hold to maturity. Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-
maturity investments are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment of financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as financial assets at FVTPL, loans and
receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

Listed and unlisted equity securities held by the Group that are
classified as available-for-sale are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period. Dividends on available-for-sale equity
investments are recognised in profit or loss. Dividends on available-
for-sale equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when
the Group’s right to receive the dividends is established. Other
changes in the carrying amount of available-for-sale financial assets
are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
under the heading of investment revaluation reserve. When the
investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see accounting
policy on impairment of financial assets below).
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 Z=2017F3A31H L F/E

Dividends on available-for-sale equity investments are recognised
in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive the dividends is
established.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of the reporting period. Financial assets are considered to
be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets
have been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost is
considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest
and principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in
addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average
credit period, observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.
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For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade receivables and other financial assets, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
When trade receivables and other financial assets are considered
uncollectible, they are written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period
in which the impairment takes place.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
losses were recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does
not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will
not be reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value
subsequent to impairment loss is recognised directly in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in investment revaluation
reserve.
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Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including bank and other loans, trade payables
and other liabilities) are subsequently measured at amortised costs,
using the effective interest method.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
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Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are initially
measured at their fair values and, if not designated as at FVTPL,
are subsequently measured at the higher of:

° the amount of obligation under the contract, as determined
in accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions, contingent liabilities and
contingent assets”; and

° the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised over the guarantee period.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that
the Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount
recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is
the present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time
value of money is material).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 Z=2017F3A31H L F/E

RETIREMENT BENEFT COSTS

Payments to state-managed retirement benefits schemes/the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an expense
when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT ARRANGEMENTS

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are measured
at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant, the
fair value of the share options granted is expensed immediately to
profit or loss, with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve).

When share options of the Company are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be transferred
to share premium. When share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be transferred
to accumulated profits. Regarding to the share options of the
subsidiary, when share options are exercised after the vesting date,
the amount previously recognised in share options reserve of a
subsidiary will be transferred to share of net assets of subsidiaries
within non-controlling interests.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

CRITICAL JUDGEMENT IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following is the critical judgements, apart from those involving
estimation, that the directors of the Company have made in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that
has the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.
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Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the directors of the Company have reviewed the investment
property portfolio of the Group and concluded that none of the
investment properties are held under a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time. Therefore,
the directors of the Company have determined that the “sale”
presumption set out in the amendments to HKAS 12 “Income
taxes” is not rebutted. As a result, the Group has not recognised
any deferred taxes on changes in fair value of investment properties
to the extent in which the disposal of those investment properties
are not subject to income taxes. The directors of the Company also
determined the investment properties held by a joint venture whose
business objective is to consume substantively all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties over time, rather
than through sale.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

Management had made the following estimations that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements and a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year.

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are carried in the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2017 at their fair value of
HK$8,688.3 million (2016: HK$7,654.7 million) (Note 15) and
based on valuation of these properties conducted by independent
firms of professional valuers. In determining the fair values of the
Group’s investment properties, the valuers applied a market value
basis which involves, inter-alia, significant unobservable inputs
and significant judgements, representing appropriate market rent,
capitalisation rates and adjusted market price that has taken
into account of property-specific adjustments including location
and timing of referenced transactions. The management of the
Company has reviewed the valuation techniques and inputs for fair
value measurements.
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As at 31 March 2017, the fair value of the investment properties
held by a joint venture amounted to HK$20,541.4 million (2016:
HK$18,741.1 million) (Note 19) and the Group’s share of the
value of the investment properties amounted to HK$10,270.7
million (2016: HK$9,370.6 million). The valuation of such
investment properties was conducted by an independent firm
of professional valuers. In determining the fair values of the joint
venture’s investment properties, the valuer applied a market value
basis which involves, inter-alia, significant unobservable inputs
and significant judgements, representing appropriate rentals,
capitalisation rates, estimated construction costs to be incurred
and developer’s profit of the joint venture’s investment properties
under construction.

Properties held for/under development for sale

Management reviews the recoverability of the Group’s properties
held for/under development for sale amounting to HK$4,755.5
million (2016: HK$3,111.5 million) (Note 23) with reference to
current market environment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets
may exceed its net realisable value. Write-down for estimated
irrecoverable amounts is recognised in profit or loss when the net
realisable value is below cost. The estimates of net realisable value
are based on the evidence available at the time the estimates are
made of the amount the properties held for/under development for
sale that are expected to realise. Actual realised amount may differ
from estimates or changes in facts and circumstances may result
in downward revision of estimated net realisable value of these
properties held for/under development for sale and additional write-
down may be required.

Project investment undertaken by a joint venture

The Group has a 50% equity interest in a joint venture, Dazhongli
Properties Limited (“Dazhongli”), whose wholly owned subsidiaries
are engaged in the development of investment properties and
hotel properties in the Jing’an District of Shanghai in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”), for investment purpose. In considering
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the recoverability of the Group’s loans to Dazhongli amounted
to HK$4,698.9 million (2016: HK$4,485.1 million) (Note 19), the
management takes into consideration the recoverable amount
of the underlying assets of Dazhongli which is determined by
reference to the costs to be incurred to complete the development
of the properties and the future rental income to be generated
therefrom. In this regard, the management considered that no
impairment is necessary in respect of the loans to Dazhongli.

5. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION

The Group is organised into five operating divisions: property
development, property investment, services provided (clubs
operation, transportation and professional property management
services), hotel operations and healthcare (provision of medical
and dental care services, comprising a cancer centre, diabetic and
cardiovascular centres, an imaging facility, dental clinics, Chinese
medicine outlets and multi-specialty outpatient centres). Each of
the operating divisions represents an operating and reportable
segment.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, in addition to the above
five operating and reportable segments, Hanison Construction
Holdings Limited (“Hanison”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “Hanison group”), which is engaged in construction,
interior and renovation works, supply and installation of building
materials, property investment and development, provision of
property agency and management services and sales of health
products, was considered as an operating segment and was
presented as discontinued operations of the Group. The segment
information reported below does not include any amounts for those
discontinued operations which are described in more details in
Note 11.
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The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results from UTABBEEERAZRD TN AFEEH
continuing operations by operating and reportable segments for the Py=! ﬁ,ﬂ%%ﬁ%i}% A EELE
year:

Continuing operations BEREER

Property  Property  Services Hotel
development investment  provided operations Healthcare

NERR NERE  RERE BEEXE  BERE
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEEn BEET EEET BEET  BEAR

For the year ended 31 March 2017  HZ2017£3831A LEE

TURNOVER RS
Segment revenue - sales to extemal DA -£8 - BALF

customers derived by the Group, RAEERTEINIRF

an associate and a joint venture JIEE 814.5 519.1 473.7 306.8 275.7 2,389.8
Excluding turnover of an associate and ~ EARRERE N A A SNl

ajoint venture JEES 0.2 (155.5) - - - (155.7)
Consolidated turnover, as reported BALEE 2R 814.3 363.6 473.7 306.8 275.7 2,234.1
RESULTS ES |
Segment results — total realised results 9 E1E4E —%E ~ BE AR

of the Group, associates and G%/R TZE """"" IREE

joint ventures (note a) 8% (fi3ta) 88.2 (53.9) 74.2 94 (16.6) 101.3
Excluding realised results of associates ~ #Ak3FEE A GEE AT

and joint ventures not shared REEDAZ

by the Group DEREE 18.1 122.7 - - - 140.8
Results attributable to the Group EEELEEE 106.3 68.8 742 9.4 (16.6) 242.1
Unallocated other income RABEMBA 104
Unallocated corporate expenses E NN NGIE= i (132.6)
Finance costs and corporate level BEBRARRAEE

exchange difference ELER (145.5)
Net unrealised gains on fair value change HAWE A FELE 2

of investment properties (note b) FEBUFE () 613.6
Net unrealised gains on fair value change EEEIEAZ D aINRE

of investment properties attributable mERES 2 ATEED

to the Group’s interest in a joint venture, 7 A& 2458 Y F 58

net of deferred tax MBEER A 400.5
Profit for the year REZEF 988.5
Non-controlling shareholders’ share FERRRE DS

of profit for the year REZRF (164.6)
Profit for the year attributable to owners AR E)%H AJE(S

of the Company REEEH 823.9

137 HKR International Limited Annual Report 2016/2017



For the year ended 31 March 2016

TURNOVER
Segment revenue - sales to external
customers derived by the Group and

Property
development

ESS
HK$M
AEAT

HZ201643 8310 ILFE

EXE
DERA - KB R
BEnRINIER

Property
investment
MERE
HK$'M

-+t

BEAT

REWES
provided
IER%

HK$'M
BEAT

Hotel
operations
BIEETS
HK$'M

s

BEBT

Healthcare
BRRE
HK$'M
BEAT

an associate ZHER 1,247.4 323.2 494.0 304.8 2787 2,648.1
Excluding turnover of an associate B eyNS A 0.2) - - - - (02)
Consolidated tumover, as reported FRERH NER 1,247.2 323.2 494.0 304.8 2187 26479
RESULTS ES |
Segment results - total realised results ~ DEFEE—£E  BLLT)

of the Group, associates and joint LAENRZBRRES

ventures (note a) B (Hsta) 252.1 68.8 782 14 (14.9) 391.0
Excluding realised results of associates ~ Zil3EEE A LKA AT

and joint ventures not shared kEERAZ

by the Group BEREE 13.3 48.0 - - - 613
Results attributable to the Group EEELEEE 265.4 116.8 732 14 (14.5) 452.3
Unallocated other income RABEMBA 1.4
Unallocated corporate expenses NN NGIE= i (126.5)
Finance costs and corporate level SREALARERZESR

exchange difference 8 (108.3)
Net unrealised gains on fair value change RAWE AT ELE 2

of investment properties (note b) B WA (D) 510.6
Net unrealised gains on fair value change EEEEAEAAIMEE

of investment properties attrioutable ¥ #% 2 AT EEE

to the Group’s interest in a joint venture, 7 & Z 3 Nz FE -

net of deferred tax MBREER IR 213.9
Profit for the year REEET 953.4
Non-controlling shareholders’ share of ~ FEZIRE 715

profit for the year KEREH (255.4)
Profit for the year attributable to owners AR F)%H AJE(S

of the Company AEERT

698.0
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Notes:

(@) The segment results of the Group include the entire results of associates and
joint ventures, excluding the unrealised gains on fair value change of investment
properties net of deferred tax arising from change in fair value.

(b) The net unrealised gains on fair value change of investment properties for
the year ended 31 March 2017 of HK$613.6 million (2016: HK$510.6 million)
represented the unrealised gains on fair value change of investment properties
of HK$623.3 million (2016: HK$518.9 million) net of deferred tax charge arising
from change in fair value of HK$9.7 million (2016: HK$8.3 million).

Other than including the entire revenue and entire results of
associates and joint ventures as segment revenue and segment
results respectively, the accounting policies of the operating
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
described in Note 3. Segment profit (loss) represents the
profit earned by (loss from) each segment without allocation of
unallocated other income, unallocated corporate expenses, finance
costs and corporate level exchange difference, net unrealised gains
on fair value change of investment properties and net unrealised
gains on fair value change of investment properties attributable to
the Group’s interests in a joint venture, net of deferred tax. This is
the measure reported to the chief operating decision maker for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.

All of the segment revenue from continuing operations reported
above is from external customers.
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No analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by operating and SEVERBERECENAIZERY A D 2 EE
reportable segments is disclosed as they are not reviewed by the eaEzoW BABMOWIIFREELE
chief operating decision maker nor otherwise regularly provided to FRERN N EHRIRETEELERREER

the chief operating decision maker for review. e
OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION H 75 ZRE R
Continuing operations HERSEER

Property Property Services Hotel Unallocated
development  investment provided  operations  Healthcare amounts

NERE  MRRE EERB 0 EERE  BRRR  AOE:E
HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M
FEET  HEEnT  EEER  HEET  ERER  HEEX

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZ201753A31BLLEE

Amounts included inthe measure of  SFEABERMIE I SE
segment profit or loss:

Revenue from infer-segment sales” &Rz HEIA* - (08) (10.7) (04) - - (116)
Depreciation it 121 128 54.2 58.0 58 55 148.4
Release of prepaid lease payments ~ BABERTES - - 0.1 - - - 0.1
Net allowance for doubtful debts REAETE - - - - 05 - 05
Nt gains from financial assets SRAENETE - - - - - (2.9) 2.2)
Loss (gain) on disposal of property,  HEWE - HERREL

plant and equipment BB (&) 03 - (18.8) (04) - - (18.6)
Interest income HEMA (204) (1.3 - (44) - (26.4) (58.5)
Finance costs H%ER 21 2.1 - - - 1685 1917
Income tax charge FrEmT 428 29 1.0 13 27 44 95.8
Share of results of associates MEBELAEE 02 - - - - - 02

Share of results of joint ventures MERENFEE 173 1226 - - - (400.5) (260.6)

EEEEENENERAT 20162017 £58 |35



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 Z=2017F3A31H L F/E

For the year ended 31 March 2016

Amounts included in the measure of
segment profit or loss:

Property
Oevelopment

HE16EIA3BILER

Property
investment

!

Senices Hotel
provided operations
5 EEER
HKS'M

BEAT

Unallocated

Healthcare amounts

Revenue from infer-segment sales” ARz HEIMA" - (08 (10.5) 0.1 - - (114
Depreciation ik 6.8 187 54.2 62.1 70 57 1495
Release of prepaid lease payments RS [ZEL - - 03 - - _ 03
Impairment loss reversed on property, %1% BIE REXEMR

plant and equipment and other b ENER

recelvables RERESE - - - - (1.0 - (1.0
Net allowance for doubtful debts REABTE - - 0.1 - 02 - 03
Net gains from financial assets SHERNRTE - - - - - 04 04
Loss on disposal of property, HENE  BRRGEER

plant and equipment - 03 02 34 0.1 - 40
Realised gains on dlisposal of HERENF  EERNE

investment properties (14) - - - - - (14
Interest income FlEmA (16.4) @1 - 31) - #.3) (69.9)
Finance costs BHER 08 246 - - - 1429 1683
Income tax charge it 745 276 101 68 29 41 1260
Share of results of associates MEBELAEE 02 22 - - - - 24
Share of results of joint ventures MEAELARE 125 404 - - - (213.9) (150.0)

YN EEZHEENREREZERZZ ARG (N

* Inter-segment sales are entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreements, if any, governing those transactions, in which the pricing was
determined with reference to prevailing market price or actual cost incurred, as
appropriate.

BIVET  RSEHRD2RATHERERELKA
(BRI ERBRME)EE °
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TURNOVER FROM MAJOR PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

The following is an analysis of the Group’s turnover from continuing
operations from its major products and services:

TREMERY 2 EXE
T AEESEEEEH 2 T BEQRREZ
BEEHI

Sales of properties SHE W 810.6 1,243.7
Rental income LU A 339.6 301.6
Hotel revenue B JE A 306.8 304.8
Provision of healthcare services IRHEERERS 275.7 278.7
Other services rendered A M ARTE 501.4 519.1

2,234.1 2,647.9

GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION

For each of the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016, the Group’s
continuing operations are located in Hong Kong, mainland China
and South East Asia and Japan.

The Group’s revenue from external customers from continuing
operations based on the location of properties and goods delivered
or services rendered, and location of properties in the case of
rental income, and information about its non-current assets by
geographical location of the assets are detailed below:

b [ B

HE2017FE N2016FE3A3IBIESRFE &
EHECEERURES PEAMARE
e M EA o

SEFBEEEB 2 RBINBEP (AWE -
RN EmBERRBZAEAEE - slES
WAME - AOEREMRELE) ZBARE
REREEMEVES D ZIFRBEEERNZ
FHBEWT

Revenue from Non-current assets
external customers (note a)
REMBEFEZWA ERBEE (Kizka)
2017 2016 2017 2016
HK$’M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEBT BEBT BEBT BEBIT
Hong Kong aE 1,325.4 1,915.1 11,229.8 9,295.3
Mainland China B it 443.3 340.1 6,487.4 6,368.2
South East Asia and Japan NP S A S N
(note b) (fizED) 465.4 392.7 1,517.2 1,376.5
2,234.1 2,647.9 19,234.4 17,040.0
Notes: P 5E -

(@ Non-current assets excluded financial instruments and deferred tax assets.

(b) Revenue from countries in this category are individually less than 10% of the
Group’s revenue.

(@) FRDEETBREMTENEEHRIBEE -

(b) REZEHBERNRAER LT BEEBRRAZ
10% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 Z=2017F3A31H L F/E

INFORMATION ABOUT MAJOR CUSTOMERS FRTERP ZEF

The revenue from individual customer contributed less than 10% of REMMEFE  KEBETEZWATIEIB
the total turnover of the Group for both years. EEEZETE10%

6. OTHER INCOME 6. Hml A

Continuing operations BESEEK
Other income includes the following: Hib W A BT &IE -
Bank and other interest income IRITREMF S WA 58.5 69.9
Other income H A 65.7 72.8
124.2 142.7
7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 7. HblBEREE

Continuing operations FERSEER

Other (losses) gains include the following: Efth (E518 ) Yz B IE T 7 & 1E ¢

Net foreign exchange loss SN [ 5% E5 18 (10.2) (26.3)
Gain (loss) on disposal of property, HEWE  BEMKEZ

plant and equipment Wzs (Es18) 18.6 (4.0)
Gain on disposal of an associate and HEBERAFIREERRLZ

ajoint venture Wz = 2.3
Impairment loss reversed on property, YIE - BB BRI A R E A e

plant and equipment and other U BR 3R 2 BE Ol R B B 18

receivables = 1.0
Net allowance for doubtful debts RERB B FHE (0.5) (0.3)
Others Hith 2.6 2.2

10.5 (25.1)
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8. FINANCE COSTS 8. MBEH

Continuing operations BEREER
Interest on T3 B\ ZFE
Bank and other loans IRITREMER 151.0 125.9
Advance from a non-controlling FEIE AR AR R B R
shareholder 9.0 6.7
160.0 132.6
Less: Amounts included in the cost B ETAREREZBREF
of properties under development LD ¥ e k=
for sale (9.0) 6.7)
151.0 125.9
Bank and other loans arrangement fees ~ $RT R E M BN L HEE B 40.7 42.4
191.7 168.3

Borrowing costs capitalised arose on specific borrowings to finance BAREERAEALREBEEEHLE ZEERY
the properties under development for sale for both years. R PR TEL o

EPE

9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 9. BRUEADEF

Continuing operations BERSEER

Profit before taxation has been arrived B B AT A2 R (FAD

at after charging (crediting): TFH)&IF -
Auditor’s remuneration IZE BN & 8.3 8.7
Cost of inventories and developed FERDEREMEKRAN

properties recognised as an expense RAERX 601.1 666.3
Operating lease rentals in respect of land  +H# MEF 7 REHER S

and buildings 34.4 35.7
Staff costs incurred (including directors’ 2 &4 8 TALA

remuneration) (BREESHS) 636.4 602.8
Release of prepaid lease payments ENEENRED 0.1 0.3
Depreciation E 148.4 149.5
Gross rental income under operating KEHETNZ2HS

leases on: WA sR%E -

Investment properties WEME (331.7) (294.6)

Other properties Hivz (7.9) (7.0
Less: Outgoings B 39.4 44.0

(300.2) (257.6)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 Z=2017F3A31H L F/E

10. TAXATION

10. BiIE

Continuing operations BEREER
The taxation charge comprises: BMEZHEE
Hong Kong Profits Tax calculated RFE A ERUE MR
at 16.5% of the estimated assessable HE16.5%T 5
profit for the year EFEFEH 41.3 92.9
Overseas tax calculated at rates LBEBREREREA
prevailing in respective jurisdictions MEFE 28N RIE 31.9 9.7
73.2 102.6
Deferred taxation for current year (note) N4 [FIRIETIE (FI3E) 22.6 23.4
95.8 126.0

Note: An analysis of deferred taxation for the year is as follows:

Mt REEERBIBZAONAT

Deferred tax charge arising during the year REFREMFEATEEYESE
in respect of unrealised gain on KRB 2 IELERES
fair value change of investment properties 9.7 8.3
Deferred tax credit on disposal HEREYEZBELERBER S
of investment properties - 3.9
Others Hih 12,9 18.9
22.6 23.4

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of

mainland China subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.
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According to the requirements of the Provisional Regulations of the
PRC on Land Appreciation Tax (“‘LAT”) effective from 1 January
1994 and amended on 8 January 2011, and the Implementation
Rules on the Provisional Regulations of the PRC on LAT effective
from 27 January 1995, all gains arising from the sale or transfer
of real estate in the PRC with effect from 1 January 1994 are
subject to LAT at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on
the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds from the sale
of properties less deductible expenditures including payments
made for acquisition of land use rights, costs and expenses for the
development of the land or for construction of new buildings and
supporting facilities, or the assessed value for old buildings and
structures, tax payable relating to transfer of the real estate and
other deductible items prescribed by the Ministry of Finance.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before
taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss as follows:

RIEBE1994F1 A1 HEERBN2011F1 A
8RBT 2 Bl L B (E R E 1T I5 0 & 8
19951 27 AR v A L2 ERI E 1T
B ERAARET - N1994F1 A1 BIBFT
BHhEFEE 2 B S E RS AR EEE
2 4 b B T 2 T R 30% £ 60% B4 £ i
BET - O ERERYEES TS RIERER
R S (B FE R IR B - s A AT RUE -
TR EEFREER BRI AN RE
B REREYRERZAEE  BEEER
B2 PR FE TR K B 75 B0 4R T8 2 E b ] 3008 08
B) -

REFHREY PEGABERANBRTINEF 2
HERMT ¢

Continuing operations BFERSEER
Profit before taxation B T A 1,084.3 1,079.4
Less: Share of results of associates W DIEBEE AR ER 0.2 2.4
Share of results of joint ventures DIEEERNREE (260.6) (159.0)

Profit before taxation attributable S EEEBRT AR T

to the Group 823.9 922.8
Tax charge at the domestic income BARHPTS TR 16.5%

tax rate of 16.5% FrEFRIES WM 135.9 1562.3
Tax effect of income not taxable for BEFRBAZ RIS E

tax purpose (107.0) (89.3)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AR ASY 2 M2

for tax purpose 33.1 34.9
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised  RIERTIIAE 1B 2 Fii% 29.2 24.2
Utilisation of tax losses previously FRIBERER 2 TIBEE

not recognised (10.8) (2.5)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries R E ff Bl EHE R L&~

operating in other jurisdictions MEARMENR 2 8.7 0.8
Tax effect of deductible temporary RERATMBE YR ERE 2

differences not recognised M E 0.6 1.5
Effect of LAT in the PRC HE I EN R 4.7 04
Withholding tax on undistributed earnings E 4N E A FIAR D IREF] 2

of foreign subsidiaries TEH0L (0.1) 6.9
Others EHAth 1.5 (1.6)
Taxation attributable to the Group EBEFAEGTIE

for the year 95.8 126.0
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 Z=2017F3A31H L F/E

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Pursuant to a resolution of the board of directors of the Company
on 13 October 2015, the Company declared an interim dividend,
satisfied by distribution in specie of approximately 48.47% of
the issued capital of its subsidiary, Hanison to the Company’s
shareholders. The distribution was made by way of allocating
1.21639 Hanison shares for every 5 shares held by the Company’s
shareholders. Upon the distribution, the Group held no interest in
Hanison group and Hanison group ceased to be subsidiaries of the
Company. Details of the distribution in specie had been disclosed
in the announcement of the Company dated 13 October 2015.

The consolidated profit for the period from 1 April 2015 to 3
November 2015 from discontinued operations was set out below:

1. SR LEREETK

BEARTEESHN2015F10A 138 2 R#
= ARAAARRRREAETED D REMEA
BB H)48.47% BB ITRA Z AN E IR T 8
BB o XD IRAA DRI RSG5 %D
TERCEE1.21639 R HMEE R M EL - RO IKIE -
SEVERSFEBERC#E - BBESETH
BARRBIZHERE - BEEEYMDRZFHBED
RARE HHA20156F10A1BB 2 R EHF
E% °

KEABRIEEEERN201594 1B E2015
F11ASHEMZZARFEIIOT ¢

For the period from

1 April 2015 to
3 November 2015

201554 A1H
%2015 11 A3H
HAfH
HK$'M
BEBIT
Turnover L 1,590.6
Cost of sales SHE AR (1,347.2)
Gross profit EH 2434
Other income HAng A 2.0
Administrative expenses THAX (114.3)
Other gains and losses Hithes R B 1E 0.4
Change in fair value of investment properties HEYERNTFEEZY
Realised gains on disposals HER 2 BEBR S 31.9
Unrealised gains REIR W 57.3
Finance costs 81758 3.7)
Share of result of an associate DR E N R A 0.1
Share of results of joint ventures DIEEERRIEE (3.8)
Profit before taxation BR B4 A g A 213.3
Taxation Bi1E (24.0)
Profit for the period B A 189.3
Attributable to: AT AT
Owners of the Company RRARHEB A 85.9
Non-controlling interests el 103.4
189.3
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Profit for the period from 1 April 2015 to 3 November 2015 BRI ETERN2015F4 H1 HE2015F 11
from discontinued operations had been arrived at after charging RSB HERM ZaF BBk (FTA) TAIFIE -
(crediting):

For the period from
1 April 2015 to
3 November 2015

2015F4H1H
£2015%F11 A3H
B
HK$'M
BEBT
Auditor’s remuneration ZE AT N & 1.5
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense TERAERABRAY 126.2
Contract costs recognised as expense in cost of sales & 4K AR B EK A 1,189.0
Staff costs incurred (including directors’ remuneration) BEESSTIKA(BIEESHE) 170.4
Depreciation e 3.4
Gross rental income under operating leases on KEME T ZIREMEHRS AL
investment properties (13.1)
Less: Outgoings W X H 1.7
(11.4)
Expenses included in cost of contract work: FSTABHIRERAZHE
Depreciation e 2.6
Release of prepaid lease payments TERHE R 0.1
Rentals under operating leases in respect of KEHEZHS
Plant and machinery B K i 2% 5.0
Others ) 0.8

During the period from 1 April 2015 to 3 November 2015, Hanison R2015F4 1B E2015% 11 A3H #ifE -
group contributed to the Group’s net operating cash inflows of Bl A S BN R EIR SR AFEEF93.38
HK$593.3 million, paid HK$963.1 million in respect of investing BAET  RREEHX63.1BE B TR
activities and received HK$638.3 million in respect of financing R & EEUENG38.3HE BT ©

activities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2201743 A31 B L FE

12. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE 12. ESmMEREERSHE
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION S 2F£

FOR CONTINUING AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS MPFELCEREREREERME
(@) Details of directors’ remuneration are as follows: @ ZEEMEFBEOT

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eleven (2016: B EM11E(2016F - 11B)EEZ AL
eleven) directors were as follows: &mT -

For the year ended 31 March 2017 BIE2017F3A31ALFE

Executive Directors (note a) Non-executive Directors (noteh)  Independent Non-executive Directors (note c)
HES(ia) FHTES(Hib) BUFHTES (o)

Cha Cha  Chung Tang  Ronald Cha WongCha  Cheng  Cheung Tang Ho
MouSing MouZing  SamTin Moon  Joseph MouDaid MayLung KarShun Wing Lam Kwai Pak Ching

Payson Victor ~ Abraham Wah  Arculi  Johnson Madeline Henry Linus ~ Chang  Loretta
BHE  EEH  BU0E  ¥RE  EE Bl IEXE B3 RAR HRY  fME
HKYM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM
BE#R EE#n BERT FERT FBEn FEEn ERAR BEER BEEn RERT EEER

Fees e - - - - 04 04 0.1 0.2 04 04 04 17
Other emoluments i
Selaries and other benefits &4 i 2R 52 A 27 49 - - - - - - - 205
Performance related Eg(ia)
incentive payments
(note d) 06 120 07 20 - - - - - - - 153
Equity-setied share-based  JERHE MR
payments BEEZ AR 25 25 17 17 10 10 10 10 04 02 06 136
Retrement benefts RIMRTEEIER
schemes contribution - - - 0.2 - - - - - - - 0.2
Total emoluments i 83 22 5. 88 14 14 14 12 08 06 10 513
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

Executive Directors (note a)

#
Cha Cha  Chung Ronald
MouSing  MouZing ~ SamTin Joseph
Payson Victor  Abraham Arcull
ELH 3
HK$M HKSM
BEAT BE#T
Fess e - - - - 0.1
QOther emoluments Etiihs
Salaries and other benefits 54 R A 52 74 26 48 -
Performance related EnR )
incentive payments
(note d) 30 8.2 09 17 -
Retirement benefits RIVERIEE
schemes contribution ey - - - 02 -

Non-executive Directors (note b)

MouDaid  May Lung

HE2016F3A31HILEE

Independent Non-executive Directors (note c)

Cheng ng Tang Ho

Kar Shun -~ Wing Lam Kwal  Pak Ching
Henry Linus Chang  Lorefta

¥ iR

HKSM
BEAT

Cha  Wong Cha

Madeling
TE5E
HKSM

Johnson

0.1 01 03 04 04 04 18

- - - - - -

Total emoluments Wewg 8.2 156 35 6.7 0.1

01 0.1 03 04 04 04 3.8

Notes:

(@) For Executive Directors’” emoluments shown above were for their services in
connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and the Group.

(b) The Non-executive Directors’” emoluments shown above were for their
services as Directors of the Company.

(c) The Independent Non-executive Directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services as Directors of the Company.

(d) The performance related incentive payments are determined with reference
to the operating results and comparable market statistics of the Group, and
individual performance of the directors during the year.

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
the directors as an inducement to join. No directors waived any
emoluments during both years.

e

(@) EXRFAAHHATEFMEDARSEARFREE
EIREHARRRT o

(o) ERFARHIFATERME HRBREREEIALAE
FHIRTS ©

© LERMRHBIIFATESHEIARERETAR
RlEFHR

(d) EREDHZEFARE LEXERALRTIZH
B ARERERRRETE -

RMFER > SEYEREEHERRERS
MAKBZME - RMER - BEESHREE
g -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 Z=2017F3A31H L F/E

(b)  Employees’ remuneration b) EEHE

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the five highest paid individuals HZE2017F3A31ALFE  r SERAEES
of the Group included four (2016: four) executive directors, whose HIMATEHPPIEZ(20164F : UHF) BHITE
emoluments are disclosed above. The emoluments of the remaining E OREZMERN LEXIFEE - 82 T~ —% (2016
one (2016: one) employee are as follows: F:—B)EEZHMENT :

Salaries and other benefits e MEMmEF] 4.7 4.3
Retirement benefits schemes contribution R K& Fl|5+ 2 7 0.1 0.1
4.8 4.4

The emoluments of the aforesaid employee were within the FtiiEE ZBEBR TF|AR -
following bands:

2017 2016

HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000 4,000,0015% 7T — 4,500,000%5 7 - 1
HK$4,500,001 — HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 7T — 5,000,000 7& 1 -
1 1

13. DIVIDENDS 13. BB

No final dividend paid for the financial HZE2016F3H31H
year ended 31 March 2016 (2016: for LE B B S 30 4 R 5 R AR
the financial year ended 31 March 2015 & £, (20164F : & E2015%F

of HK7 cents per share) SAS1H LB RFE —
BR7EMW) = 94.5
Interim dividend by way of distribution NEYD ENB AR ZFER
in specie of subsidiaries (note) 7R 2 HERRR B (BT 3E) - 914.1
- 1,008.6
Proposed final dividend for the financial ~ ##k&E 22017943 HA31H It
year ended 31 March 2017 of HK7 MIRFEE 2 KRR E—FK
cents per share (2016: no final dividend 731 (20164 : & ZE20164
was proposed for the financial year SAS1H I BFE
ended 31 March 2016) I S AR R B S, ) 94.5 -
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Note: On 13 October 2015, the Company declared an interim dividend,
satisfied by distribution in specie of approximately 48.47% of the issued capital
of its subsidiary, Hanison to the Company’s shareholders. The distribution was
made by way of allocating 1.21639 Hanison shares for every 5 shares held by
the Company’s shareholders. The distribution in specie by the Company was
recognised at the carrying amount of the net assets of Hanison group attributable
to owners of the Company as the directors of the Company considered that
Hanison was ultimately under the control of the same parties before and after the
distribution.

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE
FOR CONTINUING OPERATIONS

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share for
continuing operations attributable to owners of the Company is
based on the earnings figures calculated as follows:

M5 - M2015F10 8138 » AR AIRAR AR IAE
WD IREN B AT EBEL48.47% 2 R ITRA 2 R E
IR EARE B o IR DR AR R B R T B 5AAR 1D 1
fe281.21639MR BB R A 1EL - AR ARREERA
BRERDIRATE S ABRATRKIES  MARRR
REMDIRIEAR AR A A ER RS & EFE
BEE(ERER

14. 8 REF
MR ECLERMS

ARAREANBIERBERERGBRERNL#
SERNTIRE TS BFBETHE

Earning 27

Earnings for the purposes of calculating 5+ & & % E 28 % #5% (20164 -

basic and diluted (2016: basic) ER) Bz BHN(RATR]

earnings per share (Profit for the year HE ANEEARFERF)

attributable to owners of the Company) 823.9 783.9

Less: Profit for the year attributable to B AR AR AEER

owners of the Company for BEERIFEEER
discontinued operations ZANE S A - (85.9)

>

Earnings for the purposes of calculating sTEFEKSLEKFRERNR
basic and diluted (2016: basic) B8 (20164 « EAR)EF
earnings per share for continuing ZBI(RRAREER ANEG
operations (Profit for the year REFELEEH RFE
attributable to owners of the Company % #))

for continuing operations) 823.9 698.0
2017 2016
Number of shares B

Number of ordinary shares in issue during St EESREAREN Z REED
the year for the purpose of calculating BEITE R ER

basic earnings per share 1,350,274,367 1,350,274,367
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary share: EL#ESE % ) L@k~ 52 -
Adjustment in relation to share options  FLZANA F13&1T 2 M0 B4
issued by the Company {EH 2 A% 12,813
Number of ordinary shares in issue during =t 5 R%#5% 22 7|
the year for the purpose of calculating ZARFEEBEITEBEREE
diluted earnings per share 1,350,287,180
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 Z=2017F3A31H L F/E

No diluted earnings per share for continuing operations had been
presented for the year ended 31 March 2016 because there were
no potential ordinary shares outstanding from continuing operations
during the year.

FOR CONTINUING AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share attributable
to owners of the Company is based on the following data:

RPN EZE2016F3A31H IEFEWETKE
B L EEBEEE H 2 X B - MERI
BEYHECLEEBEREEAT -

FERERER IR EEBME

ARBER ARG ERER LB TR N IRE
THIEEE

Earnings for the purposes of calculating 5t E G E AR 2 #58 (20164F -

basic and diluted (2016: basic) earnings
per share (Profit for the year attributable
to owners of the Company)

EX) BN BN (KRE
A ANBIEARFERA)

823.9 783.9

The denominators used for basic and diluted earnings per share
for continuing and discontinued operations are the same as those
detailed above.

FOR DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

For the year ended 31 March 2016, basic earnings per share for
discontinued operations was HKB.4 cents, based on the profit for
the year attributable to owners of the Company for discontinued
operations of HK$85.9 million and the denominator used was
the same as that detailed above for basic earnings per share for
continuing operations.
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

15. IREWEE

FAIR VALUE NEE
At beginning of the year == 7,654.7 7,703.5
Currency realignment = Tk 3.8 36.0
Additions NE 406.5 436.9
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 33) W B8 B B A =) (B 7E33) - 1,257.1
Change in fair value recognised RIBEERZ A EZS)

in profit or loss

— Realised gains on disposals —HHER 7D EE S - 33.3

— Unrealised gains — REB WS 623.3 576.2
Disposals e - (57.9)
Transferred from property, plant and EERYE - B MRE

equipment - 35.7
Transferred to assets classified as held ~ EEE=HEAFEHE 2 BE

for sale - (10.1)
Disposal of subsidiaries/distribution in HEHBRAR/AEY DK

specie of subsidiaries (Note 34) M~ E) (FaEs4) - (2,356.0)
At end of the year FR 8,688.3 7,654.7

REZE2017F3A31BILFE » EETELE
R EYHE - REE2016FE3A31H IFF

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group has not disposed of
any investment properties. For the year ended 31 March 2016, the

Group disposed of certain investment properties and the details of
which are as follows:

B SELEETREMEZFHBOAT

Sales proceeds received B U sHE TS RUE 57.9
Original cost of acquisitions WiiE 2 REX A E (23.2)
Accumulated gains on change in fair value recognised @A FECHER Y A FEEH

in prior years Zatlies (31.4)
Realised gains on disposal recognised during the year SR HERFER 2 2R 3.3
Realised gains on investment properties through & 55 Hj ENBRARIZREWE

disposal of subsidiares B & = 30.0
Total realised gains on disposal of investment properties & #y\ B R B IR 4R 33.3
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 Z=2017F3A31H L F/E

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at 31 March
2017, 31 March 2016 and the dates of transfer from property,
plant and equipment and to assets classified as held for sale have
been derived by the following independent firms of professional
valuers with appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in
the valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations.

Location of

Name of valuer investment properties

DTZ Cushman &
Wakefield Limited

Cushman & Wakefield K.K.

N&A Appraisal Company
Limited

Hong Kong and mainland China

Japan
Thailand

The board of directors of the Company has set up a valuation
committee, which is headed up by the management of the
Company, to determine the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs for fair value measurements. Discussions of valuation
processes and results are held between the valuation committee
and valuers at least once every six months, in line with the timing of
Group’s interim and annual reporting.

VALUATION TECHNIQUES

The fair value of investment properties located in Hong Kong is
determined either by using income capitalisation approach or
direct comparison approach. The income capitalisation approach
is calculated by capitalising the rental income derived from
the existing tenancies with due provision for any reversionary
income potential. The direct comparison approach assumes sale
of property interest in its existing state by making reference to
comparable sales transactions as available in the relevant market.

The fair value of investment properties located in mainland China
and Thailand is determined by using direct comparison approach
assuming sale of the property interest in its existing state by making
reference to comparable sales transactions as available in the
relevant market.

The fair value of investment properties located in Japan is
determined by using income capitalisation approach. The income
capitalisation approach is calculated by capitalising the rental
income derived from the existing tenancies with due provision for
any reversionary income potential.
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£EMR2017F3A31H » 201643 A31HMU K
EERAME  BEMREREDBEAFELE
ZEEESAZIREMELNTE  THEATEE
HEERKAREE B 2 BUMESE
LR 7B BEMEMITETEERE -

REVRER
fh{E &8 ZHE
HIERITARRAF FEMTEAM

Cushman & Wakefield K.K. BHZ
N&A Appraisal Company  Z=E
Limited

ARBEEFGCRIBARREEEAENMG
BZE®  UNATEFEEEEEMERD
RBABE - REZESRGEEMEL SN E
ARTABGLEBRERERNWE - BEE
FY P R R R B SRV B — B -

HERIS

NREBBNEEDEN R FEIERBAER
OERERLEEMETE - WABNEEER
BAMEHER A T P UE T & YA S R SHE
BERBRDRANEERENAE - ERLEER
FERSERBMSAGYAILRZHERS
BRAMERAREBLEDEREMET -

R BN R FEEHREY RN A FETE
REZRLBOE2EREM S AEL A LR
EXHBRAMERAREHENE#amE

;'_Eo

R AR EDEN R FHETMERBAER
LEMEE ° WABMMOREBEMCURA
AP Y ER 9 2 M A S R SHE (] 7 A B
AREE BEMETH -



SUMMARY OF FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY AND LEVEL 3 FAIR REEERNE=-ERAFETFE
VALUE MEASUREMENTS mE

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating leases EBMAKEHE NEBERIES S EE AL
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured BERBRZYERTHRAATFERENGE - I
using the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as DRERARIEREYE - R20174F3H31H
investment properties. As at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016, N2016F3H31H KBV FBAKREMESS
all investment properties of the Group are valued by reference to a EE=—EBRATVETEME-

Level 3 fair value measurement.

The movements during the year in the balance of investment FAE=ZEBRAFEAE T2REMELHZ

properties under Level 3 fair value measurements are as follows: I -
HK$'M
BEBTT
At 1 April 2015 720154 A1 1 6,763.6
Currency realignment Rz a1.7
Additions NE 419.0
Acquisition of subsidiaries g NIE=P/NE] 1,257.1
Change in fair value recognised in profit or loss REZER AT EEY
- Realised gains on disposals —HER B ERNE 1.9
— Unrealised gains — REIB W 622.4
Disposals e (11.8)
Transferred from property, plant and equipment ERAYE  BEREEB 26.0
Transferred to assets classified as held for sale ERESEARBENECEE (10.1)
Transferred from Level 2 (note) EEAE ZER(ME) 900.9
Disposal of subsidiaries HERTB AR (2,356.0)
At 31 March 2016 20163 H31H 7,654.7
Currency realignment B 3.8
Additions NE 406.5
Change in fair value recognised in profit or loss RIBHEER A EZ S
— Unrealised gains — R 623.3
At 31 March 2017 A201753H31H 8,688.3
Note: During the year ended 31 March 2016, there was a transfer from Level Wt REE2016%E3 8318 I-FE - BTAHE 2
2 to Level 3 fair value measurement of HK$900.9 million as a result of the AZEAREINMER0.9GEB T AT EAER
significance of unobservable inputs increased. There were no transfers among FE_BRBEF=ER - REZE2017F3A31BILF

levels of fair value hierarchy during year ended 31 March 2017. B AFETREREREEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 Z=2017F3A31H L F/E

LEVEL 3 VALUATION METHODOLOGIES EF-ERMEERE
Below is a table which presents the significant unobservable inputs: TREF|ERTA]ERE AR

Unobservable inputs (note a)
FUBRRAYE (Hia)

Market rent Adjusted market price (note b)

Fair value Capitalisation rate (per square foot per month)  (per square foot)
AVE EA{LE ik 7k KRRTIRER (H5b)
(BABEAR) (8¥ER)

Investment properties (note c)

REME (M)
Hong Kong
B
Industrial (note d) HK$4,443.0 milion 4,0% to 4.5% HK$15 to HK$17 N/A
(2016: HK$3,701.0 milion) (2016: 3.8% to 4.5%) (2016: HK$13 10 HK$17)
HK$56.8 milion N/A N/A HK$7,000
(2016: HK$57.9 million) (2016: HK$7,150)
T#(M3ka) 4443 0BEET 4.0%%Z4.5% 15ETEITET TEf
(20165 : 3,701.08E%TT) (2016% : 3.8%Z4.5%) (2016%F - 13BLE1TAT)
56.8B B8 TR TR 7,0007C
(20165 : 57.9AEAT) (2016% : 7,150 )
Commercial HK$2,489.9 milion 6.1% 0 7.8% HK$25 to HK$71 N/A
(2016: HK$2,355.2 milion) (2016: 6.4% to 8.0%) (2016: HK$25 to HK369)
[GE 248998 BT 6.1%Z7.8% SETLETIETL TER
(2016% : 2,355 2B B8 7T) (20161 : 6.4%Z8.0%) (2016%F : 25/BLE69BT)
Residential HK$751.6 millon N/A N/A HK$5,820 to HK$22,200
(2016: HK$708.8 millon) (2016: HK$4,980 to HK$22,100)
fFx 751 6EERT TER TER 5820871222, 2008 7T
(2016% : 708 8E EAT) (2016% + 4,980 7T
222,100%87T)
Mainland China
HEIA
Residential HK$129.7 milion N/A N/A RMBS5,900 to RMB7,900
(2016: HK$121.5 million) (2016: RMB5,100 to RMB6,900)
Fx 1297HEBT TR TR ARE5,9007E ARE7,9007T
(20165 : 121 SESETT) (2016% : AK75,1007T
Z AR#6,9007T)
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Unobservable inputs (note a)

TABREH A RS (fa)
Market rent Adjusted market price (note b)
Fair value Capitalisation rate (per square foot per month)  (per square foot)
AVE N[ i 7ika RREMZER (Kb
(BABEAR) (B¥ER)
Thailand
=
Residential HK$13.0 million N/A N/A THB5,800 to THB21,500
(2016: HK$12.7 milion) (2016: THB5,700 to THB21,500)
fTE 13088%T TER TER 580054221, 50054
(2016F : 127EBET) (20164 : 5,700%4k
2215005 4)
Japan
2P
Commercial HK$285.6 milion 4.0% (2016: 4.0%) JPY700 (2016: JPY700) N/A

(2016: HK$278.8 million)
GES 2856A BB
(20165 : 278 8B EBT)

4.0%(2016% : 4.0%) 700RE(2016% : 700RE) @R

Residential HK$518.7 million 3.5% 10 4.3% JPY410t0 JPY510 N/A
(2016: HK$418.8 milion) (2016: 4.0% 10 4.4%) (2016: JPY410to JPY510)
Fx 518.7EEAETL 35%%4.3% 410HEZ510H TNER

(20165 : 4188BEBTT) (20165 : 4.0%F4.4%) (20165 : 410BEZ5100E)

Notes: MoaE -

(@ The relationship of unobservable inputs to fair value are (i) the higher the
capitalisation rate, the lower the fair value; (i) the higher the market rent, the
higher the fair value; and (iii) the higher the adjusted market price, the higher the
fair value.

(b) Adjusted market price has taken into account of property-specific
adjustments including location and timing of referenced transactions.

(c) Fair value measurement of investment properties is positively correlated
to the market rent and adjusted market price, but inversely correlated to the
capitalisation rate.

(d) The Group had obtained approval to convert an investment property from
industrial to commercial use and the refurbishment works are underway. Such
property is valued at HK$3,740.0 million (2016: HK$3,023.0 million) as at 31
March 2017.

(@ TABEBEABEEAQNTFERZBERANEARLE
e ATESE: (el ATEES &
(EREMSEELS - AFEES -

b) EHREMSERCTREEDEAR(RELER
2ERH2KRE) -

) WEMENDFEFEATSHES REFHETISE
RE2ILAERE - BREREAMEERZ2RAR

() SECEEE—EREMERTIEEATEREN
o - WIEFEEITEIFT LIZ - ZWER2017F3A31H
HEA3,740.0E8 &8t (20164F :3,028.06887T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 Z=2017F3A31H L F/E

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. ¥1% - BERRE

Furniture, Plant, Ferries,
Leasehold Commercial fitures  machinery  launches
Hotel  Freehold landand  and leisure Leasehold and and andmotor Construction

properties land  buildings  facilities improvements  equipment  equipment vehicles  in progress

BRTHE  BAR Bl HE LR
BENE KAgELH BT RENE EEMREE RERRR ASRRRE SMRAE  ARIR
HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM HK$M
BE%n  BRER  ERER  EEER BT EERT  ERER  EBRER  EEER

C0ST BE
A1 Aprl 2015 Ro01554A18 14516 547 6948 6527 3124 2830 1389 5033 70 4284
Qurrency realignment BHAE {400) (165) 09) - 08) 20) 03) 03) 03 (609)
Addiions HE 49 - 81 50 320 370 07 %5 122 1264
Disposals/write-off HEMH (85) - (15) (34) (272) (138) (04 20 - (56.8)
Acquisiion of subsidiaries Note 33) W2 2] (f3233) - - - - 02 0.1 - - - 03
Disposal of subsidiares (Note 34)  (HEMBA(Ffz£34) - - (729 - (163) (19.7) ) (168) - (1968)
Transferred to investment properties  EEZRENE - - (19.1) - - - - - - (19.1)
Reclassifcation EE - - - - (05) 05 - 07 07 -
At31 March 2016 R2016535318 14080 2382 6085 6543 3000 2851 678 5114 182 40015
Currency reaignment s 17 52 02 - (16) (44) 0.1) (03 02 105
Addiions HE 91 - 285 126 270 476 - 753 39 2400
Disposals/wrte-off HEM 79 - - - (08 (35) - (156) - [2758)
Reclassffcation Exip] 13 - - - - 05 - 02) (16) -
At 31 March 2017 2017535318 14222 2434 6368 666.9 3248 3253 67.7 5706 567 43144
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENTS & R &
At1 Aprl 2015 Ro01554A 1R 5037 - 1874 3031 2104 2113 1302 4290 - 20651
Currency reaignment BEAE (30.7) - 03) - (12 (1.4 02) - - (339
Provided for the year TEERE 579 - 147 143 %6 219 12 199 - 1555
Eliminated on disposals/write-off {1 /4 45 138 (5.0) - - (29 (252) (12.7) (04) 20) - (475
Eliminated on disposal of NG

subsidiaries (Note 34) HH(hE34) - - 229 - (14.0) (16.1) 63.1) (109) - (1269)
Impaiment loss reserved RERERE - - - - - (12 - - - (12
Transferred to investment properties  ERZRENF - - (1) - - - - - - (1)
At31 March 2016 2016435318 5259 - 1738 4052 1956 2018 67.7 4361 - 20081
Currency realignment EBER 99 - 01 - (19) (39 (0.1) (02 - 42
Provided for the year TEERE 546 - 128 153 %7 213 - 197 - 1484
Elminated on disposals/rite-off (1 &/ RIS (79) - - - (02 29 - (156) - (262
Reclassffication EFipr| 06 - - - - - - 06) - -
At 31 March 2017 2017535318 5835 - 1865 4205 2186 2164 676 4304 - 2135
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 March 2017 2017535318 838.7 2434 4503 264 106.2 1089 04 1312 567 21819
At31 March 2016 12016F3A31A 8821 238.2 4347 29,1 1044 833 01 753 182 2084
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ltems of property, plant and equipment, other than construction ERTREUINZZE - BEMEEBRIZAT
in progress, are depreciated on a straight-line basis, over their EEt A ERFHUEREITE ¢
estimated useful lives as follows:

Freehold land No depreciation KAERELTH Wi E

Hotel properties 3-40 years B JE 5 3-40%F

Leasehold land and buildings, 5-50 years, or over HETHREF - 5-50F gk fifEA2 - Al

commercial and leisure facilities the lease term if shorter G ES AHEEHR

Leasehold improvements 5 years, or over the lease HEWEERE 5F R WE R - Rl AH
term if shorter EHAR

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3-7 years Bt REREE 3-7%F

Plant, machinery and equipment 5-15 years RE - HES Rt 5-15%F

Ferries, launches and motor vehicles ~ 3-20 years Ebw T RRE 3-20%

17. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 17. ARHES

The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise: EFENBENTEE -

Leasehold land in Hong Kong UREBZHEELH - 0.1

Leasehold interest in land was released over the terms of the leases Rt HERDIZHAEBAREGAHETE -
on a straight-line basis.

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES/AMOUNTS 18. Hﬁ“j b N E 2B R

DUE FROM ASSOCIATES /N

Cost of unlisted shares FE TR 2 AR = -
Share of reserve DB - -
Share of post-acquisition losses, DU EE 2 E 1A

net of dividends received MR B SE = -
Amounts due from associates (Note 25(b)) & Y B 4 N 7 5218 (M 5X25(0)) 592.3 603.0
Share of post-acquisition losses of SMEBRAREE B

associates covered by binding ZHE N T 2 WA

obligation (note) E1E (K5E) (584.2) (584.0)

8.1 19.0
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 Z=2017F3A31H L F/E

Note: The Group is obliged to make good the net deficits of Tung Chung Station
Development Company Limited (“TCSDCL”) and Polyoung Limited (“Polyoung”)
in proportion to its interests in TCSDCL and Polyoung. At the end of the reporting
period, the Group’s obligation in this connection amounted to HK$584.2
million (2016: HK$584.0 million) and accordingly, the same amount has been
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position and presented as a
deduction from the Group’s advances to TCSDCL and Polyoung.

Details of the principal associates of the Group as at 31 March
2017 are set out in Note 43(c).

The summarised financial information of the Group’s associates is
set out below:

M5E : & B 78 5 ¥ Tung Chung Station Development
Company Limited ([ TCSDCL |) R1&aBR A= ([ &
wm )2 FEBE  LHAERTCSDCLEIEE 2 s o
R|EBR  SEEANEHEEEA8428E8HF T
(2016%F : 584.0A @B TT) - ZELBENERE MR
REMERIW BHEEL FTCSDCL R Hik 2 B o

)56201 7¢3H STHEEEH LN ZFFE

Total assets EEMRE 29.8 76.2
Total liabilities BEEE (1,914.2) (1,960.0)
Net liabilities £ 555 (1,884.4) (1,883.8)
Group’s share of net assets SESMEEEFE -
Group’s share of net liabilities {5 B EFE (584.2) (584.0)
(584.2) (584.0)
Turnover EER 0.2 0.3
Loss for the year REEER (0.6) (8.0)
Group’s share of results for the year B AREEELS (0.2) (2.3)
Dividend received from an associate EYEEE A RIRE - 19.7

The financial information in respect of each of the Group’s
associates is not material and no separate summarised financial
information of each associate is presented.
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19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

The interests in joint ventures include the Group’s 50% equity
interest in Dazhongli. An analysis is as follows:

Interests in: RNTREIHERS
Dazhongli NGl 6,352.7 6,240.7
Other joint ventures Hipg & A 2,011.5 1,059.1
8,364.2 7,299.8

DAZHONGLI

Dazhongli and its subsidiaries (“Dazhongli group”) are engaged in
the development of investment properties and hotel properties in
the Jing’an District of Shanghai in the PRC.

GRS
ARPEREMBAR(IAPERE]) HEH
RANPE EETHRR 2 IRENEREEY
=,

Cost of unlisted shares IE TR Z B A 0.1 0.1
Cumulative exchange differences (note a) Z &t X, =58 (fizTa) 154.4 5341
Share of post-acquisition profits (note b) 15 Y B 14 3 51 (Bt 3Xb) 1,499.3 1,221.4
1,653.8 1,755.6
Loans to Dazhongli (note c) BT AP E(Miztce) 4,698.9 4,485.1
6,352.7 6,240.7

Notes:

(@ These represent exchange realignment and exchange differences relating
to translation of the loans advanced by the Group to Dazhongli, which are
denominated in US dollars and HK dollars, that form part of net investment in
foreign operations.

(b) The increase in share of post-acquisition profits of Dazhongli in the current
year mainly arose from the Group’s share of fair value gain on investment
properties of Dazhongli.

(c) The loans to Dazhongli are unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no
fixed terms of repayment. The Group has no intention to exercise its right to
demand repayment of these loans within the next twelve months from the end
of the reporting period. The directors of the Company believe the settlement of
these loans is not likely to occur in the foreseeable future as they, in substance,
form part of net investment in Dazhongli group as the proceeds of the loans
have been substantially used by Dazhongli to inject as registered capital into its
PRC subsidiaries. Accordingly, the amount is classified as non-current asset and
included in the Group’s interests in joint ventures for the purpose of presentation
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

et

@ HHEEEHREKERAATERRZELABRE
RER  ZELWURTRETTFE - LHRRIRI
EBREFHAD

(o) REEDERTEZRBRENEM - TRRNE
B ARFRBZLEMERNTFERE °

© BTRPEZERDEERR  2EREEEER
B RESENBEPRREARRT —EARNTRE
BN BREBZEENR - ARKPEESERNE
ZRBAFEIAEPEMBARELAEMER » &
RAEEHREZFERBTER A RRREEE - &
ZEBRERRATEEBE Z AN R EFH - Hut -
BEAMBRARZ2IIME - EESBCINEIRR
PEE Yt ANEERESLE AR EE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 Z=2017F3A31H L F/E

The summarised consolidated financial information in respect of K EEER201743A31H K201643 A31
Dazhongli group as at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016 is set BrEma B ERmEHTIMT -
out below.

The joint venture is accounted for using the equity method in these BENREREREINEEZS AU BRE -
consolidated financial statements.

Non-current assets ERBE E
Investment properties "EME 20,541.4 18,7411
Hotel properties under construction and 7 558 J& 1) 3 & 28 1
equipment 1,052.5 1,024.9
Other non-current assets HEMIERSERE 151.6 141.5
21,745.5 19,907.5
Current assets MENE E
Bank balances and cash IRITEBERE 811.3 3741
Other current assets HEMmBEE 231.2 23.4
1,042.5 397.5
Current liabilities mEAE
Loans from shareholders R E 8,881.5 8,970.2
Other current liabilities BEMmmEas 1,812.2 1,005.1
10,693.7 9,975.3
Net current liabilities MENBEEFRE (9,651.2) (9,577.8)
Total assets less current liabilities BWEERRSEE 12,094.3 10,329.7
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Bank loans RITEXR 7,077.0 5,877.2
Loans from shareholders BRERER 516.2 -
Deferred tax liabilities BIETIAE B 1,193.5 941.3
8,786.7 6,818.5
Net assets BEFE 3,307.6 3,511.2
Group’s share of net assets SENhEEFE 1,653.8 1,755.6
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For the year ended 31 March

HZE3ANMALEE

2017 2016

HK$'M HK$'M

BEET BEBTT

Revenue A 155.5 -

Cost of sales SHE AN (82.7) -

Gross profit EF 72.8 -
Change in fair value of investment KEMENFEE

properties 1,068.1 570.5

Other operating expenses Hib&E > (267.4) (84.9)

Taxation g (317.7) (142.6)

Net profit after taxation for the year INE BRI 5T 555.8 343.0

Group’s share of results for the year EBRD M AFEEE 277.9 171.5

Note: The investment properties were measured at 31 March 2017 at fair value
of HK$20,541.4 million (equivalent to RMB18,236.4 million) (2016: HK$18,741.1
million (equivalent to RMB15,616.0 million)) which was based on the valuation
conducted by DTZ Cushman & Wakefield Limited, who have appropriate
qualification and recent experiences in the valuation of similar properties in
the relevant locations. The valuation was derived from residual method based
on capitalising the net earnings that would be generated from the investment
properties in their completed form, and has taken into account the developer’s
profit and construction costs already incurred as well as the estimate costs to be
incurred to complete the properties. The fair value measurement of investment
property is valued under Level 3 fair value measurement, which is measured
based on the significant unobservable inputs including the estimated market
rent, capitalisation rate and developer’s profit. The increase in the balance of
investment properties for the year ended 31 March 2017 as stated above was
due to the fair value gain of HK$1,068.1 million (2016: HK$570.5 million) and
additions to investment properties. The attributable deferred taxation charge in
respect of the gain was HK$267.0 million (2016: HK$142.6 million). Thus the
net fair value gain after tax amounted to HK$801.1 million (2016: HK$427.9
million) of which the Group’s 50% share of gain was HK$400.5 million (2016:
HK$213.9 million). The investment properties are held within a business model of
the joint venture whose business objective is to consume substantively all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties over time, rather than
through sale.

MeE - RIBEEZITERARETZGEE  BEWER
2017F3A31 B Z AFEA20,541.488FT(HHER
AR¥18,236.4B &) (20164 : 18,7411 EHE BT
(HHERARK15616.0887T)) - ZARENHERH
WEZRENEBEFBAESBEEROHLER -
HENBRESEERTIRENEELEZFRAFNERE
AEABEZIMEH YO RERBEFROEL
ZEERAEMERTTBEA ZHBFTRAE - REME
ZAFEFAENREZEHATEFEMHE  EDHAE
REATABEREGAHKR(REGATERS EX
bEREREN)FTE - REIE2017F3A31BLLF
£ REWMELSN EXXATI 2R - HEAFER
51,068 1B BB IT(20164F : 570.5BEB L) LA E
WEWE - ZWE 2 EHELHES HA267.08 8%
TL(20164F : 142.6BEAT)  INBRFIEER 2 A FE
FUW B80T 1 E BB IL(20164F  427.9B &) -
=@ EHIREE 2 50% ¢+ BN400.55F &% 7T (20164 -
213 9B EBL) - BREMENUAERRIZHEEHER
AFE MEBEAZEKBENIRENMEERAZSR
BYEFMBEZBRIDKENZ  MIEBBLER
fﬁ °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 Z=2017F3A31H L F/E

Level 3 valuation methodology FZEREESE

Below is a table which presents the significant unobservable inputs: TREJNERTAERBAZE

Unobservable inputs (note a)

AAEER ABE (MFa)

Estimated market rent
Fair value Capitalisation rate (per square metre per month) Developer’s profit

AVE ERfE et EEE(BAGTAK) BRERA

Investment properties (note b)

BAEME (HFEp)
Mainland China
Sl
Commercial HK$20,541.4 million 3.5% t0 5.0% RMB237 to RMB909 1.0% to 10.0%
(2016: HK$18,741.1 million) (2016: 4.0% to 6.0%) (2016: RMB246 to RMB1,091) (2016: 8.5% to 11.0%)
[GES 20,541 4BEBTT 3.5%%5.0% AR#237LE ARB09TT 1.0%%10.0%
(20164 : 18,741 1EEBIL) (20164 1 4.0%%6.0%) (20164 : ARME2467T (2016 : 8.5%
= AR#1,0917T) £11.0%)
Notes: 5T -
(@) The relationship of unobservable inputs to fair value are (i) the higher the (a) TAIBRGASIEHEQNFERZBERER)EMEE
capitalisation rate, the lower the fair value; (ii) the higher the estimated market wE 2FERE: (fETmEEeds  AFER
rent, the higher the fair value; and (jii) the higher the developer’s profit, the lower = MiEEEENES » AFEBRK -
the fair value.
(o) Fair value measurement of investment properties is positively correlated to (b) WEMEZ N FENERAATHEAS 2 LR -
the estimated market rent, but inversely correlated to the capitalisation rate and BEE RN R KBRS 2RI -

developer’s profit.

The capital commitments of Dazhongli group at 31 March 2017 AP BEEP2017F3A31H KX201693 A31
and 31 March 2016 are as follows: HZBEAALEWT

Contracted but not provided for DEROIERIERE 565.2 1,339.0

The capital commitments of Dazhongli group attributable to the ERRAPEEFB  EREAENFR LS E Y
Group represents 50% of the amounts stated above, will be 50%  BHBRERIARPEEEZHEE
financed by shareholders’ loan or direct borrowings of Dazhongli BEMNES -

group.
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OTHER JOINT VENTURES THAT ARE NOT INDIVIDUALLY
MATERIAL

HAERIFEA Y ABAT

Cost of unlisted shares IE MR Z A AR 6.3 6.3
Share of reserve DGR (1.2) (1.0)
Share of post-acquisition losses, SRS EE
net of dividends received R E WS (5.1) (5.3)
Loans to other joint ventures (note) ERTFHMEL AR (M) 2,011.5 1,059.1
2,011.5 1,059.1

Note: The loans to other joint ventures are unsecured and have no fixed terms
of repayment. As at 31 March 2017, the loans to other joint ventures included an
amount of HK$1,257.7 million (2016: HK$1,007.4 million) bearing interest at fixed
rates from 3% to 3.5% (2016: 3% to 3.5%) per annum. The remaining balance is
non-interest bearing. The Group has no intention to exercise its right to demand
repayment of these loans within the next twelve months from the end of the
reporting period. Accordingly, the amount is classified as non-current asset and
included in the Group’s interests in joint ventures for the purpose of presentation
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The summarised financial information in respect of other joint
ventures as at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016 is set out below:

Wi BERTEHMAERARANERFRTEBTER
H - R2017F3A31H ERTEMAERARBRES
E81,257.7E BB 7T (20164F : 1,007.4BEBT) WK
ElEFHMEI%ES.5%(2016%F : 3%E3.5%) 1B 2K
BB TRBBARE - EEESNHREHRE; KK
FTZEARITEEEN  EREEZFER - Bt -
HRREMBURREZE2INME - BEESEEIIEIER
BEE Wit A\EEREGE QB 2R -

Hith & & QN FIR2017F3H31H 201663 H
S1HZHBERESHANT ¢

Current assets MENEE 6,201.2 2,227.5
Current liabilities RENEE (6,249.9) (2,240.6)
Net liabilities BEFE (48.7) (13.1)
Group’s share of net assets SESMEEEFE = -
Net loss after taxation for the year REERTIEFEER (35.0) (33.0)
Group’s share of results for the year EESERFEEEEA (17.3) (16.3)
Dividends received from joint ventures BlUlE & ARIRE = 8.6

Details of the principal joint ventures of the Group as at 31 March
2017 and 31 March 2016 are set out in Note 43(d).

£ B MR2017943 8318 K2016F3A31BZE
ZRENAZFIBIHAMFFE43() °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2201743 A31 B L FE

20. INVESTMENTS IN DEBT AND EQUITY 20. ERRBRAEFESR 2RE
SECURITIES

Fair value measurement
at 31 March 2017 using

A2017E3H31H

AFEFE
Level 1 Level 3
E—EBR F=EHR
HK$’M HK$’'M
BEET BERT
Held-to-maturity investments FEINEEE
Debt securities (note a) BE%#E A (M5Ta)
Current A ED 48.3
Non-current JERED 107.6
155.9
Available-for-sale financial assets ~ At HE S EE
Equity securities A&7 5 75
Listed, at fair value (note b) o AT E
(Pt 5Eb) 50.0 50.0 =
Unlisted, at fair value (note c) LT BRAFE
(MizEe) 37.9 - 37.9
87.9 50.0 37.9
Analysed for reporting purposes as: AZ2RE 7 HMMLAT :
Non-current FETRED 87.9
Market value of listed equity R AES 2 TE
securities:
Listed in Hong Kong REXE LT 37.4 37.4 -
Listed overseas RSN 12.6 12.6 =
50.0 50.0 -
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Fair value measurement
at 31 March 2016 using

201643 A31H

NEF =
Level 1 Level 3
—BR E=EL
HK$'M HK$'M
BEBT ABBTT
Held-to-maturity investments BEFEKE
Debt securities (note a) E5ES (M Ea)
Current mEp 56.9
Non-current EmE) 146.2
203.1
Available-for-sale financial assets AJ{t H&E S & E
Equity securities IR 7 75
Listed, at fair value (note b) W BAY¥E
(FF5ED) 48.3 48.3 -
Unlisted, at fair value (note ¢) JEET - BAFE
(FF5Ee) 50.5 - 50.5
98.8 48.3 50.5
Analysed for reporting purposes as: A2 IRE N Z DT -
Non-current IERED 98.8
Market value of listed equity THlRAESEZTE
securities:
Listed in Hong Kong REB LT 37.7 37.7 -
Listed overseas g T 10.6 10.6 -
48.3 48.3 -
Notes: =T -

(@ Held-to-maturity debt securities are measured at amortised cost less any
impairment losses. The fair value of the held-to-maturity debt securities as at 31
March 2017 is HK$169.6 million (2016: HK$214.8 million) which is valued by
reference to the Level 1 fair value measurement deriving from quoted prices in
active market for identical assets. The weighted average effective interest rate is
6.2% (2016: 5.9%) per annum.

Included in held-to-maturity debt securities are impaired financial assets with
carrying amount of HK$11.6 million (2016: HK$8.8 million) net of the impairment
loss recognised of HK$7.3 million (2016: HK$7.3 million). No impairment loss
was recognised during the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016.

(b) The fair value of all listed equity securities are determined by reference to the
quoted market bid prices available on the relevant exchanges in active markets as
at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016.

(a) ¥FE | HIETSE 55T LA 35 Ak AR R A 5 18
MetE ° R201743A318 » HBEIHEBELEZ A
FEA169.6E BB T (20164 : 214.8BEHETT) » %
AFEDSEERME LHAREEZ REMIEZE—
BRAFEFEMEE - NMEFHERFHNELE6.2%
(20164 : 5.9%) °

REIBESESFEERRABEA 11688 B (2016
F:88ABEIL)ZERESRMEE  MKREREAR
BEEE7.3EEBL(2016% : 73EEET) - REE
20174 20163 A31 A L FE N EERREEE -

(o) FiE LETRAESR 2 AFETIZER2017F3A31

AK2016F3A31 ALERMIS BB S m%E
AFREMETE °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 Z=2017F3A31H L F/E

(c) Unlisted equity securities represent investment in private equity funds at
HK$37.9 million (2016: HK$50.5 million) which are measured using valuation
techniques based on inputs that can be observed in the market in addition to
unobservable inputs such as company specific financial information.

The Group uses the key inputs of market comparable companies and discounted
cash flows, which includes the valuation multiples and recent transaction price,
to determine the fair value of the unlisted equity securities as at 31 March 2017
and 31 March 2016. The unobservable inputs are valuation multiples, discount
for lack of marketability and discount rate. Valuation multiples include enterprise
value divided by earnings before interest and taxes, and price-to-sales multiples.
The higher the valuation multiples, the lower the discount for lack of marketability
or the lower the discount rate, the higher the fair value.

No sensitivity analysis is disclosed for the impact of changes in the relevant
unobservable data as the management considers that the exposure is
insignificant to the Group.

The movement in the unlisted equity securities is as follows:

() FETMHRAFFALEREES ZIREI7T.0BES
JL(2016%F : 50.5B &A7m) * R ERTFE -
ZERORZ2H AL AREBETERMISEIE LT
BIRGABE(WREHTEMBEER) METE -

SEERTS LATLBRARNIZHABIBELIRRA
S (EFBEAERBIIHKRE) REFEIFLD
PR ARFEH 1201743 431 H k2016 F3A31HZ A F
B TABREAREE[ERE  RRTSTEE
ZHERBRE - (hERHERLEBERUAGRIE
RRENZ B AR EREHEREH - HEBRK
ME - RSB 2 TR R R T - Al
NV EME -

HREEERAFHERYEEMST L AEA - B
ERERTEESEES c VERBEGRRESN -

FETRAESZ ZEEHMT

Balance at beginning of the year FER 50.5 28.2
Acquisition during the year FRUYIE 25 12.1
Total gain (loss) Was (E518) 4858
In profit or loss g i=Entesl 2.2 0.4
In other comprehensive income REMEEREF (8:2) 10.8
Proceeds from disposal HESRIE (14.1) (1.0)
Balance at end of the year FRER 37.9 50.5

Included in other comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2017
was a gain of HK$2.2 million (2016: HK$0.4 million) related to unlisted equity
securities which had been reclassified to profit or loss from investment
revaluation reserve upon disposal.

There was no transfer among different levels of the fair value
hierarchy in the current and prior years.
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FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS AND VALUATION PROCESSES

The Group determines the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs for Level 3 fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of unlisted equity securities, the Group
uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. The
valuation is performed at the end of each reporting period. Where
there is material change in the fair value of the assets, the cause of
the fluctuations will be reported to the management of the Group.

Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used in
determining the fair value of assets are disclosed above.

21. OTHER ASSETS

N EFERGEBRE

SEAFEANFEMEETAENEER
PSP ¢

RfAEHIE EMRARE H 2 A FER - KERA
TERTEERATSIERREE - HERS
WEMRET - WEEZRAFELREAE
B ERBzRASASEEREERS -

ARETEAEATEFERZAERTREA
B 2 R £ B -

21. HEE

Mortgage instalment receivables (note a) & Uiz 85 BR 2k (Ffi5Ta) 25.3 225
Loan to an investee (note b) MBI B HRE R (MisEb) 106.6 106.6
Unlisted membership debentures FEEmEHEES
and other assets LEMEE 12.4 7.4
144.3 136.5
Notes: =T -

(@) The mortgage instalment receivables represent the financing provided to
buyers of development properties of the Group. The amounts bear interest
at prime rate or prime rate minus 1% and are receivable by instalments over
a period of not more than 25 years (2016: 20 years) from the sale of relevant
flats. The receivables are secured by a second mortgage over the respective
properties. The portion of mortgage instalment receivables due within one year of
HK$1.2 million (2016: HK$1.2 million) is included as trade receivables in current
assets.

(o) The Group owns a 15% interest in an unlisted company incorporated in
Singapore which holds a commercial complex comprising a retail mall, 2 office
towers and a hotel in Tianjin, the PRC. The loan is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand. The directors of the Company determined that the Group
might not demand for repayment within twelve months from the end of the
reporting period and hence classified the loan as a non-current asset.

(a) EUHRIBS BEF R TFEEERMEER 26
& o HERIERERFERRZEIFERI1%E - I
SEABEEEME LB TEBB25F (20169 204 )
Ao BN E o U R T A BRI EIEE —RIBK
o Mo A1 2BEAT(2016F : 1.2BEBT)R
—FERESPZERIZBES BHREAAERDEEZ
FEUE SBRFNA o

(b) SEBER—FF MMM LL IEETRARBEF15%
KR RARRPERERE -BEEGAE &
FEEBYhL  MERAEREE-FBIE - ZE
RBEER  REREEREE  ARFAEERES
BN EHRETH _EARTEZREE - Bl
ZERDBERIERDEE
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 Z=2017F3A31H L F/E

22. INVENTORIES

22. ZE

Consumables SFEm 47.6 49.9
23. PROPERTIES HELD FOR/UNDER 2. BFEHEZRE/IZREY
DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE S

Properties held for/under development ~ HEEANIFELE
for sale in Hong Kong ZER/ERPYIHE
Discovery Bay development project M=/ REER 1,765.6 1,344.4
Other projects HibBH 954.7 8421
Properties held for/under development & & BINEVEH E
for sale outside Hong Kong ZEER/BERPYE 2,035.2 925.0
4,755.5 3,111.5

At the end of the reporting period, total borrowing costs capitalised
in the properties held for/under development for sale were HK$23.6
million (2016: HK$14.6 million). The properties held for/under
development for sale amounting to HK$3,629.8 million (2016:
HK$2,943.4 million) are expected to be recovered after twelve
months from the end of the reporting period.
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24. TRADE RECEIVABLES

The credit periods allowed by the Group to its customers are
dependent on the general practices in the industries concerned.
For property sales, sales terms vary for each property project and
are determined with reference to the prevailing market conditions.
Property rentals are receivable in advance. Payments for
healthcare, clubs and hotel services are receivable on demand.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables presented
based on the payment due date at the end of the reporting period:

24. BN E R

EEGTHER 2 ERMRTEN—RIENE
o RMEBET S - WEEREE LT
M2 LLRUSTRET - WEHE L ARE
B - BRRE S REERS 2 2AER
BB -

AT R EWE 28RN s B ARIZ B I 51 B
B2 2 BRI -

Not yet due BRI 9.5 8.7

Overdue: wH
0-60 days 0-60% 18.9 28.4
61-90 days 61-90X 2.0 1.4
Over 90 days FEREIS 0N 23 1.5
32.7 40.0

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balances are receivables
with aggregate carrying amount of HK$23.2 million (2016: HK$31.3
million) which are past due at the end of the reporting period for
which the Group has not provided for impairment loss. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

The Group has provided allowance for receivables overdue beyond
120 days because historical experience is such that receivables
that are past due beyond 120 days are generally not recoverable.
Management closely monitors the credit quality of trade receivables
and considers the trade receivables that are neither past due nor
impaired to be of a good credit quality.

ESEZERZESERBEENREHAD DS
i £ B 30 ok phOR E B 18 1B B R 2 R W AR 3R
#5h o REEA L A28.28&8T(20164F ¢
313HEEL) - EBUERZSEHRTET
fAEAR G ©

EE DA B 120K 2 8 U BR ZUIR 4t B
Y ERBIEBEEER  Z5aBA
120K Z EBR R — B R ATl E - ERER
DERBRESER 2 EEEER  TRAZSE
TmaiskREZEREZEFEERTZE
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MOVEMENT IN THE ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL DEBTS

REEE R E

Balance at beginning of the year FYE 11.7 15.3
Impairment loss recognised JEU AR 3 2 B FERR
on receivables REBE 0.7 0.7

Amounts recovered during the year FRUE 2 KT8 (0.2) 0.4)
Amounts written off as uncollectible s AEEN E 2 5RIE - (0.2)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHRBAF = (3.6)
Currency realignment BRI (0.3) ©.1)
Balance at end of the year FRE 11.9 11.7

25. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

(@  Deposits and other financial assets/bank balances and cash

Bank balances and cash represent cash held by the Group and
short-term bank deposits at market interest rate ranging from 0.01%
t01.71% (2016: 0.01% to 1.80%) per annum as at 31 March 2017.

(b)  Amounts due from associates

The amounts due from associates are unsecured, non-trade
nature, non-interest bearing and have no fixed terms of repayment.

(c) Loanto a joint venture/amounts due from joint ventures

The loan to a joint venture of the Group is unsecured, non-interest
bearing and has no fixed terms of repayment.

The amounts due from joint ventures are unsecured, non-interest
bearing and repayable on demand.
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M2017F3A31H  SRITER LR AEH
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(b) JFEUCES & A FIFIE

FEY S N RIFAEREER FESMHE - &
B EREEER -

(€ ERTEERR/IEWRAERFR
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ima'%
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26. TRADE PAYABLES, PROVISION AND
ACCRUED CHARGES

Included in trade payables, provision and accrued charges are
trade payables of HK$251.5 million (2016: HK$114.1 million), an
aged analysis presented based on the payment due date at the
end of the reporting period is as follows:

26. ENESRA  BERE
TEH

JETE SRS - B LB B AT R EEAE
S8E251.56ARAIT(2016%F 114 1B &EE
7L) - AR RREE BARRE BN E R
Z BRI

Not yet due w1 7R 2 R 129.3 79.1

Overdue: #H
0-60 days 0-60K 92.0 19.7
61-90 days 61-90K 0.8 1.4
Over 90 days H@I0K 29.4 13.9
251.5 1141

The average credit period on purchases of goods and payment for
subcontractor works is 90 days.

The trade payables, provision and accrued charges include (a)
construction cost accruals of HK$107.4 million (2016: HK$231.1
million); and (b) provisions for certain construction obligations of
HK$328.5 million (2016: HK$328.5 million). In the course of the
property development activities, the Group is obliged to construct
certain common or public facilities within the development projects
in accordance with the development plans approved by the
relevant authorities. Provision for such construction costs has been
made when a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of this
obligation and details of the movement of the provision are set out
below:

KEEREXNOBIRRIAZ FHEESRR
90K -

BHEZER  BEMESERRE@QES
BERA107.45 8B (20164F 1 231168
BIL) Ko B T EEAERTER#328.5
BEEIT(20164F : 328 5HEBT) - EEE
EITYERRESHZBRED  ARBEEHER
ez ERFTE RNERBEERNEEZAETAL
NAREN - ERERAEILIAMTERIE,S
HEM AT ST I SRR AL B
& o WIEBE 2 SBFBHINMT

HK$'M
BERER

Balance at 1 April 2015 and 31 March 2016 R2015F4 A1 H K2016F3A31H 2 &% 328.5
Provided during the year FREE 1.4
Utilised during the year FNEA (1.4)
Balance at 31 March 2017 72017963 H31 8 2 &8k 328.5
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27. DEFERRED TAXATION 27, IEEFIIE
The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities) assets NTAEHERCEIEELEFIA(AE)EEMN
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior MERBITRBAREFEZEE

reporting years:

Fair value Distributable
Accelerated change of profits of
tax investment Tax foreign
depreciation  properties losses subsidiaries Others
REME EINHIR
il AYE B AR
BEfE 28 BE KRR Hit
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEET HEERT HEER BEET HEER
(note)
(Kt=E)
At 1 April 2015 1201554 710 (188.4) (49.7) 55 (27.6) 225 (237.7)
Currency realignment BRER 0.1 15 - (1.6) 0.2 02
(Charge) credit to profit or loss (#nB)at AER (12.4) (4.5) 0.6) 6.9 0.7 (23.7)
Credit to investment revaluation reserve st AR E (L 1E - - - - 0.6 0.6
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 33) WeEE I B AR (F3E33) 6.0 - - - - 6.0
Disposal of subsidiary (Note 34) HEMB A (HF34) 14.4 - (0.5) - - 139
At 31 March 2016 12016537310 (192.3) (62.7) 44 (36.1) 24.0 (252.7)
Currency realignment % (0.5 2.7 - 2.1 (0.1) 4.2
(Charge) credit to profit or loss (M)t ABa (20.9) @.7) 0.6 0.1 29 (22.6)
Charge to investment revaluation reserve 3% 1% & 2 (4 - - - - (0.3 03
At 31 March 2017 R2017%3F31H (213.1) (54.7) 3.8 (33.9) 26.5 (271.4)
Note: These mainly represent net deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised in Mz : FERRUE TYEREB B XSRS
relation to unrealised profit of certain property development projects. MRZRLERBEEE (B&) $58 -
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For the purposes of presentation in the consolidated statement of
financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have
been offset in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. The
following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances (after offset) for
financial reporting purposes:

MEBRFEPBRRERME - ETELEHEE
ELBECREEZ @ HEEHE - UTAF
KRB 2HE M REH AL EHER) D
#r

Deferred tax liabilities EEFRIEEE (274.5) (255.8)
Deferred tax assets LR IAE B 3.1 3.1
271.4) (252.7)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses
of HK$1,120.8 million (2016: HK$1,012.9 million) available for offset
against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of approximately HK$23.0 million (2016: HK$26.6 million) of
such losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of the remaining HK$1,097.8 million (2016: HK$986.3 million) due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has deductible
temporary differences of HK$181.8 million (2016: HK$181.8 million)
mainly arising from impairment losses recognised in respect of
property, plant and equipment and inventory. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in relation to such deductible temporary
difference as it is not probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

RIFER - EEARFERBIAEREA1,120.8
BEBIT(20164F : 1,012.98 8B 7T) - Al A
RIS AR IR T - Eh#923.05 &8 (2016
F266FEBATL)BEECERELEHIEE
E o ARNEETRRARAEFIRA - F LI E 5t
#R%E1,097.8 B BAIL(20165F : 986.3H B8
T ERELERIBEE -

RIFEHR  SEETZERYE - BB MEHEU
MIFE 7 BHERBER BT B2 o] 06 Tk
ZFEA181.8HEETT(2016%F : 181.8HEE
J0) o AR K] RE A FERR B om B ] B A 4K 88
AR E R AR - H W E RS A R B A
EHEERECHELE

EEmEEBEEERAT 20162017 &% | [ ]
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28. BANK AND OTHER LOANS

28. RITREMER

Bank loans (note a) RITEF (M 5Ea) 6,837.4 6,012.8
Bonds and notes (note b) &5 REE (Hiio) 956.5 953.3
7,793.9 6,966.1
Less: Amount included under current B RFARBBE S
liabilities (including bank loans with (BFEE B e ESK
a repayable on demand clause) BERIERZFEITER (1,564.4) (351.2)
Amount included under non-current AR EE S
liabilities 6,229.5 6,614.9
Bank and other loans are repayable: SRITREMERER T
HARR (B8 -
On demand or within one year RER—FR 1,564.4 351.2
Between one and two years —FEMFNR 273.0 751.2
Between two and five years MEERFNRN 5,956.5 5,863.7
7,793.9 6,966.1
Secured BIEH 459.6 483.6
Unsecured R 3 7,334.3 6,482.5
7,793.9 6,966.1
Bank loans that contain a repayable on B A[RE R ESREE ISR
demand clause (shown under current ZIRITERARESEE
liabilities) and the scheduled payment FR) BB E A (MisEe)
is (note c):
Within one year —FR - 192.5
Within a period of more than two years ~ #2:BME(E T ERBAF
but not exceeding five years 833.3 -
833.3 192.5

Notes:

(@ As at 31 March 2017, the Group’s bank borrowings carry interest at an
average margin of 1.22% (2016: 1.26%) plus Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
(“HIBOR”), other relevant interbank offered rate or other benchmark interest rates
per annum.

(o) On 2 April 2013, the Company issued principal amount of HK$560.0 million
7-year unlisted notes at a coupon rate of 4.5% per annum. Subsequently on
10 April 2013, the Company established a US$1.0 billion Medium Term Note
Programme (“MTN Programme”). In May 2013, a total principal amount of
HK$238.0 million 7-year unlisted notes at a coupon rate of 4.3% per annum
was issued under the MTN Programme. Furthermore, as at 31 March 2017,
there was outstanding bond with principal amount of HK$161.0 million (2016:
HK$158.7 million) which carried interest at a margin of 0.4% (2016: 0.8%) plus
the relevant interbank offered rates per annum.

(c) The amounts due are based on scheduled payment dates set out in the
respective loan agreements.
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(a) M2017F3A31H £EEBITEEZRETF1.22%
(20164 : 1.26%) 2 FIEB B R MEBIRITRER
BR . HRABRITRERERNEMEER RS -

(b) M2013F4 A28 » AR AEITAE560.08 EHE T
ZTEHRIEEF45%RENBFTEBZIELTRIE - Bk
MN2013F 4 A108 * ARAIFRIL10.0BETLZFHE
BB (TR EIZEETE1]) - H2013F5A8 @ RIFPHE
BB BEITAS EEIB 0BT ZTERREGE
43%EMEFEFTBZIELTEE - 1IN - R201743
A318 » REBESFAELTE161.08 & E7 (20164 -
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29. OTHER LIABILITIES

29. Hiw& &

Advance from a non-controlling Elsaliyiie: Pl
shareholder (note) BRI E) 196.8 206.8
Club debentures EESH 855.5 855.7
1,052.3 1,062.5
Less: Amount due within one year B ETARBAEZ—FA
included under current liabilities EIH5RTE (0.7) (0.5)
Amount due after one year —F 1R B HAFRIE 1,051.6 1,062.0

Note: The amount represents advance from a non-controlling shareholder of a
subsidiary to finance operation of this subsidiary. As at 31 March 2017, included
in advance from a non-controlling shareholder is an amount of HK$196.0 million
(2016: HK$194.8 million) which bear interest at 3-month HIBOR plus 3.5% (2016:
3-month HIBOR plus 3.5%). The amount is unsecured and not repayable within
one year.

Club debentures are redeemable on their maturity dates, which are
as follows:

M3t : B A —RMB AT 2 IR 225 A
DAB 2 M B A R & IB AT © 72017938318 » EiE
IR 2 BB IR AE196.0A 88 L (20164 : 194.8
AEBT)RIEAHEEREREEINI5%(2016
F o R3EARBEBREFRESEMIE5%)5HE o ZFE
BERERDER-FREE -

EESFAINESEIHAED - ZEINHAWM
T

Within one year —FR 0.7 0.5
Over one year but within five years —FLAFBERFUA 42.4 42.9
In 2047 20474 8124 812.3

855.5 855.7

These debentures are non-interest bearing, unsecured and are
issued to members of the following clubs operated by the Group:

HEEFH/RE - BEALEITTIIEE
B EZEgMNE s

Discovery Bay Golf Club MRESBAKEE 663.7 663.7
Discovery Bay Marina Club s EEREE 43.1 43.4
Discovery Bay Recreation Club M EREEe 148.7 148.6

855.5 855.7
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30. DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND OTHER
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amount
of the Group’s deposits received and other financial liabilities at the
end of the reporting period approximates their corresponding fair
values due to the relatively short-term maturity.

Included in deposits received and other financial liabilities are
property sales deposits of HK$637.3 million (2016: HK$83.1 million)
expected to be recognised as sales in profit or loss within twelve
months from the end of the reporting period.

31. SHARE CAPITAL

30. CEEEEREMERHERS

ARREFAL ARKEZEWEE ME
MEMEBE N HAREEE  ARREH
R ZEFFRZREERERARAFERS

BlEe hEMSBmAETBEESNRED
KT T —EARRESTRREEEZME
HEIZS637.38EBL(2016%F 1 83.1HE
BIT) °

31. JRA

2017 & 2016
Number

of shares

IR &

Ordinary shares of HK$0.25 each

Authorised: VEERRA

At 1 April 2015, 31 March 2016 and

FIREE0.258 T2 T Bk

MR2015F4H1H ~ 20164

31 March 2017 3H318 &2017F3A31H 2,000,000,000 500.0
Issued and fully paid: BEITRE A
At 1 April 2015, 31 March 2016 and M2015F4H1H « 20165

31 March 2017 3H318 &2017F3A31H 1,350,274,367 337.5

32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on
8 September 2011 which permits the directors of the Company
to grant share options to all directors (including any Executive
Directors, Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive
Directors), full-time employees and any consultants (employed
on a contract basis) of the Company, its subsidiaries and/or its
associated companies to subscribe for shares in the Company.

At 31 March 2017, the number of shares in respect of which share
options had been granted under the Scheme was 15,600,000
(2016: nil), representing approximately 1.2% (2016: nil) of the
shares of the Company in issue at that date.
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A EMBRARR/REBERRZMEES
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MR2017F3A31 8  RIEZTEE LA H
15,600,000 f% (20164 : &) & {5 2 Bz H HA
o OHEERZARRBDBITRMND Z1.2%
(20164 « 4&) o



Details of the movements of the share options granted are as

follows:

Category of
participants

Director

=

Exercisable at the end of the year

FRAITE

In respect of fair value of share options granted during the year
ended 31 March 2017, the inputs into the model were as follows:

Date of grant Exercise period

28 February 2017 28 February 2017 to
20172 A 28H 27 February 2027
20179 2H28H %
202792 H27H

ERBBRD IR EFFRNT

Number of

share options

granted

during the year

Exercise ended and
price outstanding at
per share 31 March 2017
REBZ20175F
3A31ALLEFE
eRHERNZAE

5 RATEZ

R4 AR E

4.23 15,600,000

15,600,000

TR EZE2017E3A31 A L FEEHF HHRR MK E
BATEMS  BEXAEAZHABEDOT

28 February 2017
2017562H28H

Spot price

Exercise price

Expected volatility
Risk-free rate
Expected dividend yield

Exercise period

M fE

17fEE

AR IR
[ B ) K
AR B MR

1T

HK$4.23
4,237 7T

HK$4.23
42387

25.304%
1.705%
3.33%

28 February 2017 to
27 February 2027
2017F2H28H=
2027%2A27H
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The fair value of the share options is determined using the Black-
Scholes model. The variables and assumptions used in computing
the fair values of the share options are based on the directors’ best
estimates. Expected volatility is based on the historical share price
volatility of the Company over the past 5 years. Expected dividend
yield is based on the historical dividend payment of the Company.
The risk-free interest rate is interpolated from the Hong Kong
Monetary Authority’s Hong Kong Exchange Fund Bills/Notes and
Government Bonds Yield Curve as at the date of grant.

The Group recognised the total expense of HK$13.6 million (2016:
nil) for the year ended 31 March 2017 in relation to share options
granted by the Company to the directors of the Group.

33. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES BY HANISON GROUP

During the year ended 31 March 2016, there were two acquisitions
of subsidiaries including (a) General Mark Holdings Limited together
with its wholly-owned subsidiary, Masswell International Limited
(collectively referred to as “General Mark group”); and (b) Trillion
Mart Development Limited (“Trillion Mart”). The directors of the
Company were of the opinion that these transactions did not
constitute business combinations as defined in HKFRS 3 “Business
combinations”, therefore, these acquisitions had been accounted
for as an acquisition of assets. Details of these transactions are
summarised as follows:

(@  Acquisition of General Mark group

On 19 May 2015, a then indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, Shangzhi Limited, entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party to acquire
the entire issued capital of General Mark Holdings Limited, and the
shareholder’s loan, at a cash consideration of HK$253.3 million.
The acquisition was completed on 17 July 2015. The major asset
of General Mark group is an investment property representing an
en-bloc residential property situated in Hong Kong.
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33. WEBHIEE 2 F
B [ £% (B YA Y I8 8 )

REBE2016F3A3THILEFE - BRI
ENBRAREE  B2RE@EFZERERA
RIEREZ2ENBRARKTPEEERAD A
(BRI EFEE]) : X&(b) Trilion Mart
Development Limited ([ Trillion Mart]) » &R
AEERBZERHUTERESYBHRS
HERIEIHRI EBHEH IMATNESS M -
I REREEEDTABELRE - 25X 5
WEBEMYIaT

(@) WEEZHEE

MR2015F5 198 » ERARRRIMEIELE
MEBAR MEERARE—BBIE=HE
VEBE RS UWHEEeRE23.38 BB T
BRHZERERAREHEBHITHRARKRE
Ko ZUWEER 20157 A17HTEAK © EiEE
MEBEERIEME —EBEUREBNHE
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(b)  Acquisition of Trillion Mart

On 8 September 2015, a then indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, Nimble Run Limited, entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party to acquire the
entire issued capital of Trilion Mart, and the shareholder’s loan, at
a cash consideration of HK$993.3 million, representing HK$987.8
million adjusted by the net current asset value of Trillion Mart on the
completion date. The acquisition was completed on 22 October
2015. The major asset of Trillion Mart is an investment property
representing an en-bloc commercial property situated in Hong
Kong.

The assets acquired and liabilities assumed on the date of

(b)  UBETrillion Mart

R2015F9A8H ' ERAANARMEIEEE
WEARRLAER AR E—ZBIE =5
VEERE LB EREIIEEB T
Trillion Mart,z 282 /TR A MR R & 5k (48
ER087.8E BB T © & Trilion Marti? 526X B
Bz meyEEFEEAE) - ZKEBE 2015
F10H822B %K ° Trillion Martz T B&E A
EME  —BURESNEAME -

KRB R kB EEMFAERE

acquisitions:

General Mark

group
e e Trillion Mart
HK$'M HK$'M
BAEBTT BEBT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment properties WEYZE 254.9 1,002.2 1,257.1
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENEE 0.3 - 0.3
Current assets MENEE
Trade receivable, deposits, JEWE ZIRR
prepayments and other financial e - ENRER
assets HMemEE 0.1 0.6 0.7
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBEIRS - 0.2 0.2
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables, provision and ERBZENR
accrued charges BERETER ©.1) (10.2) (10.3)
Taxation payable FERTEL IR - 0.9 0.9)
Non-current liabilities EMBEE
Deferred tax liabilities BLEHIBAE (1.9 (4.1) (6.0)
Net assets acquired WU 2 BEFE 253.3 987.8 1,241.1
Satisfied by: AR
Cash consideration paid ENRERE 253.3 993.3 1,246.6
Other receivables Hoth pE U BR SR - (5.5) (5.5)
253.3 987.8 1,241.1
Net cash outflows on acquisition: WHE IR m i REE
Cash consideration paid ENREeERE 253.3 993.3 1,246.6
Bank balances and cash acquired W 2 SRITHEB RS - 0.2) 0.2)
Deposit paid BEffEe 8.0 - (8.0)
245.3 993.1 1,238.4
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34. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(@) Disposal of subsidiaries by Hanison group

On 19 March 2015, a then indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, Hanison Construction Holdings (BVI) Limited
(“Hanison BVI”) and an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary
of CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited (“CCM Trust”), Sky Champion
International Limited (“Sky Champion”), entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party. Pursuant
to which, Hanison BVI and Sky Champion disposed of their
entire interests in Superior Choice Holdings Limited (“Superior
Choice”), which was held by Hanison BVI and Sky Champion on
a 60:40 basis together with its wholly-owned subsidiary, Excel
Pointer Limited, and the same proportionate shareholders’ loans
made to Superior Choice. Excel Pointer Limited is engaged
in property investment. The total cash consideration for the
disposal is HK$549.7 million. An amount of HK$143.0 million out
of the total cash consideration had been applied for bank loan
repayment directly before the completion of the disposal. The cash
consideration attributed to Hanison BVI was HK$244.8 million. The
disposal was completed on 7 July 2015.
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R2015F3 4190 - ERFA/RARRIHEEIES
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(BVI) Limited ([ Hanison BVI]) &% CCM Trust
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It Hanison BVI K& K& i & 1% % 7 Superior
Choice Holdings Limited ([ Superior Choice])
(EHanison BVIRZ X7E 5 Bl#F B H60% &40%
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Assets and liabilities of the subsidiaries on the date of disposal: WBATIRNEERH 7 EEREE

HK$'M
BEBIT
Non-current assets ERENEE
Investment properties "B 550.0
Property, plant and equipment 7 E N NG 0.7
Current assets MEVEE
Trade receivables, deposits, prepayments and JEWE SRR - e BAFKER
other financial assets HEMmEmEE 0.3
Bank balances and cash RITHEHR LIRS 2.0
Current liabilities meaE
Trade payables, provision and accrued charges FERESER - BEMESER (2.6)
Amount due to a group company FERT SR E AT RIA (116.9)
Other liabilities due within one year —FRBzHMBE (76.2)
Bank and other loans due within one year —FRNRBEZIRITREMER (143.0)
Non-current liabilities EmEaE
Deferred tax liabilities RIETIEB & (1.1)
Net assets disposed of WHEEEFEAE 213.8
Non-controlling interests FEFERR AR R (85.5)
Assignment of shareholder’s loan EERRE R 116.3
Gain on disposal (note) U S () 0.2
244.8
Satisfied by: T
Cash consideration received WEGR &R E 244.9
Other payable HAthpE S 308 (0.1)
044.8
Net cash inflows on disposal: HE RS RAFRE -
Cash consideration received YRS RE 244.9
Less: Bank balances and cash disposed of B MEZRITEHREES 2.0)
2429
Note: Gain on disposal of Superior Choice was recognised in the result of fzE :  H & Superior Choice®) Uz R EL = 201643 A

discontinued operations during the year ended 31 March 2016.

BRI FEMBRIEEEEEETER -
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AEW DIk E HEsEE

As disclosed in Note 11, Hanison group ceased to be subsidiaries AN FT EF 11 FTEE ML - 2015911 ASHIAE
of the Company upon the distribution of Hanison shares to the Wik 2 oA [ AR RIS 9k BB A% 1D 1E &
Company’s shareholders on 3 November 2015 as interim dividend FRHEIR B - BB EETB AR NHB A
by way of distribution in specie. Al e

(b)  Disposal of Hanison group by distribution in specie (b)

HBEENEY Y IKBRNEEFE

HK$'M
BEBTT

Net assets of Hanison group on the date of distribution in specie:

Non-current assets JEMENEE
Investment properties WEME 1,806.0
Property, plant and equipment 7 E N NG 69.2
Prepaid lease payments A HEIE 6.2
Interest in an associate il sl ey 6.6
Interests in joint ventures AE N RN 175.0
Pledged bank deposits 2 Eﬁfﬁ RITIER 82.6
Deferred tax assets REFTBEE 0.3
Current assets MBNEE
Inventories 5E 156.0
Properties held for sale FELEYE 293.5
Properties held for/under development for sale BIELE 2R/ ?")E EEEES 345.6
Amounts receivable on contract work WA i’jl%“ 2 83.4
Progress payments receivable FEUYGEE X 199.4
Retention money receivable FE YR {ﬁ 239.1
Trade receivables, deposits and prepayments and  JEWE SEX ~ 8% BN RER
other financial assets HihemEE 198.8
Amounts due from joint ventures BU & &N BIFIE 1.2
Taxation recoverable AR [EIFTB 2.9
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR RS 569.4
Assets classified as held for sale DERFERECEE 10.1
Current liabilities nEEE
Trade payables, provision and accrued charges ENESER  BEREFER (650.7)
Amounts payable on contract work A TIERIE (387.8)
Bank and other loans due within one year —FEREHZRITREMER (1,197.2)
Taxation payable FESBEIR 41.3)
Non-current liabilities EmEatE
Other liabilities due after one year —FRIH HMmEE (14.9)
Deferred tax liabilities FEFTBAE (13.1)
Net assets BEFE 1,899.9
Non-controlling interest FEFENR RS (985.8)
Net assets distributed under distribution in specie ~ BE¥IHIKIE DK 2 BEFE 914.1
Cash outflows on disposal: HEZRESRD
Bank balances and cash disposed of HEZRITEB MRS 569.4
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35. ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

35. BERAEEEEBERR

pai}

Bank balances and cash RITEBR MRS

2,548.3 4,718.0

The effective interest rate of the bank balances at 31 March 2017
were in the range of 0.01% to 1.90% (2016: 0.01% to 2.30%)
per annum. The directors of the Company consider the carrying
amount of the Group’s bank balances and cash at the end of the
reporting period approximates their corresponding fair values.

36. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2017, certain bank loans of the Group were
secured by certain investment properties and properties held for
sale at the carrying value of HK$285.6 million (2016: HK$278.8
million) and HK$711.6 million (2016: HK$757.4 million) respectively.

37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

RITHEA2017FE3 A31 B 2 BB R R FF
R0.01%Z1.90% (20164 : 0.01%=2.30%)
ZEEA c ARFEERAEENRITEBR
BeNBEHR 2 RAEMEERAFEES °

36. EEE

R2017FE3H31H ' (REED 7 A285.6 8 &
BIT(20164F : 278.8BEE L) M7T11.6EE
BIL(2016%F : 757 4B 8B L) 2ETHREY
ENFBEHEMEEEAEEZ A TRITER
AR o

37. RAREE

Guarantee given, to the extent of the LA R AELL B ABBR - B
Group’s proportionate share, in respect 1% & A IR HIRTT

of banking facility granted to an investee  {E EZ81EH 7 &R
company (note a) (Fff7Fa)

Guarantees given by a subsidiary in B ARMEBMEER
respect of mortgage facilities granted BEZZBEREELZ

to purchasers of the Group’s properties R (HizEb)
(note b)

123.2 132.0

44.5 142.2
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Notes:

(@ No provision for financial guarantee contracts has been recognised in
the consolidated financial statements as, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the fair value of the financial guarantee on initial recognition and the
amount of provision to be recognised subsequently was insignificant.

(b) In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the fair values of these
financial guarantee contracts are insignificant on initial recognition and no
provision for financial guarantee contracts has been made at the end of the
reporting period as the directors of the Company consider that the possibility of
default of the parties involved is remote.

38. COMMITMENTS

B

(@) ARAAEFERS  ANVRERNPBERZAF
BEREZETHRIANBEHESELTEKR - A JMPNE
BUMBMEANERHBRERELBE -

(o) ARAEERR  REVBEREHZAFERTY
RERBILITEKR  BARREZRARBEAALEN
ZATREMEES - MR RERRL BEARBEREL
e -

38. HIE

Contracted but not provided for in the
consolidated financial statements:

EENERRGRE T BRI
TER S -
Expenditure in respect of properties held #{EH & 7 3R /3R T

for/under development for sale METZHRXZ 1,954.1 2,184.8
Capital expenditure in respect of KEMEARYE BEXR
investment properties and property, BB EARFAY
plant and equipment 297.6 528.3
Others Hib 22.8 24.5
2,274.5 2,737.6

The capital commitments in respect of the Group’s interest in
Dazhongli group are disclosed in Note 19.

39. LEASING ARRANGEMENTS
THE GROUP AS LESSEE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for
future minimum lease payment under non-cancellable operating
leases in respect of land and buildings which fall due as follows:

EEN AT EEEER 2 EREARERKFE19
PR

39. HE L HE

=8 AEFE A

RIREIR - SERE T RIEF 2 T AIHEH
REBEMANA THEN 2 ARKERE
AT -

Within one year —FR 15.3 18.5
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EFERAF(BEEEMT) 20.2 8.3
35.5 26.8
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Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group
for its office premises and staff quarters. Leases are negotiated for
an average term of two years and rentals are fixed for an average
term of one to two years.

THE GROUP AS LESSOR

Property rental income earned from investment properties and other
properties during the year was HK$339.6 million (2016: HK$301.6
million) in aggregate, of which HK$331.7 million (2016: HK$294.6
million) was generated from investment properties of the Group.
Investment properties and other properties with an aggregate
carrying amount of HK$8,711.4 million (2016: HK$7,679.2 million)
were held for rental purposes at the end of the reporting period.
Depreciation charge for the year in respect of other properties was
HK$1.4 million (2016: HK$1.3 million). The properties held have
committed tenants for a period from one to thirteen years. At the
end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with tenants
for the following future minimum leases payments under non-
cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

CEREMS NERRERAETWERETRE
SEATHES  c BEFLHEITAHEME - Ty
—EMFERHEETE -

SESHHEA

REMEREMYMERNFRARRZYERS
WAEHAE339.68 &% T(20164 : 301.6
BEBT)  Hbha331.7E8BB T (20164 ¢
2046EEBAIL)FEEERENME - R®E
ik - BREEA $£8,711.4B8 88 (20164 :
7,679.2BEBIL) IR EMEREMMETF
EHERS - AFENFHREMYEZITES
HAE14ABEBT(20164%  1.3AEHET) o
FFEEEAENBERHb—E+=F7T
L RIREEKR EEEEETHEFAH M
RIET AT A EAER T R B B2 Rk
SEAEMZTOT

Within one year —FR 308.2 265.6
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_EERIF(BIEEEMSE) 420.5 290.2
Over five years HFEMN 43.5 6.3

772.2 562.1

40. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES
HONG KONG

In order to comply with Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Ordinance, a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”)
with employer’s voluntary contributions has been established on 1
December 2000.

For the members of the MPF Scheme, the Group contributes 5%
of the relevant payroll costs to the MPF Scheme, subject to a cap
of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000 effective 1 June 2014 for
the MPF Scheme, which contribution is matched by the employee.
The Group also makes voluntary contribution in addition to the
mandatory contribution.

40. ERERIGTE
&
AFemtlERABEEEN AR

ertE([BES:E D EREEBHAER
2000512 H1B& T °

BB EZKEMS - KEEAHETE
XA Z 5% %2 E & aT BN - @B S &I
A28 ARBYA LR S30,000/8 7T (7R2014
FOA1RAER) - MATHFIAEE B FHt5RIA
PR o BRog HIERSN - REIMEL BRI -

EEEEENENERAT 20162017 £58 | §3



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 Z=2017F3A31H L F/E

The amount charged to profit or loss represents contributions paid
or payable of HK$21.1 million (2016: HK$20.9 million) to the MPF
Scheme by the Group, less forfeitures on voluntary contribution
of HK$4.1 million (2016: HK$1.1 million) arising from employees
leaving the Group prior to completion of the qualifying service
period.

At the end of the reporting period, there is no forfeited contributions,
which arose upon employees leaving the retirement benefits
schemes and which are available to reduce the contributions
payable in future years (2016: nil).

MAINLAND CHINA AND OVERSEAS

The employees of the Group in mainland China and overseas are
members of state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated
by the respective local governments in relevant jurisdictions.
The Group is required to contribute and recognise a specified
percentage of payroll costs to the schemes to fund the benefits.
The only obligations of the Group with respect to these schemes
are to make the specified contributions and recognise the
respective retirement pay in accordance with terms set out in the
schemes and relevant jurisdiction requirements.

The total cost charged to profit or loss in respect of the above-
mentioned schemes in the relevant jurisdictions amounted to
approximately HK$3.9 million (2016: HK$3.6 million).

41. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior years.
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The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes long-term bank and other loans, short-term bank loans
and other borrowings as disclosed in Notes 28 and 29, net of
cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of
the Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and
accumulated profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
periodic basis. As part of this review, the directors of the Company
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with each
class of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors of
the Company, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues and share
buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of
existing debt.

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

SEZEXFERBRERFR(EPEIEME
28 29PN R 2 RIRIT R EME R - F2H
RITERREMEES  MRREFREEFER
B)RARARHAEARGERZ(BREETR
K- EERRRA)

ARBEEERRIEARLERE - ERULERE
Z—#n  ARREFCERESKNANRERER
BAZIEBER - REARREFZERE - &
B EBIRMAE - BT - R RE
TTHERRBERAER - EAFEEREER
s o

2. €@mTH

TR A ZHER

Financial assets CRIEE
Held-to-maturity investments BEIHREE
Loans and receivables (including cash

and cash equivalents)
Available-for-sale financial assets,
at fair value

RS HEER)
T ESRAE -
BATE

Financial liabilities
Amortised cost

TRAE

BIHARA

ERREEHIA(BRERE R

155.9 203.1
4,055.6 5,5672.0
87.9 98.8
9,252.9 8,287.6
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include held-to-maturity
investments, available-for-sale financial assets, trade receivables,
other financial assets, amounts due from associates, loan to a joint
venture, amounts due from joint ventures, bank balances and cash,
trade payables, other financial liabilities, bank and other loans and
other liabilities. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and
other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Currency risk

The Group does not have significant exposure to foreign
currency risk as majority of the Group’s sales and purchases are
denominated in currency which is the functional currency of the
respective group entities except for certain bank balances, loans
to joint ventures and held-to-maturity investments which are
denominated in foreign currency, other than the functional currency
of the respective group entities.

The carrying amounts of the group entities’ foreign currency
denominated assets and liabilities at the reporting date are as
follows:

Assets
BE

2017

HK$'M

Currency BEET
Renminbi AR 9.7
US dollar E7T 4,478.0
Thai baht Rk 303.5
Others Hib 10.9

TR EREE B R LRER

SHIZSRTAREFEIHEE - AH#
HESREE BURESERN  EH2mE
E - RUHBERRFER  EXTRERQA - JE
HE\%QT E - RITEBRERE  BNES

CHiemAaE  RITREMERUR
Efﬂzﬁf* c ZEE BT AFBRARMMER
EomEemTAMBRREEMSRR(E

BEE - FXREREEAEERR) EFER
SGANREBE SRR - {REZ SRR 2K
FEHATX - BIBETENERZERR - )
RN R AP TEE B

85 LR

BETRITESR  EXTREQRLBEIH
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Liabilities
&

2017

HK$'M

BEBT
382.1 - -
4,397.8 - -
296.8 - -
8.6 - -
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Sensitivity analysis
The Group is mainly exposed to the currency risk of US dollar and
Thai baht.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% decrease
in the functional currency of the respective group entities against
the relevant foreign currencies. 5% is the sensitivity rate used
when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnels and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the
end of the reporting period for a 5% change in foreign currency
rates. The analysis illustrates the impact for a 5% weakening of
the functional currency of the respective group entities against the
relevant foreign currency and a positive number below indicates an
increase in profits for the year and in exchange reserve. For a 5%
strengthening of the functional currency of the respective group
entities against the relevant foreign currency, there would be an
equal and opposite impact on the profits for the year and exchange
reserve.

Increase in profits

Yo 6 38
2017
HK$'M
Currency BEET
Renminbi AR 0.5
US dollar E7T 11.2
Thai baht Tk 0.7

HREDN
SETEAZETRRTRELEZEERAR -

TERFHINEEHNHAEEER 2 REEE R
MERASNEIE R T F5% 2 BURRE ° 5% RREE
EIEAB A ESERONE R P 2 SRR
TAERBHERABALEEH 2 TH - &
BRENTEBREASINEIIE 2 M REEEEIR
B URBEPRAEEBREURRERZ
5%EE) - THDMBMBEEEER 26
ERHARINERES Y IFE  TREHK
RN [ ) I B S B 2 3B 0 o (i AR R SR
BERZMEER L ERMINELIRS% 2 FHE
A e U AFRENMELFBERBERZE

=477
7 o

s

el

mt

L

Increase in exchange reserve

B 5% 1t 5 48 o
2016 2017 2016
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEBT BHEET BEBTT
19.1 - -
19.3 212.7 200.6
0.7 14.3 14.0

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative
of the inherent foreign exchange risk as the exposure at the end of
the reporting period does not reflect that during the year.

EEERS - BRIRERERIL T EERRF
WNZEE - SBRESTLTRRE S ZINE
R o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 Z=2017F3A31H L F/E

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to loans to other joint ventures (see Note 19), held-to-maturity
investments (see Note 20) and fixed-rate bank deposits and
borrowings (see Notes 25 and 28). The Group is also exposed to
cash flow interest rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank deposits
and borrowings (see Notes 25 and 28), advance from a non-
controlling shareholder (see Note 29) and mortgage instalment
receivables (see Note 21). It is the Group’s policy to keep its
borrowings at floating rate of interests so as to minimise the fair
value interest rate risk.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial assets and
financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note. The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is
mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of HIBOR, other relevant
interbank offered rates or other benchmark interest rates arising
from the Group’s borrowings.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments at the end
of the reporting period. The variable-rate bank deposits have been
excluded from sensitivity analysis as the management of the Group
considered that the interest rate fluctuation is not significant. For
variable-rate advance from a non-controlling shareholder, bank
borrowings and mortgage instalment receivables, the analysis is
prepared assuming the amount of liability and asset outstanding at
the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year.
A 50 basis points increase or decrease is used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management personnels and
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s:

° profit for the year ended 31 March 2017 would decrease/
increase by HK$34.1 million (2016: HK$31.0 million). This is mainly
attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its variable-
rate bank borrowings, advance from a non-controlling shareholder
and mortgage instalment receivables.
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Other price risk

The Group is exposed to market price fluctuation through its
investments in both listed and unlisted securities. The management
manages this exposure by maintaining a diversified portfolio. The
level and volatility of the prices of securities may be affected by
general economic and market conditions, such as interest rates,
availability of credit, inflation rates, economic uncertainty, changes
in laws (including taxation law), trade barriers, currency exchange
controls, and national and international political circumstances, if
applicable.

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the
exposure to price of securities investments at the reporting date.

If the prices of the respective securities investments had been 5%
higher/lower:

° investment revaluation reserve would increase/decrease by
HK$4.3 million (2016: HK$4.8 million) for the Group as a result of
the changes in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets.

Credit risk

As at 31 March 2017, in addition to those financial assets whose
carrying amounts best represent the maximum exposure to credit
risk, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause
a financial loss to the Group is also arising from the amount of
contingent liabilities in relation to financial guarantees provided by
the Group as disclosed in Note 37.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group
has delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade
debt at the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.
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With respect to credit risk arising from loan to an investee, amounts
due from associates and amounts due from joint ventures, the
Group reviews the recoverable amount at the end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. The exposure to credit risk is limited.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk in connection with held-to-
maturity investments and bank balances is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings and corporates
with strong financial position.

Other than loans to joint ventures, amounts due from joint ventures
and amounts due from associates, the Group does not have any
other significant concentration of credit risk over receivables. Trade
receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across
diverse industries and geographical areas.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors
the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures compliance with
loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant source of
liquidity. As at 31 March 2017, the Group has available unutilised
overdraft and bank loan facilities of approximately HK$6,417.3
million (2016: HK$7,260.5 million).

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the
board of directors of the Company, which has built an appropriate
liquidity risk management framework for the management of
the Group’s short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity
management requirements.
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The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities based on the agreed repayment
terms except for the bank loans with a repayable on demand
clause. For non-derivative financial liabilities, the table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The table includes both interest and principal
cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at the end of the
reporting period.

TR EERE G E ERGERR RGBS OB
RzerEE(RA AR ZREEFRKZR
TERERIN) - IETTESRBEMS © 1D
RIEEEARBRNR KRR - /A
BZARMBRALRES - KPP RENERAE
ZBEM o WMBRBFBFIRE - KRB
TRARAWMEHRZHE -

Liquidity risk table RBESREME
Repayable
on demand Total Carrying
or within 2-5 Over undiscounted  amount at
1 year years 5years  cash flows 31 March
RERS, AEE  M3A31A
-FRiE ZZERE IENE  REREE ZIREE
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT
2017 20175
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ 3fi4+ 2 FAE
Trade payables and accrued charges  ERZ ZEHNEFER 278.6 - - - 278.6 278.6
Deposits received and other financial Uik 4 R E
liabilties eRAR 128.1 - - - 1281 128.1
Bank and other loans ROREMET
- fixed-rate -E8 35.3 35.3 832.3 - 902.9 795.5
- variable-rate -8 1,670.0 363.7 5,276.5 - 7,310.2 6,998.4
Other liabilties EthEE 0.7 4.9 247 812.4 1,079.7 1,052.3
Financial guarantee contracts BBERAY 167.7 - - - 167.7 -
2,280.4 440.9 6,333.5 8124 9,867.2 9,252.9
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Repayable
on demand Total Carrying
or within 2-5 Over undiscounted amount at
years 5 years cash flows 31 March
A R3A31A
“ERE AENE 3 BB
HKS'M HK$'M HKS'M
BEAT BT BEAT
2016 2016%F
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ JEf74¢mER
Trade payables and accrued charges BRI B SEZ ke E R 1484 - - - 1484 1484
Deposits received and other financial B4R 4 R E
liabilities eRAR 1106 - - - 110.6 1106
Bank and other loans BIREMER
- fixed-rate -E8 35.3 35.3 866.7 - 973 794.6
- variable-rate —%8 455.2 843.9 5,245.5 - 6,544.6 6,171.5
Other liabiliies EtEE 05 0.7 275.2 812.3 1,088.7 1,062.5
Financial guarantee contracts BBERAY 274.2 - - - 274.2 -
1,024.2 879.9 6,387.4 812.3 9,103.8 8,287.6

As at 31 March 2017 and 2016, all bank loans are classified in
respective time band based on the agreed repayment terms except
for the bank loans with a repayable on demand clause.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments
for non-derivative financial liabilities is subject to change if changes
in variable interest rates differ to those estimates of interest rates
determined at the end of the reporting period.
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Bank loans with a repayable on demand clause are included in
the “Repayable on demand or within 1 year” time band in the
above maturity analysis. As at 31 March 2017, the aggregate
undiscounted principal amounts of these bank loans amounted to
HK$833.3 million (2016: HK$192.5 million). Taking into account
the Group’s financial position, the directors of the Company do
not believe that it is probable that the banks will exercise their
discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment. The directors
of the Company believe that such bank loans as at 31 March 2017
will be repaid within three years (2016: within one year) of the
reporting date in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates
set out in the loan agreements, details of which are set out in the
table below:

EBTEREREEFERCRITEET AU L
BHEL Mz ZERk—FANEEIKED
R o A2017FE3A31H » ZERITEEZ X
BRIR AN 42%8 5833.8 8 B8 (2016 : 192.5
BEBT) - KERBEBZMBERNE AR
RZEERAERTETGTFEERBE IR
BENR - ARBIEFHEE  ZFRITEXRN
2017463 A31 BB E T ME T EER
HE - RE BB ZF (20165 « —F)
NEE - FIFETNATE

Total
Within 2-5 undiscounted Carrying
1 year years cash flows amount
REEH
—£R “ERF BREREE RREE
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
HEET BEBRT BEER HEET
At 31 March 2017 M201753H31H 11.4 11.4 839.0 861.8 833.3
At 31 March 2016 7201643 A31H 193.8 - - 193.8 192.5

The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts
are the maximum amounts the Group could be required to settle
under the arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if that
amount is claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee. Based
on expectations at the end of the reporting period, the Group
considers that it is more likely than not that no amount will be
payable under the arrangement. However, this estimate is subject
to change depending on the probability of the counterparty claiming
under the guarantee which is a function of the likelihood that the
financial receivables held by the counterparty which are guaranteed
suffer credit losses.

LSRR A KPR AN SRETIRNE T AR
EReEREERBELFAENZEERESE
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FAIR VALUE

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

° the fair values of financial assets with standard terms and
conditions and traded on active liquid markets are determined with
reference to quoted market bid prices; and

° the fair values of other financial assets and financial liabilities
(excluding derivative instruments) are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis.

The consolidated financial statements include holdings in unlisted
equity securities which are measured at fair value using valuation
techniques based on inputs that can be observed in the market in
addition to unobservable inputs such as company specific financial
information (Note 20).

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities (excluding available-for-sale
financial assets) recorded at amortised costs on the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair values.
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43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES

AND JOINT VENTURES

(@ Details of principal subsidiaries incorporated and have their

principal place of operations in Hong Kong are as follows:

31 March 2017
2017%3A31H

Issued

Name of company share capital

AR ER BRTRA

HK$

B

Ace Spring Limited 1
TRER AT

Active Future Limited 1

EFARAA

Allmedco Group Limited 1,500,000
AmMed Cancer Center (Central) Limited 2
AmMed Hong Kong Limited 10,000
REBBBBARLA

Beaufort Hotels Limited 1
Cardiomed Limited 1
THFEBRAA

Discovery Bay Commercial Services Limited 2
R EEEREARAT

Discovery Bay Enterprises Limited 400,000

Equity
interest
attributable
to the Group
£BREZ
R

%

Btk

45,6

50*

50*

43. TEMBEAF - BEDQF

REERQT
(@ ARBEMALLETBZEMBMUNE
BZIEMBARFELT

31 March 2016
201634317
Equity
interest
Issued attributable
share capital to the Group
SEREZ
BEIRA iz
HK$

=
/27T

Principal activities

IRER

Property investment

VESE

1 100 Property investment

VESIES

1,600,000 45,6 Trading of medical and dental
equipment and supplies

BERRETHRBRMER

Provision of cancer treatment
service and diagnostic imaging
service

REERRRRS RET R

10,000 100 Investment holding

&R

Provision of hotel management
services

REBEERRY

Investment holding
REER

2 50*  Commercial leasing agent

BEUERE

400,000 50" Operation of a shipyard
2ENE
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31 March 2017 31 March 2016
2017§3R31A 2016F3H318
Equity Equity
interest interest
Issued attributable Issued attributable
Name of company share capital to the Group share capital tothe Group  Principal activities
£BRAEZ SBRAZ
AR ER ERTRA i TR TEEH
HK$ ) HK$ L
B B2 BT
Discovery Bay Financial Services Limited 2 50* 2 50" Provision of financial services
hEEHBRBERAR to first hand purchasers of

properties in Discovery Bay

ARRENR - FERRMH

B IR

Discovery Bay Golf Club Limited 2 50* 2 50" Provision of club facilities
heERBERNEERAR RAtE MR
Discovery Bay Hotel Limited 2 50* 2 50°  Hotel operator

BEEE
Discovery Bay Marina Club Limited 2 50 2 50" Provision of club facilities
WREEEeERAF Rt e mRiE
Discovery Bay Property Limited 2 50* 2 50 Provision of property agency
BRENEERAR services

REMERE R
Discovery Bay Recreation Club Limited 2 50* 2 50" Provision of club facilities
WREREGERAT REEEMRIH
Discovery Bay Road Tunnel Company Limited 2 50* 2 50*  Road tunnel operator
WRERERRAR RigeE
Discovery Bay Services Management Limited 2 50* 2 50" Estate manager and principal
hEERBERERAH lessee of communication

network in Discovery Bay

EREERBSZEBNREL

ZEEEBAA
Discovery Bay Transit Services Limited 2 50* 2 50" Provision of bus and garage
BEEXBRBEERAR services
B+ REBRY
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Name of company

RAER

Discovery Bay Transportation Services Limited

R EREREERAF

Fame Wood Limited
EIRARAR

Gains Century Limited
BIRBRAT

Grace Investment Limited

BEREARAA

Greenyield Limited
ABBRAF

Hagent Investment Limited

ERRERRAA

Health & Care Dental Clinic Limited
ERTHEBHERAH

Health & Care Group Limited
BREEEEARAA

Healthway Medical Centres Limited

REBEPLARAA

31 March 2017

201763R31A

Equity

interest

Issued attributable
share capital to the Group
£BREZ

BRTRA &
HK$ %

B Btk
2 50*

2 100

1 100

2 100

2 100

2 100
10,100,000 51.05
20,510,000 57.05
1 100

31 March 2016
20163318

Issued
share capital

EHTHRA
HKS

=
/BT

10,100,000

20,510,000

Equity
interest
attributable
to the Group
SEREY
i

100
100
100
100
100

57.05

57.05

Principal activities

IREK

Provision of ferry services

RERBRS

Property investment

VESES

Investment holding
REER

Property investment

VESIES

Property investment

VESE

Property investment

VESES

Provision of dental health and care
services and operation of dental
clinics

RETHREEERE K
BETHDM

Investment holding and its
subsidiaries are engaged in
development and operation of
dental clinic chain

REAR  MAMBRRAKE
BRRZESRTHDM

Operation of medical centres
BeBBERL
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31 March 2017 31 March 2016
2017%3A31A 201653A318
Equity Equity
interest interest
Issued attributable Issued attributable
Name of company share capital to the Group share capital tothe Group  Principal activities
SEBEL EERBL
kL ERITRA g R WE FEEE
HK$ %
BT B2
HKR (PRC) Limited 2 100 2 100 Investment holding
BBRE(RE)BRAH REER
HKR Limited 2 100 2 100 Property management
BERRENEERAT NEER
HKR Properties Limited 2 100 2 100 Investment holding
BERE(ME)ERAA REER
Hong Kong Health Resort Limited 4 100 4 100 Property investment
MERE
Hong Kong Resort Company Limited 389,243,374.35** 50*  389,243,374.35™ 50 Investment holding and property
BEREBRAA development

REEBRRMEFER

Kinter Limited 1 100 1 100 Property investment
REARAA NERE

Lam Island Development Company Limited 2,000,000 99.99 2,000,000 99.99  Property development
HRESRRAT NEER

Lee Wo Company, Limited 300,000 100 300,000 100 Property investment
MAMBRAT NERE

Parocka Investments Limited 20 100 20 100 Property investment
Partner Ally Limited 1,000 75 1,000 75 Investment holding
FXERAT REER
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Name of company

RAER

Pearl Development Limited
BEXRARAA

Qualigenics Medical Limited

EEERARAA

Quebostage Limited
BHARAT

Rainbow Alpha Holdings Limited
tREERAERLA

Royston Investment Limited

BEEXREARAA

Smaragdine Limited

TCS Project Management Limited

Victor Century Investment Limited
BRERERRAT]

31 March 2017

201763R31A
Equity
interest
Issued attributable
share capital to the Group
£WEE2
BRTRA &
HK$ %
B Btk
2 100
3,000,000 80
2 100
1 75
2 100
2 100
2 100
1 100

31 March 2016
20163318

Issued
share capital

EHTHRA
HKS

=
/BT

3,000,000

N/A
MER

Equity
interest
attributable
to the Group
SEREY
i

80

75

N/A
TER

Principal activities

IREK

Property investment

VESE

Operation of diabetes and
endocrine disorders clinics and
provision of cardiac treatment

BERRRRADBERD A
DRRELERAE

Property investment

VESIE]

Property development

MBS

Investment holding
REER

Property development

B

Provision of project management
services

RHER ERRE

Provision of financial services
to first hand purchasers of
2GETHER

REEZ-FEZRENE
R
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31 March 2017
2017§3R31A
Equity
interest
Issued attributable
Name of company share capital to the Group
£BRAEZ
AR ER BRTRA g
HK$ %
B B2
Wells Estate Services Limited 100,000 100
BRNEREARAR
Wells Property Management Limited 1,000 100
ElamEEEERAA
Yintaly Construction Company Limited 2 100
ERRETRERAR

*  According to the shareholders’ agreement of Hong Kong Resort Company
Limited (“HKRC”), the Group is able to control more than half of the voting
powers of the board of directors (which determines the relevant activities) of
HKRC and its subsidiaries.

**|n addition to 1 ordinary share, 100% in the value of HK$389,243,373.85
deferred shares are also held by the Group. The deferred shares held by the
Group are shares whose shareholders are neither entitled to receive notices,
attend, vote at any general meetings nor to receive any dividend out of operating
profit and have very limited rights on return of assets of the company.

#  Allmedco Group Limited (“Allmedco”) is classified as a subsidiary of the
Company as it is a 80%-owned subsidiary of Health & Care Group Limited (“H&C”)
which in turn is a 57.05%-owned subsidiary of the Company. The Company has
control over the board of directors of H&C and Allmedco.
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share capital

31 March 2016
2016F3H318
Equity
interest
Issued attributable
to the Group
SBRAZ

Principal activities

100,000 100 Property management, estate

manager and investment
holding
NERERERURREAER

1,000 100 Property management and estate

manager

NERERER

Property investment

© REFBEEXBRAR(TEBEE]) ZBRWF
KEAIAZHEBRELEMBRAR CEEE(RER
HEEE) BBF B RHE -

* BREFBIREBRIN ERAFEI100%EE
389,243,373.85 B L 2 IEE MR 1D - REIFHIRLER
D2 REMERENEREA - BFETARERS KR
@ IR - IR R ER L B R R 5 R 2 A ] AR
B REBREZARFEEER 2 EERRET -

# R Allmedco Group Limited ([ Allmedco |) A& 18
REEEEERAG([1ER]) EB80%ER 2B R
A MERAARNABHEES7.05%Em 2B AR -
HAlmedcotE D AR AR ZHBAR - ARREE
fi2 RAllmedcor EEE B G EHIE -



(b)

Name of company

ARER

Abraham Holdings Limited

Abraham Investment Holdings Limited

AmMed International Corporation Ltd.

Beaufort Holdings Limited

Beaufort International Hotels (Singapore)
Pte Ltd

CDW Building Limited

GenRx Holdings Limited

RHERERAR

Hanbright Assets Limited

Health & Care (Macau) Dental Group
Limited

ER(RM) THEEERAR

Healthway Phiippines, Inc.

Place of
incorporation/
registration
A
Bt

Liberia
HLED

British Virgin Islands
AEABREE

Cayman Islands

REES

Cayman Islands
REHE

Singapore

g

Cayman Islands

HEES

British Virgin Islands
AB4BRES

British Virgin Islands
ERARRES

Macau
il

Philippines
FaE

Principal
place

of operation

IEEE
hE

Hong Kong
B

Note*
s

Singapore

g

Hong Kong
B

Note™
P

Note™

i
Macau

L3y

Phiippines
FaE

Details of other principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(o)

31 March 2017
2017%3A31A7

Nominal value
of issued
share capital/

registered capital

ERRA/
sz EE

USst
17

US$179,999.96
179,999.96% 70

HK$10,197,932
#710,197,932

$$1,000,000
1,000,000 7
JPY420,240,000
420,240,0005 8

HK$5,100,002
#75,100,002

USs1
1%7

Us$t
1%7

MOP25,000
25,0002 7

PHP19,137,500
19,137,500
FRENR

Equity
interest
attributable
to the Group
SERE
R

%

BAk

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

57.05

100

31 March 2016
2016F3A31H

Nominal value

of issued

share capital/
registered capital

Ni

USS1
1%n

1S$179,999.96
179,999.96%

HK$10,197,932
10,197,932%7

$51,000,000
1,000,000% 7T
JPY420,240,000
420,240,000

HK$5,100,002
5,100,002/ ¢

USS1
1*n

1SSt
1%

MOP25,000
250002797

PHP19,137,500
19,137,500
FREBR

Equity interest
attrioutable
to the Group
£E1E
215k

100

100

57.06

100

Hip F ZMBARFBET :

Principal activities

TERE

Securities investment
BHRE

Securities investment

EniRE

Investment holoing

D

Investment holding

RERR

Investment holoing

e

Property investment

ESIES

Investment holding
RERER

Investment holding

e

Operation of dental
clinic in Macau
TEEMIEE TR

Investment holding

e

EaEEEnEnsRAT 20162017 5 /()]



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 Z=2017F3A31H L F/E

Place of
incorporation/

Name of company registration
R fieR 2/
ARER L]

HK Resort International Limited Cayman Islands
REHS
HKR Asia-Pacific Pte Ltd Singapore
il
HKR China Limited British Virgin Islands
EREXTRARLA EBRARES
HKR Japan KK Japan
A%
HKR Shanghai Limited British Virgin Islands
BRRL LEARLA EBRARES
HKRJ Akasaka TMK Japan
BA
HKRJ Development Co., Ltd. Japan
AR
HKRJ Graphio GK? Japan
BE
HKRJ Roppongi TMK Japan
A%
HKRJ Souei GK* Japan
BE

Principal
place

of operation
IEEE
%

Note™

fifiE

Singapore

g

Note™
i

Japan

A

Note™
i

Japan

A

Japan

AE

Japan

AR

Japan

AR

Japan

AR

31 March 2017
2017£3A31R

Nominal value

of issued

share capital/
registered capital
ERTRA/
&R ZEE

HK$2
Py:y

$85,000,000
5,000,000% 7
JPY6,872,780,000
6,872,780,0000 8
THB24,700,000
24,700,000%

US$t
1%7

JPY10,000
10,000F

US$t
1%7

JPY2,700,100,000
2,700,100,0008

JPY10,000
10,0008

JPY2,000,000
2,000,0008

JPY4,125,200,000
4,125,200,0008 8

JPY1,000,000
1,000,0008
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Equity
interest
attributable
to the Group
285E

%
A2kt

100

100

100

1

o

0

100

31 March 2016
2016F3R31H

Nominal value

of issued

share capital/
registered capital

HKS2
2BT

595,000,000
5,000,004
JPY6,872,780,000
6,872,780,0000
THB24,700,000
24,700,000 £

USs1
1%

JPY10,000
10,0007 E

1SSt
1%

JPY2,700,100,000
2,700,100,000H

JPY10,000
10,0008

JPY2,000,000
2,000,0008E

JPY4,125,200,000
4,125,200, 0008

JPY1,000,000
1,000,005

Equity interest
attributable
to the Group
£@iY

100

100

100

100

100

Principal activities

Investment holding

RERK

Investment holding

RERK

Investment holoing

L

Property investment

UEST

Investment holding

REER

Property investment

EST

Property investment

VESIES

Property investment

VESE]

Property development

VES &

Property investment

VESE]



Name of company

ARER

HKRJ Veneo GK#

HMC, Inc.

Hojo Pte. Ltd.

Mantle Investments Limited

Pine Isle Holdings Limited

Prinia Pte Ltd

Ruthin Investments Pte Ltd

Sathorn Park Co., Ltd.

Sky Phoenix Enterprises Limited

Place of
incorporation/
registration
REfReR 2/
Bt

Japan

BE
Phiippines
FaE
Singapore

g

British Virgin Islands
ABABRES

British Virgin Islands
EBRARES

Singapore

g

Singapore

g

Thaland
R

British Virgin Islands
ZBRBREE

Principal
place

of operation
IEEE
B

Japan

BE
Phiippines
FaE
Singapore

g

Note*
iR

Hong Kong
B

Singapore

g

Singapore
il

Thalland
7

Hong Kong
B

31 March 2017
2017%3A317

Nominal value

of issued

share capital/
registered capital
ERTRE/
&R ZEE

JPY1,000,000
1,000,008

PHP10,250,000
10,250,000
FREAR

JPY2,023,260,000
2,023,260,0008

US$t
1%7

Usst
1%7

§§2
27

882

b
JPY1,362,730,000
1,362,730,0008

THB933,600,000
933,600,000%

US$t
1%7

Equity
interest
attributable
to the Group
£EKE
&

%

Bt

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

31 March 2016
201634317

Nominal value
ofissued

share capital/

registered capital

N/A

Oyel

PHP10,250,000
10,250,000
FRERZR

JPY2,023,260,000
2,023,260,0005 &

USS1
%1

NA

MR

S52
B

S52

B
JPY1,362,730,000
1,362,730,000H

THBA33,600,000

933,600,000k

US1
X7

Equity interest
attributable
to the Group
SEHE

NA
TER

Principal activities

IEER

Property investment

UESIES

QOperation of medical

Investment holding

L

Securities investment
BHRE

Investment holding

e

Investment holding

RARK

Property investment

ESIE

Hotel operator and
owner

W=RERER

Investment holoing

REER

EEEzEnEmERAE 20162017 £5 /[)3



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 Z=2017F3A31H L F/E

31 March 2017 31 March 2016
201753A31R 2016437314
Nominal value Equity Nominal value
Place of Principal of issued interest of issued  Equity interest
incorporation/ place share capital/  attributable share capital/ attributable
Name of company registration of operation | registered capital  to the Group registered capital  tothe Group  Principal activities
AL/ IZEE ERTRE/ £EKE : £ERR
ARER L] % &R ZEE el , IEXH
%
BAM
Suki Pte. Ltd. Singapore Singapore S$1 100 5§t 100 Investment holding
it e 17 %7 RERK
JPY673,750,000 JPY673,750,000
673,750,000H 673,750,008
RBEEMM) BB AR PRC PRC HK$760,000,000 100 HK$760,000,000 100 Property development
i i 760,000,000 760,000,000% L
B LE)ERENERAFY PRC PRC US$1,500,000 100 USS$1,500,000 100 Property management
il i 1,500,000% 7T 1,500,000%7C nxER
EREREEERAFY PRC PRC HK$730,000,000 100 HK$650,000,000 100 Property development
i E 730,000,000 650,000,000 S
BE(L5)BRERAR PRC PRC US$14,000,000 100 US$14,000,000 100 Property investment
il i 14,000,000% 7T 14,000,000%7C MRRE
*  These companies are engaged in securities investment business of the * WERARREEBEHFREEYR AMEBEETE
Group and have no specific principal place of operation. ZEBEEMD -
** These companies act as investment holding companies and have no specific = HWENRARELERAT  AMESEREZETEY
principal place of operation. Eh B o
#  These companies are wholly foreign owned enterprises. o LERRIRBRINEDRE -
# The Group can enjoy all economic beneficial interest, instead of equity o EBARANERAZEAZSE AR PR EESE
interest, of the companies by contractual terms. 25 MIERRARELS -
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()  Details of principal associates are as follows: () FEBMEQRFBOT :

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

20175 2016%F
3H31H 3H31H
Attributable Attributable
Place of interest held interest held
Name of company incorporation by the Group by the Group  Principal activities
KB SEPTH
ZRER o 11 A 3L 3 B FEfhRE EibEs FEEK
% %
BHAL Bt
Polyoung Limited Hong Kong 31 31 Provision of financial services
EEEaRAH &% to first hand purchasers of

Coastal Skyline
REXEFE—FERREH

B AR 7%
Tung Chung Station Hong Kong 31 31 Property investment
Development Company &5 MERE

Limited

ssmEzEmEmaRAE 2016207 858 /()5



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 Z=2017F3A31H L F/E

(d)  Details of principal joint ventures are as follows: d) FEEEQFFBOT

31 March 2017 31 March 2016
3A31H
Attributable
interest held
by the Group

Place of
incorporation

Name of company

by the Group  Principal activities

AR oF 7 B 37 3t B TEXB

Advantage Investor Limited

Dazhongli Properties Limited

RHEMERRIDA

Strongbod Limited

Ultimate Champion
Investments Limited

Everbeam Investments Limited

EHREBRADA

Everbeam Mortgage Limited
ERRIBARADE

Gainwick Limited

MEERAT

§</@%m§%@
AR

City Grace Co., Ltd.

*
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British Virgin Islands
AERBRHS

British Virgin Islands
REERRES

British Virgin Islands
AERBRHS

British Virgin Islands
REERRES

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong
e

PRC
FE

Thailand
RE

The company is a wholly foreign owned enterprise.

20174 20164
3H31H

Attributable

interest held

SE@E S EATE
PE{hRE 2R FEfGHE R
0/o %

Bak Bnth
50 50

50 50

40 100

50 N/A
A

50 50

50 N/A
TEMA

40 100

50 50

49 49

Investment holding

REZRK

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding
KREER

Investment holding

REEK

Property development

IS

Provision of financial services
to first hand purchasers of
La Cresta

A R HT— F B R I 8 5 ik s

Property development

WEERE

Property development

IESYE

Property development
MEER

ZABRBIEDE -



(e) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material
non-controlling interests:

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries of
the Company that have material non-controlling interests:

Proportion of ownership
interests and voting
rights held by non-
controlling interests
FERER
FsRERRERR
RERZILA
2017

Place of

Name of subsidiary incorporation

WEAREE

B AR
2016

Hong Kong Resort Company Limited and 50% 50%

its subsidiaries (note i)

EARXARARLENEAR (M)

Hong Kong
BB

N/A
TER

N/A
@R

Hanison group (as defined in Note 5)
(note i)
S B (ER R MEs) (M)

Cayman Islands
FERHS

Individually immaterial subsidiaries with
non-controlling interests

WEIEER RS 2 R FFEAMB AT

) FEAERFEBREDRZIFEZENBRA
ZFE

TRFJNBEAEHERER I ARRIIEERE
KB R R AT

Profits (losses)
allocated to
non-controlling interests

Accumulated
non-controlling interests

AR FHERER
2l (BR)
2017

HKS'M

BERR
171.9

EHES T 5
2017
HKS'M
BERR
2,387.2

2016
HK$'M
ABAT

2016
HK$'M
ABAT

261.4 2,215.3

103.4

(7.3) 6.0) (19.4) (12.1)

164.6 358.8 2,367.8 2,203.2

Notes:

() Hong Kong Resort Company Limited and its subsidiaries are engaged in the
development, management and provision of essential and recreational services
for residential housing and leisure projects principally in Discovery Bay, Lantau
Island.

(i) Prior to the completion of distribution in specie by the Company during the
year ended 31 March 2016, the Company had only 48.47% ownership interest
and voting rights in Hanison, the directors of the Company concluded that
the Company had sufficiently dominant voting interests to direct the relevant
activities of Hanison on the basis of the Group’s absolute size of shareholding
and the relative size of and dispersion of the shareholdings owned by other
shareholders. As disclosed in Note 11, Hanison group ceased to be subsidiaries
of the Company upon the distribution of Hanison shares to the Company’s
shareholders on 3 November 2015 as interim dividend by way of distribution in
specie.

M

() BEBREERDAMAENBARIEREERNLE
BARAE LMRE 2 FEEFRABMERLAER
T KRR -

(i) REZE2016F3A3TAILFEARGBTKEY D
ER  BEARA R EBERGL8.47T% HHEES
LIRERE  ARAREEZHERAE  ERNEEREREZ
BEHEREUAREMREMEESREZ B BERD
BRIRE - AR R E A SR A B BB a0 AE
TS o WA EE11ETEFR M - R2015F 11 ASHILEY
DR 2 R AR R AR 5 R BB I (B A R HIRR B
% BBEETHARQRNMEAR -

EEEEEmENERAT 20162017 8 /()]



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 Z=2017F3A31H L F/E

Summarised consolidated financial information in respect of BREHEAEEAIEERER A ATESHEB AT
each of the Company’s subsidiaries that has material non- TIEABEEREEY T o XIS
controlling interests is set out below. The summarised consolidated HEERME B NEBREHAT 258 -
financial information below represents amounts before intergroup

elimination.
HONG KONG RESORT COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS EAEMERE AT NRENE AT
SUBSIDIARIES

Current assets mENEE 2,510.2 2,415.9
Non-current assets EREBEE 3,897.2 3,686.7
Current liabilities mENRIE (623.4) (675.9)
Non-current liabilities EmEatE (978.8) (965.7)
Equity attributable to owners of RAREB AEEER

the Company 2,418.0 2,245.7
Non-controlling interests eSS 2,387.2 2,215.3
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For the year ended 31 March
BZE3ASIHILLEE

2017 2016
HK$’M HK$'M
BEAET BEABTT
Revenue A 1,062.3 1,680.0
Expenses 53 (718.5) (1,157.2)
Profit attributable to owners of KA RVHER ANEE T
the Company 171.9 261.4
Profit attributable to non-controlling JEHEE PR 2 PR (0 7
interests 171.9 261.4
Profit for the year AN S 5 A 343.8 522.8
Other comprehensive income KA BHEE AENL
attributable to owners of the Company  Efb 2 HE UKz = 8.5
Other comprehensive income FEIE R R e E A
attributable to non-controlling interests ~ E.{th 2 E U 25 - 8.4
Other comprehensive income for the year KN4 E E th 2 mE Wz - 16.9
Total comprehensive income RN BEE AL
attributable to owners of the Company 2 E kz5 & %8 171.9 269.9
Total comprehensive income FEPE R R AL
attributable to non-controlling interests 2 mE Y25 4258 171.9 269.8
Total comprehensive income for the year N4 [E 2 H Wz 4858 343.8 539.7

Dividends paid to non-controlling ERZEZE R I SRR AT AR B
shareholders - 150.0

LEFRBAARERLFHE

Net cash outflows used in operating

activities (90.7) (248.2)
Net cash outflows used in investing KEEEHMAR S RL F5

activities (157.2) (88.4)
Net cash outflows used in financing REEBATAIR SR L FEE

activities (0.2) (299.7)
Net cash outflows Hemt FaE (248.1) (636.3)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 Z=2017F3A31H L F/E

HANISON GROUP s E
For the period
from
1 April 2015 to
3 November
2015
2015F4818 &
2015411 A3H
B
HK$'M
BEBTT
Revenue WA 1,592.8
Expenses M (1,403.5)
Profit attributable to owners of the Company RAEER ARG T 85.9
Profit attributable to non-controlling interests FEFE IR FE RS FE (R R A 103.4
Profit for the period HARDE 189.3
Other comprehensive expense attributable to ARARHEBEAEBGEEMEEMS
owners of the Company 0.8)
Other comprehensive expense attributable to SRR E R E G M2
non-controlling interests (0.8)
Other comprehensive expense for the period HREMEEREY (1.6)
Total comprehensive income attributable to RATHE ARG =B
owners of the Company 85.1
Total comprehensive income attributable to IR E R R Em R S A
non-controlling interests 102.6
Total comprehensive income for the period B emEkEeEE 187.7
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders B RZEIE R AR FR A AR B 9.5
Net cash inflows from operating activities BEERATEIRERAFEE 593.3
Net cash outflows used in investing activities B EHTARE SR FEE (963.1)
Net cash inflows from financing activities B EE I RIR S AR 638.3
Net cash inflows WREMAFEE 268.5

Details of financial information of Hanison group after intergroup MR2015F4 A1 B E2015%F 11 A3 H HA & HE s
elimination for the period from 1 April 2015 to 3 November 2015 is EEREBRNYEENTEERFBRM
disclosed in Note 11. 11 EE -
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All of the above principal subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
other than Abraham Holdings Limited, Beaufort Holdings Limited,
Hanbright Assets Limited, HK Resort International Limited, HKR
Asia-Pacific Pte Ltd and HKR China Limited, are held indirectly by
the Company.

The above tables list the subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
of the Group which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
principally affected the results or assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures would, in
the opinion of the directors of the Company, result in particulars of
excessive length.

Other than club debentures as set out in Note 29, no other loan
capital has been issued by any of the subsidiaries.

44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, other than transaction disclosed in note 34(a)
and balances with related parties as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position, the Group had significant
transactions with related parties as follows:

(@  Transactions with entities controlled (or jointly controlled as
joint venture) by CCM Trust and certain discretionary trusts. Four
(2016: Four) directors of the Company are among the discretionary
beneficiaries of the above trusts at the end of the reporting period.
The trusts have controlling beneficial interests in these entities and
the Company:

FrAbraham Holdings Limited * Beaufort Holdings
Limited * Hanbright Assets Limited + HK Resort
International Limited + HKR Asia-Pacific Pte Ltd )&
BEABERBRERATSIN - LA EEN B
AR BEATRABDFS BAR TR

Ho

ARBEERR » LRI EEXEREE
BEAREZSENBAR BERALE
BRAE - ARBEERR  FIEMMEL
Al BMERRRAGERRETEBNIE

BRESFE29PT 5 2 & FTESFHN » BLEAE AP /B
RABITHMERRA -

44, BEEF X5

BRI E34(a) I BB < R B MR & M iR
RFTRERRINE T 2 RN - EEF N T
EITZERRZON

a) EECCM Trust & TEVIS(EEFTILH 2
B AREHZAERRETZIRS »
WEHARETRARNA(2016F : WB)ES
53

—_

% g

REBEFEZBEZEA - ZFEENZETE
BLANAHEEE g R

Transactions with the entities: HZEBTEIRS
Rental income received BUERZ A
Management service fee received EEZ B ARTEE
Other services provided BIR 2 b AR
Transactions with the entities that are HZEBEREIRNS
entered into by Hanison group: (ThAHEBEERTY) ¢

Project management income and site BUERZTEE BEWA R

supervision service income received AR EE B AR TS UL A
Project management income and site A& E AR ZIEE B

supervision service income from ajoint g A K Hb 48 B B AR T UG A
venture

6.0 6.4
0.7 1.2
0.3 0.2
- 1.7
- 0.9

EEREEBEEERAT 201612017 &% 2| ]



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 Z=2017F3A31H L F/E

(b)  Transactions with Hanison group, in which CCM Trust and
certain discretionary trusts have controlling beneficiary interests:

(0)

HBfSEEE 2 X 5 (AP CCM Trust &
TRBEEHREEaEiiER)

REREE (M)
H At 7% &

Construction service fee (note)
Other service fees

0.4 30.1

0.8

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group had construction
service fee paid to Hanison group of HK$32.3 million of which HK$2.2 million
had been eliminated in the consolidated financial statements.

Transactions with associates and joint ventures of the Group:

(©)

Wit REIE201643A31HILEE - £E@EEEBE
B NHEERKEANIABET HP22HEE
TLEREE IR HmER P -

© BEREBEAARAEAALRS :

A& & A RWELZ HE WA

Rental income received from a
joint venture

Management fee and other operating mEE AR EEE X
service fees received from an associate  E 4K & R 75 &

Management fee and other operating AEE RNz EERE X
service fees received from B RS E

a joint venture
Construction income received from
a joint venture
Interest income received from
an associate
Interest income received from
a joint venture
Rental expense to an associate

A& & A RWELZ ZEBA

RENCIE e WA LSNP

=]

AN

A&

AK N

F=02N

AUER Z M B HA

AEERAXNZEEER

0.5

0.3

27.2 29.7
21.5
0.2 0.2

9.8
()

10.1
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(d)  Compensation of key management personnel: d TEZEEEAEMS:

The remuneration of directors during the year is as follows: BEERFAZHESWT

Short-term employee benefits HHEEREAN
Fees we 1.7 1.8
Salaries and other benefits Hae MEMBEF 20.5 20.0
Performance related incentive payments 48 3k 52 15.3 13.8
37.5 35.6
Post-employment benefit BEBR 18 fR A
Retirement benefits schemes IRIRABFIGET BN
contribution 0.2 0.2
Equity-settled share-based payments PARE 25 45 & LARR 1 A EL R
pANE:S 13.6 -
51.3 35.8

The remuneration of directors is determined by the remuneration EECHMemFHEESLERAIEIRAR
committee having regard to the performance of individuals and MSBYEETTE -
market trends.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 Z=2017F3A31H L F/E

45. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the
Company at the end of the reporting period includes:

45. BB A D T 2 B R R &R

ZER

REE % - BEAARZMBRRE Y 8

B

Non-current assets

FRBEE

Property, plant and equipment ME - BENEE 13.9 11.5
Interests in subsidiaries (Note 46) M8~ m) kg s (P 7E46) 14,541.3 12,128.4
Other assets HiEE 117.2 112.2
Amounts due from joint ventures JEI A &R E) 58 508.0 468.8
15,180.4 12,720.9
Current assets MENVEE
Deposits, prepayments and other e BENRER
financial assets Hih & E 139.7 100.0
Bank balances and cash WITHEBR RS 143.7 2,329.3
283.4 2,429.3
Current liabilities mEaE
Trade payables, provision and EANE SRR - BER
accrued charges FEEHE R 25.4 24.7
Amounts due to subsidiaries FET B A B F I8 5,394.7 5,754.7
Bank and other loans due within —FRFHZRITR
one year HihEH 1,227.3 192.5
6,647.4 5,971.9
Net current liabilities mENEEFE (6,364.0) (3,642.6)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRSAR 8,816.4 9,178.3
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Bank and other loans due after one year —FEE|EAZIRTTNHMER 5,946.0 6,131.4
Net assets BEFE 2,870.4 3,046.9
Capital and reserves BEARRFE
Share capital f& A 337.5 337.5
Reserves (Note 47) fFEE(ME47) 2,532.9 2,709.4
Equity attributable to owners of RRREE AERER
the Company 2,870.4 3,046.9

The statement of financial position of the Company was approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21 June 2017

and is signed on its behalf by:

CHA Mou Zing Victor

Deputy Chairman & Managing Director

ERMR

B E F AR
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46. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY

46. AN T B 1 =R

Unlisted shares, at cost JEETIRD - IR E 2,604.6 2,604.6

Amounts due from subsidiaries I ENGIE L]
Interest bearing portion (note) RIS (M) 3,907.8 3,370.3
Non-interest bearing portion BB 8,028.9 6,153.5
14,541.3 12,128.4

Note: The amounts are unsecured, bear interest at the prevailing market
borrowing rates and have no fixed terms of repayment.

47. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
MOVEMENT IN RESERVES

Share
premium

ki@
HK$'M
BEAR

MisE : ZEFCARERA  RETHHEEENXHE
Ko SR B TR IR R

47. KD TS
B

Share
options

Capital
redemption Accumulated
reserve reserve profits
[ignkil 4 EARE
e 1]
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEER

Ketad
HK$'M
HEAT

At 1 April 2015 N2015F4F1H 1,537.9 - 3.1 1,340.3 2,881.3
Profit and total comprehensive income  ANEEEF| R 2 iz

for the year B - - - 84.8 84.8
Dividends paid BEIREE - - - (94.9) (94.5)
Dividend by way of distribution in AEMDERZEA DK

specie (note) B (M) - - - (162.2) (162.2)
At 31 March 2016 R2016%3A31H 1,537.9 - 3.1 1,168.4 2,709.4
Loss and total comprehensive expense  NEEERB R 2 ER Y

for the year k] - - - (190.1) (190.1)
Recognition of equity-settled BRNEREZE LR D

share-based payments AERZER - 13.6 - - 13.6
At 31 March 2017 R2017%3A31H 1,537.9 13.6 3.1 978.3 2,532.9

Note: The amount represents the carrying amount of the investment in Hanison
recorded at the Company’s books. Details of the distribution in the specie in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements amounting to HK$914.1 million are set
out in Note 11.

Under the Companies Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium of the Company is available for
distribution or paying dividends to shareholders, subject to the
provisions of its memorandum and articles of association and
provided that immediately following the distribution of dividends,
the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business. In accordance with the Company’s
articles of association, dividends can only be distributed out of
the accumulated profits of the Company, which amounted to
HK$978.3 million (2016: HK$1,168.4 million) as at 31 March 2017.

MsE © ZRBIREARRIESCRRERBILEZRE
HE BEREERAEVERRZ2ENDRZSER
914 1B BB « FHBERAME o

BERSHEQAREE2E (KET) » K
NAE)Z M5 R B A 4k A% 3R sk | B R
B BESTHASZERAM MK ASZERMEY
HTEME  MEBEEKEE - NARIEERENE
BERBEBEBRIPZETS - BIBEARQAR 2B
SZRMA) - ARBREERR2017F3A31HZ
EihaF978.3BEE (20164 : 1,168.4H
EETL)PRBRERE -

EEEEEREmERAT 2016207 88 /15



FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

EFEHBEHRE

RESULTS

£ 4=

E 4

For the year ended 31 March
BZE3A31BILLEE

Turnover e 2,234.1 4,238.5 5,421.9 4,207.5 5,298.3
Profit from operations L8 s T 1,015.6 1,311.8 1,959.1 1,463.3 1,264.1
Finance costs R =g (191.7) (172.0) (202.4) (173.0) (122.5)
Share of results of associates LB E A EIFEE (0.2) 2.3) 9.2 0.3 92.0
Share of results of joint ventures b & & A EIEE 260.6 155.2 15.9 (103.7) 282.3
Profit before taxation B A5 B A 1,084.3 1,202.7 1,781.8 1,186.9 1,515.9
Taxation Bi1E (95.8) (150.0) (198.7) (130.9) (177.8)
Profit for the year REERF 988.5 1,142.7 1,583.1 1,056.0 1,338.1
Attributable to: TN, -
Owners of the Company RARHEBA 823.9 783.9 910.0 834.6 998.3
Non-controlling interests IR LS 164.6 358.8 673.1 221.4 339.8
Profit for the year REE @A 988.5 1,142.7 1,583.1 1,056.0 1,338.1
FINANCIAL POSITION B AR R

At 31 March
M3A31H

Total assets BERE 29,630.6 27,7669 292437 284151  26,686.6
Total liabilities BER5E (10,877.0) (9,507.4)  (9,461.1)  (9,828.1)  (9,011.1)
Non-controlling interests ElE (2,367.8) (2,203.2) (3,054.9) (2,391.1) (2,183.5)
Equity attributable to owners ZAN/NETEZ SN

of the Company etz 16,385.8 16,056.3 16,727.7 16,1959  15,492.0
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PARTICULARS OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

At 31 March 2017 A20174F3H31H

A. PROPERTIES HELD FOR/UNDER A BERRE/IREPRZWE
DEVELOPMENT
Expected Attributable
Gross floor Stage of completion Nature of interest to
Descriptions area (sq. ft.) completion date property the Group
BREHR 5B
R (FAR) THEER BHTHA NEME P s
1. The remaining phases, KU L)y =
Discovery Bay, Lantau Island BT EH
(@) Residential (@) = 273,061 Construction 2017-2018 Residential 50%
under progress =
Ti#fTH
(b) Commercial b) BE 76,300 Construction 2018 Commercial 50%
under progress [GES
TR#ETH
(c) Others (©) HEftr 367,289 Not yet No definite plan  Retained for future 50%
commenced EET:T2] development
AT BIEBERER
2. 2GETHER, Tuen Mun, MR 24,014 Construction 2017 Residential/ 75%
New Territories TR (site area) under progress Commercial
(BEE) ITRETH FEEE
3. Qasis One, Hangzhou City, BN A N 552,925 Construction 2018 Residential 100%
Zhejiang Province, the PRC BERERE (site area) under progress FE
(MBERE) TRETP
4. Riviera One, Jiaxing City, RENNTIE S ET 501,188 Construction 2019 Residential 100%
Zhejiang Province, the PRC REEEEREE (site area) under progress =
(EEE) ITRETT
5. Proud Roppongi, Tokyo, ARER 26,373 Construction 2017 Residential 51%
Japan Proud Roppong (site area) under progress =
(BEE) TRETH
6. Rama 3 Road Project, ZEEAYannawa® 416,180 Planning 2021-2023 Residential 100%
Yannawa District, Bangkok, Rama 3 Road™8 B (site area) in progress FE
Thailand (HEERE) REETH

EEREEBEEERAT 20162017 &% 2| ]



PARTICULARS OF MAJOR PROPERTIES
TENRFS

At 31 March 2017 FA20174F3 H31H

B. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES HELD FOR B. HEREWHXIEABESIK
RENTAL PURPOSES AR#®
Attributable
Gross floor Nature of interest to Category
Descriptions area (sq. ft.) property the Group of lease
BREHR .|
R (FAR) MEME EiEkz HEER
7. 2houses located at Bijou Hamlet, RE s EeEns 5,392 Residential 100% Medium
Discovery Bay, Lantau Island 2R F R = i
8. 4houses located at Headland Village, — AL |L 6 =2 E5 15 10,2561 Residential 100% Medium
Discovery Bay, Lantau Island SETERFRE FE R
9. 11 units comprising lowrise and duplex AL |11 14 & /&7%51& 18,043 Residential 100% Medium
apartments located at Peninsula Village, 11182z (f{& 5% E FE i
Discovery Bay, Lantau lsland REABAAER)
10. 1 highrise apartment located KU L)1 2 &R 1,068 Residential 100% Medium
at Greenvale Vilage, Discovery Bay,  1ESEE( F=E i

Lantau Island

11, 23 highrise apartments located AE R ERRE 16,118 Residential 100% Medium
at Parkridge Vilage, Discovery Bay, ~ 23{HS B &fi; FE ]

Lantau Island

12, 6 midrise apartments and AL =5 6,373 Residential 100% Medium
1 combined unit located RWEES FE HHf
at DB Plaza, Discovery Bay, B8+ B & fi
Lantau Island RAEREER

13. 2 lowrise apartments located AL =2 2,483 Residential 100% Medium
at Siena One, Discovery Bay, BB — B FE i
Lantau Island QAR ENL

14. 1 lowrise apartment located KU L =% 1,315 Residential 100% Medium
at Siena Two, Discovery Bay, EHN R FE ]
Lantau Island 1EME B E (L

15. 1 lowrise apartment located at La Vista, AU |1/ E 8% F 976 Residential 100% Medium
Discovery Bay, Lantau Island EME R E = i

16.  14/F of Century Tower Il and FEWLTE 3,663 Residential 100% Long
Car Parking Space No. 12 HHMBEEHRIFA FE =
on Level 1, Century Tower, KB4 R
1 and 1A Tregunter Path, HERE
The Peak, Hong Kong F1ABBES1 25BN

718 HKR International Limited Annual Report 2016/2017



Descriptions

L

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

5 highrise apartments located
at Coastal Skyline,
Tung Chung, Lantau Island

2 highrise apartments located
at Tung Chung Crescent,
Tung Chung, Lantau Island

6 highrise apartments located
at Seaview Crescent,
Tung Chung, Lantau Island

7 residential units and 9 car parking
spaces of Chelsea Residence,

No. 169 of Lane 1038, Huashan Road,
Changning District, Shanghai, the PRC

2 highrise apartments located
at Peninsula Village, Discovery Bay,
Lantau Island

Horizon Place Akasaka, Tokyo,
Japan

Souei Park Harajuku, Tokyo,
Japan

Veneo Minami Azabu, Tokyo,
Japan

Graphio Nishi-Shinjuku, Tokyo,
Japan

Commercial Centre,
Discovery Bay, Lantau Island

Shop 401 on Ground Floor,
Coastline Villa, Peninsula Village,
Discovery Bay, Lantau Island

KIEER
EXERE
5= BB

T
R
2BRERL

KRR
e

6lEmEEL

FEEETRER
#1115 1038% 1695
FEEE_F
7TEFEEER ROMEA

AARR

Horizon Place Akasaka

AARR

Souei Park Harajuku

AARSR

Veneo Minami Azabu

BERER
Graphio Nishi-Shinjuku

AL =8
FSELIN

RIE L2 E% I
BEEH 401

Gross floor
area (sq. ft.)
HEEER
(EER)

5,477

1,838

4,524

16,407

1,438

81,624

14,040

18,299

27,314

180,910

7,417

Nature of
property

MEME

Residential
FE

Residential
=

Residential
FE

Residential
FE

Residential
=

Residential

E3

Residential
FE
Residential
=
Commercial

EE

Commercial

EE

Commercial

EE

Attributable
interest to
the Group

=8
iR

100%

100%

100%

100%

50%

100%

100%

100%

100%

50%

50%

Category

of lease

HEER

Medium

P

Medium

A

Medium

A

Long
=H

Medium

A

Freehold
KAERE

Freehold
KALRE
Freehold
KAERE
Freehold
KALERE
Medium

P

Medium

P

EaExEnEmaRAE 2016207 85 /]



PARTICULARS OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

TEYEFF

At 31 March 2017 FA20174F3 H31H

Descriptions

L

Gross floor
area (sq. ft.)
HEEER
(EER)

Attributable
interest to
the Group

=8
FEfhrER

Nature of
property

MEHE

Category

of lease

HEER

28.  Commercial Centre, Yi Pak, RIE L WmEE—_FE 160,276 Commercial 50% Medium
Discovery Bay, Lantau Island EELIN S ]

29. West Gate Tower, 7 Wing Hong Street  fLEERD EXEHTSE 146,531 Industrial 100% Medium
and 8 King Lam Street, RIBMES I% ]
Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon FEAEed.L

30. CDW Building, MREERIRET-375 982,777 Industrial (note) 100% Medium
382-392 Castle Peak Road, H1L1j8382-3928% T (M) i
27-37 Mei Wan Street, mpKE
Tsuen Wan, New Territories

31, 325 car parking spaces HREPTERE 225 N/A Commercial 100% Medium
at Tuen Mun Central Square, IR R ES TER BmE H
22 Hoi Wing Road, 325 & i
Tuen Mun, New Territories

32, 3units of DANG, 2-6 Fui Yiu Kok Street, 1R EERZ A2-65% 6,837 Industrial 100% Medium
Tsuen Wan, New Territories DANG 31E 2z 1% i

M SEEMGSENERTIXERBEAROR
o WIEFEEITEIR TR ©

C. HFHLEWR

Attributable

Note: The Group had obtained approval to convert the property from industrial
to commercial use and the refurbishment works are underway.

C. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

Descriptions

R

Gross floor
area (sq. ft.)
AREEE
(FAR)

Nature of
property

MEHE

interest to
the Group

25

i

Category
of lease

REER

33. Lotno. 1613 in Demarcation District ~ #TRF & F 2 3,731 Residential 100% Medium
no. 222, Kap Pin Long, LEHNF202% FE ki
Sai Kung, New Territories 18716135
34.  Remaining units of REEA 45,828 Residential 100% Freehold
The Sukhothai Residences, The Sukhothai (net saleable == KAERE
Bangkok, Thailand Residencesth T £z area)
(FERER)
35. Elite House, No. 1310 Ding Xi Road, ~ HEl FETRER 233,763 Residential 100% Long
Changning District, Shanghai, the PRC £ FE#% 131057 Fx =
LA
36.  Remaining units of City One, RENI A R ET 101,501 Residential 100% Long
Jiaxing City, Zhejiang Province, BEEEHRE FE 8
the PRC BT ER
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

AND INVESTORS’ CALENDAR
RAERRKREER®

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
58
Mr CHA Mou Sing Payson (Chairman)
EREEE(EE)
Mr CHA Mou Zing Victor

(Deputy Chairman and Managing Director)
BRI (B £ EFREFRCTE)
Mr CHUNG Sam Tin Abraham?
EORL A
Mr TANG Moon Wah
BlmEE S
The Honourable Ronald Joseph ARCULLI
BEBEE
Mr CHA Mou Daid Johnson
BESRE
Ms WONG CHA May Lung Madeline
FTEXEELZT
Dr CHENG Kar Shun Henry
P
Mr CHEUNG Wing Lam Linus
SRIKFRIEE
Ms HO Pak Ching Loretta
fAIma &t
Mr TANG Kwai Chang
HEZEE

# Also alternate to Mr CHA Mou Sing Payson
" REEBBALLZIRFEF

AUDIT COMMITTEE
EREES

Mr TANG Kwai Chang (Chairman)
HEZSE(EE)

Mr CHEUNG Wing Lam Linus
SRIKFR &

Ms HO Pak Ching Loretta

fAIEa &t

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

FHEES

Dr CHENG Kar Shun Henry (Chairman)
WRAE L (L)

Mr CHA Mou Zing Victor

BRI

Mr CHEUNG Wing Lam Linus
SRKFRSE 4

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
REZES

Mr CHA Mou Sing Payson (Chairman)
EMBEE(L/E)

Ms HO Pak Ching Loretta

ffaE X+

Mr TANG Kwai Chang

HEZEE

COMPANY SECRETARY
NEAME

Ms LEUNG Wai Fan

REFL L

REGISTERED OFFICE
AMREE

P.O. Box 309, Ugland House
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104
Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL OFFICE
TERSZR

23/F, China Merchants Tower
Shun Tak Centre

168-200 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

HE

F 438+ 168-2005%

(ERGEN

BERBAE231E

SHARE REGISTRARS

ROBFERLE

Hong Kong

BB

Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

BEREPRBSHELARDA

BRIET

ERABER1835E

AMAPLITIEI712-1716F

Cayman Islands

FREHS

Maples Corporate Services Limited
P.O. Box 309, Ugland House
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104
Cayman lIslands

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
BB

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

RERER BRTANTT

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
FEREREBT
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
FEIRT(BB)BRRAA
Hang Seng Bank Limited
BARITARAR]
The Hongkong and Shanghai

Banking Corporation Limited
ERLEESRITBRAR
Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
BITRIT(FR)BRAF
The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd.

LEGAL ADVISORS
ERER

Hong Kong Laws
BBERE

Kao, Lee & Yip

B EEMTT

Mayer Brown JSM
FFLITERNAT

Reed Smith Richards Butler
BEEAEEAT

Cayman Islands Laws
FEREEE

Maples and Calder

B E RO BB

SEHK STOCK NAME/CODE
BTG BB/ RO

HKR Int'l 7578 F3£ B %:/00480

INVESTORS’ CALENDAR
REEB®

2017 Annual General Meeting
2017 FIRRIBFAE

23 August 2017

201748 H23H

Closure of Registers
FIERMNER

18 to 23 August 2017 (Annual General Meeting)
2017468 A18H £ 23R (RFAFAE)

29 and 30 August 2017 (Final Dividend)
201748 A298 &30R (KHKE)

Dividend Payment Date
IR 2R EE B HA

13 September 2017
201749 A 13H

COMMUNICATION
Bk A%

Website #9#k: www.hkri.com
Tel BEE: (852) 2238 1188

Email Eiﬁ

investors@hkri.com (Investors &%)
cs@nhkri.com (Shareholders % %)
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